
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
The Council will listen to the public on any item on the agenda.  Under the Brown Act, Council is 

prohibited from taking action on items not on the agenda, but the matter may be referred to staff or to a 

subsequent meeting.  Each speaker will be limited to three continuous minutes, which may not be 

delegated.  These rules will be enforced but may be changed by appropriate City Council action.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 
Persons wishing to speak on any item on the agenda will be called at the time the agenda item is brought 

forward.  Persons wishing to speak on closed session items have a choice of doing so either immediately 

prior to the closed session or at the time for comments on items at the open session. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 
Time shall be devoted to audience participation early on the agenda.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL  
 Mayor Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian, Council 

Member Arizmendi, Council Member Capoccia, and 

Council Member Goss 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  AND 

INVOCATION/INSPIRATION 
 

 Council Member John Capoccia 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

 Vote of the Council to proceed with City business. 
 

REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 

 City Attorney report from the closed session. 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES  Approval of City Council minutes from the Regular 

meeting on March 26, 2019 

 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS  Council Member activities relating to City business. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT   Regarding items not on the agenda 

 

AGENDA  

REGULAR MEETING 

SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY,  AND  

PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 

Tuesday, April 9, 2019  

 

6:30 pm  

 

City Hall Council Chambers 

232 W. Sierra Madre Boulevard 

Sierra Madre,  California  91024 

 

 Denise Delmar, Mayor  

John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem 

Rachelle Arizmendi, Council Member 

John Capoccia, Council Member 

Gene Goss, Council Member 

 

Sue Spears, City Clerk  

Michael Amerio, City Treasurer 

http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483342
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483342


ACTION ITEMS 

1. CONSENT  
 

  

a) ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 19-10 OF 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SIERRA MADRE APPROVING CERTAIN 

DEMANDS 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve 

Resolution 19-10 for approval of payment of City 

warrants in aggregate amount of $158,991.02; Library 

warrants in the aggregate amount of $4,344.44, and 

payroll transfer in the aggregate amount of $361,990.01 

for the fiscal year ending June 2019. 

 

 

b) DECLARATION OF CITY-OWNED 

VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT TO BE 

SURPLUSED 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve 

vehicles and equipment as “surplus” per Attachment 

“A” of the agenda report. 

c) SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE 1411,  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

AMENDING TITLE 17, CHAPTER 17.93 

(STANDARDS AND CRITERIA FOR 

WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS 

FACILITIES) OF THE SIERRA MADRE 

MUNICIPAL CODE TO COMPLY WITH 

FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR SMALL 

WIRELESS FACILITIES 

 

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 19-07 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

ESTABLISHING A FEE FOR SMALL 

WIRELESS FACILITY APPLICATIONS AS 

CONTEMPLATED BY SIERRA MADRE 

MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 17.93 – 

STANDARDS AND CRITERIA FOR 

WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS 

FACILITIES  

 

 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council conduct 

a second reading of Ordinance No. 1411 

amending Title 17, chapter 17.93 of the Sierra 

Madre Municipal Code to include permit 

requirements, procedures, standards, and 

limitations for the submittal and review of small 

cell wireless facilities; and 

  

Adopt Resolution 19-07:  A Resolution of the 

City Council of the City of Sierra Madre, 

California, establishing an application 

processing fee for Small Cell Wireless Facilities 

as contemplated by Ordinance 1411. 
 

 PUBLIC HEARING 

 

  

2. 

 

 

 

 

CALL FOR REVIEW OF DISCRETIONARY 

DEMOLITION PERMIT TO ALLOW 

DEMOLITION IN PART OR IN WHOLE OF 

ROOF STRUCTURE, EXTERIOR AND 

INTERIOR WALLS AND FRAMING; AND 

DESIGN REVIEW PERMIT TO ALLOW 

CONSTRUCTION OF 2,080-SQUARE-FOOT 

ADDITION ONTO THE EXISTING SINGLE 

FAMILY RESIDENCE TO BE ALIGNED 

WITH THE EXISTING LEGALLY 

CONSTRUCTED SIDE YARD SETBACK OF 

THE PRIMARY STRUCTURE OF THE 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 91 E. BONITA 

AVENUE. 
 
 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve 

Discretionary Demolition Permit 18-09 and Design 

Review Permit 18-04 pursuant to City Council 

Resolution 19-08, a Resolution of the City Council 

pursuant to Sierra Madre Municipal Code Section 

17.66.040B (Call for Review) approving the 

Discretionary Demolition Permit18-09 and Design 

Review Permit 18-04 to allow  demolition in part or in 

whole of roof structure, exterior and interior walls and 

framing for the construction of 2,082 square-foot 

addition to the existing 2,577 square-foot, one story, 

single family residence; and to allow additions onto 

existing primary structures to be aligned with the 

existing legally constructed side yard setback of the 

primary structure on the property located at 91 E. 

Bonita Avenue. 

 

http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483337
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483337
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483337
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483337
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483333
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483333
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483333
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483331
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483331
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483331
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483331
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483331
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483331
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483331
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483331
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483331
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483331
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483331
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483331
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483331
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483331
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483331
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483331
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483331
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483331
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483331
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483323
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483323
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483323
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483323
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483323
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483323
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483323
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483323
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483323
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483323
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483323
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483323
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483323
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15483323


 DISCUSSION 

 

  

3. BRIEF UPDATE FROM MAYOR DENISE 

DELMAR ON THE STATE OF THE CITY 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council receive and file. 

 

 PRESENTATION 

 

PRESENTATION IN RECOGNITION OF 

OUTGOING MAYOR DELMAR  

  

 DISCUSSION 

 

  

4. CITY COUNCIL REORGANIZATION; 

MAYOR AND MAYOR PRO-TEM TERMS 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council reorganize and 

appoint a Mayor and Mayor Pro-Tem to serve the next 

rotation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION ITEMS 

Regardless of staff recommendation on any agenda item, the City Council will consider such matters, 

including action to approve, conditionally approve, reject, or continue such item.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

The appellant and/or applicant will each be provided a total of ten (10) minutes to address their item.  

A portion of their allotted time may be reserved for rebuttal or a summary conclusion at the close of 

public comment.  All other speakers will be limited to a total of three continuous minutes, which 

cannot be delegated.  These rules will be enforced but may be changed by appropriate City Council 

action. 

 

AVAILABILITY OF AGENDA MATERIALS 

Materials related to items on this agenda are available for public inspection on the City’s website at 

www.cityofsierramadre.com, and during normal business hours at City Hall, 232 W. Sierra Madre 

Blvd. and at the Sierra Madre Public Library, 440 W. Sierra Madre Blvd. 

 

LIVE BROADCASTS 

Regular City Council meetings are broadcasted live on Cable Channel 3 and rebroadcast on 

Wednesday and Saturday at 5:30 p.m. 

 

MEETING ASSISTANCE 

If you require special assistance to participate in this meeting, please call the City Clerk’s office at 

(626) 355-7135 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council will adjourn to a Public Hearing at this same place on Tuesday, April 23, 2019. 

http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15482612
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15482612
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15482606
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15482606
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/


Page 1 of 16 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 3-26-2019 

 

Tuesday, March 26, 2019 - 6:30 pm 
Sierra Madre City Hall Council Chambers 

232 W. Sierra Madre Blvd., Sierra Madre, CA 91024 

  

 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

Mayor Denise Delmar called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m.  City Clerk Sue Spears called the roll. 

 

Present: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Members 

Rachelle Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss 

 

Absent: None  

 

Also Present: Gabe Engeland, City Manager 

Teresa Highsmith, City Attorney 

Laura Aguilar, Assistant City Clerk 

James Carlson, Management Analyst 

Chris Cimino, Director of Public Works  

Edward Delcoure, Police Lieutenant 

Vincent Gonzalez, Planning & Community Preservation Director 

Joe Ortiz, Police Chief 

Christine Smart, City Librarian 

Rebecca Silva-Barrón, Community Services Manager 

Sue Spears, City Clerk 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION/INSPIRATION: 

 

Council Member Arizmendi led the Pledge of Allegiance and spoke about a speech by President Jimmy 
Carter establishing the first Women’s History Week in 1980, which was expanded in 1987 to designate 
March as Women’s History Month.  She announced that Assemblymember Chris Holden will be 
recognizing former City Clerk Nancy Shollenberger this Thursday for her service to Sierra Madre over 
the last 32 years.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA AS PRESENTED: 

 

Mayor Delmar asked for a motion to approve the agenda as presented.  

 

Council Member Capoccia moved to approve the agenda as presented. 

 

Council Member Arizmendi seconded the motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

 

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  
SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL  

SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND  

PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 



Page 2 of 16 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 3-26-2019 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, Council Members Rachelle 

Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss  

Noes:      None 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was passed unanimously. 

 

REPORT ON THE CLOSED SESSION SPECIAL MEETING  

 

City Attorney Highsmith reported that there was no Closed Session Special Meeting. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 

Mayor Delmar asked for the approval of the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting of March 12, 2019. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian noted that there was a typographical error on page 1. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian moved to approve the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting of March 

12, 2019 as amended. 

  

Council Member Goss seconded the motion to approve.  

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Members 

 Rachelle Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to approve the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting of March 12, 2019 as amended was 

passed unanimously. 

 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS: 

 

A. Mayor Denise Delmar reported about the successful Wisteria Festival, which took place on such a 
beautiful day.  

 
B. Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian did not make a report. 

 
C. Council Member Rachelle Arizmendi reported that (1) Nancy Shollenberger will be recognized as a 

Women of Distinction for the City of Sierra Madre on Thursday and encouraged people to attend 
the event, (2) City Treasurer Mike Amerio was recognized by Maryvale Educational Center for his 
work on the Maryvale Board of Directors, and (3) the Sierra Madre Chamber of Commerce, all of 
the groups in Sierra Madre, and volunteers deserve recognition, congratulations, and thanks for 
the amazing Wisteria Festival, which had a great turnout     

 
D. Council Member John Capoccia said that he attended a performance of “Tuesdays with Morrie” at 

the Sierra Madre Playhouse, which was fantastic.  He encouraged people to become regular 
patrons of the Playhouse. 

 
E. Council Member Gene Goss did not make a report. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS:  
 



Page 3 of 16 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 3-26-2019 

 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on items not on the agenda.   

 

 Renee Cossutta, Sierra Madre, suggested eliminating the street next to Kersting Court in the 

Kersting Court redesign. 

 

 Debbie Ross, Sierra Madre, expressed that she did not like the two available options for the 

Kersting Court redesign and requested that other options be provided. 

 

 Marguerite Schuster, Sierra Madre, (1) complimented the Planning Commission for its work in 

preserving the special character of Sierra Madre while also acknowledging legitimate uses of 

private property and (2) suggested that more specificity in the building code language would 

assist the Planning Commission in making decisions. 

 

 Liza Kerrigan, Sierra Madre, expressed that the two Kersting Court redesign options (of adding 

either a trellis or gazebo) detract from Kersting Court’s character and suggested that natural 

shading be considered. 

 

 Barbara Lee, Sierra Madre, expressed that she did not like the two available options for the 

Kersting Court redesign and suggested pepper trees and/or something historical be included in 

the redesign.  

 

 Andrea Lin, Sierra Madre, spoke about difficulties that she has been having with her neighbors 

and requested accountability. 

 

 Carol Canterbury, Sierra Madre Chamber of Commerce, thanked the City for allowing this year’s 

successful Wisteria Festival, with about 6,000 – 7,000 people in attendance and 84 

vendors/food trucks.   

 

 Larry Torres, Sierra Madre and PUSD School Board President, invited everyone to attend the 

“State of the Schools” speech to be held on Thursday, April 4, 2019, @ 6:00 p.m. at Sierra 

Madre Middle School. 

 

 Gary Hood, Sierra Madre, commented that side yard setbacks need to be followed closely, as it 

is a safety issue for first responders. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if anyone else would like to come forward to speak on items not on the agenda.  

Seeing no one come forward, Mayor Delmar closed Public Comment. 

 
PRESENTATION – POLICE CHIEF JOE ORTIZ – RECOGNITION OF SERVICE TO SIERRA MADRE  

 

Mayor Delmar announced that Police Chief Joe Ortiz is leaving Sierra Madre to assume the position of  

South Pasadena Police Chief and commented “their win is our loss.”  Council Members spoke about 

Chief Ortiz as follows:  (1) thanked him for his leadership and service to our community, (2) 

complimented him about the relationships that he has developed with residents and people in Sierra 

Madre, (3) recognized him for his commitment to the SMPD during a time in which there was staff loss 

and during the rebuilding, (4) expressed appreciation for his leadership of the SMPD, which is better 

than ever, and (5) wished him well. 

 

Mayor Delmar read and presented a proclamation to Chief Ortiz.  Chief Ortiz spoke about his nine (9) 

years (since 2010) with SMPD and expressed his appreciation for the support of the City Manager, City 

Council, residents, and the staff of the SMPD. 



Page 4 of 16 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 3-26-2019 

 

 

 De Alcorn, Sierra Madre, (1) complimented Chief Ortiz on his professionalism and his heart of 

the people, (2) thanked Chief Ortiz for his service, and (3) expressed his appreciation to Chief 

Ortiz.  

 

 Steve Stafford, Temple City, (1) recognized Chief Ortiz has being outstanding in getting the City 

through some tough times, (2) expressed his appreciation to Chief Ortiz, and (3) wished him the 

best. 

 

AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: 

 

1. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

City Clerk Spears gave the following reports under the Consent Calendar: 

 

a) ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 19-08 OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA 

MADRE APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS – Recommendation that the City Council approve 

Resolution 19-08 for approval of payment of City warrants in aggregate amount of $245,795.51; 

Library warrants in the aggregate amount of $2,760.50, and payroll transfer in the aggregate 

amount of $331,404.78 for the fiscal year ending June 2019. 

 

b) ANNUAL HOUSING ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT - Recommendation that the City Council 

receive and file. 

 

c) CONSIDERATION OF AWARD OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO GENTRY BROTHERS 

INC. FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE FY 2018-2019 STREET MPROVEMENT PROJECT No. 

ST81901 IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $720,100 - Recommendation that the City Council 

award a construction contract to Gentry Brothers Inc., in an amount not to exceed $720,100 for 

the FY 2018-2019 Street Improvement Project.  

 

Mayor Delmar asked if any Member of the Council had questions on Consent Items 1a – 1c.   

Council Members did not ask any questions. 

 

Regarding Consent Item 1c - In a response to a question by Council Member Goss regarding how 

Gentry Brothers Inc. could bid so low, Public Works Director Cimino said that (1) Staff does a full 

spread sheet of all the bids, with no apparent rhyme or reason on how bid amounts are established, 

(2) we trust that contractors have studied the specifications and understand the scope of the work 

required, and (3) there are other cities that have successfully used Gentry Brothers Inc. 

 

Regarding Consent Item 1b – In response to a question by Council Member Capoccia regarding the 

housing numbers-units constructed, Planning & Community Preservation Director Gonzalez 

clarified that the numbers are a compilation of various tables from a number of spreadsheets that 

data is entered.  He displayed a table to clarify the allocation from the assignment from RHNA to 

where the City currently stands, with 100 units built and 18 remaining to be built.  PCP Director 

Gonzalez said that the timeframe is through 2021, but that, with the six cycle of the regional 

housing needs assessment, the numbers are likely to go up, which will need to be accounted for 

with the updated housing element, which will probably begin in 2020. 

 

Council Member Capoccia asked about penalties recommended by the CA Governor for cities that 

do not make its numbers, PCP Director Gonzalez reported that the CA Governor has filed lawsuits 

against non-compliant cities and expressed his opinion that larger cities are being targeted. 

http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15429103
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15429095
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15429095
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15429095


Page 5 of 16 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 3-26-2019 

 

 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on the Consents Item 1a – 1c.  Seeing no 

one, Mayor Delmar closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for 

discussion.  No additional discussion occurred. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian made a motion to approve Consent Items 1a – 1c as presented. 

 

Council Member Arizmendi seconded the motion for approval. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Members 

Rachelle Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to approve Consent Calendar Items 1a – 1c as presented was passed unanimously. 

 

2. PUBLIC HEARING – ADOPTION OF AN URGENCY ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 17 

CHAPTER 17.93 OF THE SIERRA MADRE MUNICIPAL CODE TO INCLUDE PERMIT 

REQUIREMENTS, PROCEDURES, STANDARDS AND LIMITATIONS FOR THE SUBMITTAL 

AND REVIEW OF SMALL CELL WIRELESS FACILITIES; AND INTRODUCTION OF AN 

ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 17 CHAPTER 17.93 OF THE SIERRA MADRE MUNICIPAL 

CODE TO INCLUDE PERMIT REQUIREMENTS, PROCEDURES, STANDARDS AND 

LIMITATIONS FOR THE SUBMITTAL AND REVIEW OF SMALL WIRELESS FACILITIES - 
Recommendation that the City Council (a) Read by title only and adopt Urgency Ordinance 

No. 1410-U amending Title 17, Chapter 17.93 of the Sierra Madre Municipal Code to include 

permit requirements, procedures, standards, and limitations for the submittal and review of 

small cell wireless facilities, (b) Introduce and read by title only Ordinance No. 1411 

amending Title 17, Chapter 17.93 of the Sierra Madre Municipal Code to include permit 

requirements, procedures, standards, and limitations for the submittal and review of small 

cell wireless facilities, and (c) adopt Resolution 19-07: A resolution of the City of Sierra 

Madre establishing an application processing fee for Small Cell Wireless Facilities as 

contemplated by Urgency Ordinance 1410-U. 

 

Mayor Delmar opened this item for Public Hearing. 

 
Planning & Community Preservation Director Gonzalez reported on this item that included a 

PowerPoint titled, “Small Cell Wireless Facilities”, with the recommendation that the City Council 

take the following actions: 

 

a. Adopt Urgency Ordinance No. 1410-U and Ordinance 1411 amending Title 17, Chapter 

17.93 (Standards and Criteria for Wireless Communications Facilities) of the Sierra Madre 

Municipal Code to include permit requirements, procedures, standards, and limitations for 

the submittal and review of small cell wireless facilities and  

 

b. Adopt Resolution 19-07, establishing an application processing fee for small wireless 

facilities.  

 

As indicated in the Staff Report dated March 26, 2019, for this agenda item, on April 15, 2019, the 

Federal Communications Commission (FCC) Declaratory Ruling and Order will take effect and will 

http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15429086
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15429086
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15429086
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15429086
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15429086
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15429086
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15429086


Page 6 of 16 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 3-26-2019 

 

change local governments’ ability to regulate wireless network equipment.  The new FCC Order 

requires the following: 

 

a. Shortens the “shot clock” (to review applications for siting wireless network equipment) to 60 

days for permits to attach 5G small cell sites to existing structure, and 90 days for attaching 

equipment to new structures. 

 

b. Limits fees for 5G small cell applications to a “reasonable approximation” of the state and 

local government costs.  

 

c. Dictates how cities regulate aesthetics, requiring that cities publish their standards and treat 

wireless technology the same as other infrastructure deployments. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item. 

 

Council Member Goss asked a question about “the public notification within 500 feet” and the 

remedy if a person(s) or neighborhood does not want it.  PCP Director Gonzalez said that there is 

no remedy for them, as it is a FCC mandate/requirement.  City Attorney Highsmith added that (1) 

the Sierra Madre drafted ordinance includes “the preferred location within 250 feet” as what the City 

prefers, not what the cell applicant prefers, which may provide some relief for resident(s), (2) the 

small cell device cannot emit more than the designated EMF, (3) there is a provision that requires 

compliance with the City’s stealth requirements, which have been tightened in the draft ordinance, 

(4) this is not a discretionary review, it is ministerial, (5) the purpose of the 5G cell site is not for gap 

closure because people are using smartphones as mini-computers, streaming data, watching 

videos, etc., all of which requires more data support and speed, (6) as the 5G cell devices get 

smaller, they need to be placed closer together to be effective, and (7) the proposed ordinance was 

drafted using a similar ordinance from another city that was upheld in court. 

 

In response to a question by Council Member Goss regarding the numbers of these 5G cell 

devices, PCP Director Gonzalez said that is unknown at this time because the location requirement 

is per carrier and their needs, which could change circumstances.  He added that this may assist 

with coverage in the Canyon area and up the hillsides, depending how far up the carriers install and 

the availability of utility poles. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian asked about the application processing fee, as the ordinance mentions 

$500 and the City Council established fee is to be $1,000.  PCP Gonzalez said that the language in 

the two do not conflict.   

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian expressed concern regarding the placement of these devices near 

schools and daycare locations because of the potential radiation.  PCP Director stated that these 

are FCC requirements and the radio emissions from these units and other cell towers are supposed 

to be in compliance with the state requirements so that there is not a lot that can be done to restrict 

locations from specific kinds of facilities.  City Attorney Highsmith confirmed that (1) there is no 

exception for schools and/or daycare centers and (2) it would not harm the ordinance in any way to 

strike the $500 and change the sentence to read “an independent consultant fee deposit of an 

amount as may be established by Council by resolution, etc.”  Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian 

suggested that change in the ordinance language. 

 

In response to a question by Council Member Arizmendi regarding preferred location, PCP Director 

Gonzalez said that it is an internal process. City Attorney Highsmith suggested that written Staff 

guidelines be established that include what the City defines as preferred locations. 



Page 7 of 16 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 3-26-2019 

 

 

In response to a question by Council Member Capoccia regarding “stealth facilities” and why the 

preferred is not listed as underground, City Attorney Highsmith said that (1) underground facilities 

do not work for cell phone service, (2) the preferred location is either an existing or replacement 

light standard (which equivalent to a new light standard with the cell equipment inside it), and (3) 

“stealth” relates to aesthetics.  

 

Mayor Delmar clarified that the urgency ordinance must be passed by April 15, 2019, as this is the 

date when the FCC requirements take effect.  PCP Director added that the related non-emergency 

ordinance is being presented concurrently with the urgency ordinance and the non-emergency 

ordinance will have a second reading at the next City Council Meeting. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if anyone would like to come forward to comment on this item.  

 

 Steve Stafford, Temple City, expressed the need to check the utility pole structure and its ability 

to hold the weight of the small cell equipment.  

 

 Barbara Lee, Sierra Madre, expressed the need for increased cell phone service in Sierra 

Madre. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if anyone else would like to come forward to this item.  Seeing no one, Mayor 

Delmar closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion. 

 

Council Member Goss suggested considering the condition of the utility pole structure.  City 

Attorney Highsmith said that, as part of the application process, (1) providers must bring a site plan 

that shows the engineering specifications of what they are proposing to build, including the weight, 

(2) site plans are generally reviewed by the Planning Department and Public Works, who reviews 

the site plans for compliance and to ensure that the utility pole structure is adequate to hold the 

anticipated weight, and (3) the contractor could be compelled to replace the utility pole of it was 

deemed unable to hold the weight.  Public Works Director Cimino added that, after the City issues a 

permit, the contractor must request approval from Southern California Edison (SCE), which 

evaluates the condition of  its poles every other year.  He said that Staff is considering requiring 

that, as a condition for issuing the permit to actually do the work, the contractor be required to  

present a certification from SCE regarding the condition of the pole.  PW Director Cimino said that 

SCE is currently in the process of replacing poles throughout Sierra Madre.   

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian made a motion to (1) adopt Urgency Ordinance No. 1410-U (effective 

immediately and with the discussed changes regarding the application fees), (2) adopt Ordinance 

1411 (first reading only by title), (3) adopt Resolution 19-07 (setting the fees), (4) approve the 

recommendation that Staff Guidelines be developed, and (5) request that the City Attorney review 

the ordinances to ensure that the numbering is correct.   

 

Council Member Goss seconded the motion. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Members 

Rachelle Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:   None 

 



Page 8 of 16 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 3-26-2019 

 

The motion to (1) adopt Urgency Ordinance No. 1410-U (effective immediately and with the 

discussed changes regarding the application fees), (2) adopt Ordinance 1411 (first reading only by 

title), (3) adopt Resolution 19-07 (setting the fees), (4) approve the recommendation that Staff 

Guidelines be developed, and (5) request that the City Attorney review the ordinances to ensure 

that the numbering is correct was passed unanimously. 

 

3. DISCUSSION – CONSIDERATION OF YMCA LEASE RENEWAL – Recommendation that the 

City Council approve a lease renewal with the YMCA for a term of three years, with an 

effective start date upon execution of the lease agreement. 

 

City Manager Engeland reported on this item, with a recommendation that the City Council approve 

a lease renewal with the YMCA for a term of three years, with an effective start date upon execution 

of the lease agreement.  The Staff Report Summary dated March 26, 2019, says the following: 

 

 The YMCA has continuously leased the Sierra Madre Recreation Center since January 

2012 (more than seven years).   

 

 The YMCA has been an exceptional partner to the City of Sierra Madre and provides 

needed services and programs to the community. 

 

 The current lease payments by the YMCA are $3,000 per month and Staff is not seeking 

an increase in the lease rate for this lease renewal. 

 

 The proposed lease extension makes several small changes and updates, but also 

suggests larger changes in the following areas:   

 

(a) Sierra Madre Room – the YMCA will be responsible for the rental and reservations, will 

retain Sierra Madre Room rental fees, and will be responsible for the care, cleaning, 

and maintenance of the Sierra Madre Room.  The total impact to the City is anticipated 

to be $2,000. 

 

(2) The City of Sierra Madre, at its sole discretion, will provide the YMCA funds to create, 

establish, or enhance programs that are in the best interest of the community, due to 

lack of current program availability or community desire/demand.  All revenues from 

such programs will be retained by the YMCA.  The City will agree to subsidize the 

programs until they are self-sufficient, discontinued, or by providing 30 days advance 

written notice of intent to cancel program support.  The total funds in any fiscal year 

provided to the YMCA shall not excel $10,000. 

 

(3) The YMCA will be responsible for all daily and operational or routine maintenance and 

repair of the Community Center and all components of the building, with the exception 

of the lift.  These components include, but are not limited to, A/C, lighting, plumbing, 

and heating elements.   

 

(4) The City shall be responsible for all capital items, defined as items exceeding $5,000 

in cost, in addition to the expense and maintenance of the lift. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item. 

 

In response to a question by Council Member Capoccia, City Manager Engeland said that the City’s 

use of the Sierra Madre Room for City activities will not change, with four days free of charge, with 



Page 9 of 16 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 3-26-2019 

 

advance notice.  He said that the change relates to groups contacting the YMCA directly to make a  

reservation. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian asked about the rental fees for use of the Sierra Madre Room.  City 

Manager Engeland stated that Council currently sets the price, with fees reduced substantially two 

budgets ago, but with this proposal the fees would be set and collected by the YMCA. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian asked about plans regarding the $10,000 set aside for new 

programming.  City Manager Engeland shared that, from a community services standpoint, there 

are programs we wish were in the community that are currently not offered.  He said that this is a 

way for the YMCA to diversity its revenue stream, while bringing needed programs to the 

community, and will involve input from the Community Services Commission.  Rick Politte, 

Executive Director, Pasadena-Sierra Madre YMCA, answered that they are looking for more 

feedback from the community and that the Community Services Commission is a good source of 

communication for ideas, and their purpose is to serve the needs of the community. 

 

In response to a question by Council Member Goss as to whether Sierra Madre residents would be 

given preference in use of the Sierra Madre Room, City Manager Engeland responded that, 

whether it is the City or the YMCA, there cannot be a price preference offered for residents and, if 

there is a scheduling conflict, it would be up to the YMCA to handle. 

 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on this item. 

 

 Pat Alcorn, Sierra Madre, asked about (1) the Sierra Madre Room rental fee for non-profits 

and (2) after school programs being offered with a fee that families can afford. 

 

 De Alcorn, Sierra Madre, asked about the incentive for the YMCA to offer reasonable,  

viable, and quality youth programs. 

 

 Barbara Lee, Sierra Madre, asked about (1) what the City gains by providing a subsidy to 

the YMCA for the establishment of new programs and (2) how many children from Sierra 

Madre participate. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked City Manager Engeland to address the issues raised during Public Comment 

as follows: 

 

 What’s in it for the City – The fundamentals of the City have not changed about our ability to 

pay for and operate either a pool or the Community Center.  Leasing either facility out, when 

you combine them, brings in about $107,000 in annual revenue and avoids the cost of 

staffing the SM Pool and staffing the Community Center.  Staffing the Community Center 

alone, should the lease not be signed, would likely be 4-6 full-time people.   

Without the lease, there will be lost lease revenue and increased operating expenses, 

including utilities, maintenance, and staffing the facility.  Leasing provides the City with a 

substantial cost savings and substantial revenue. 

 

 Programs – Programs were cheap when the City operated the facility because they were 

heavily subsidized by the City.  The proposed subsidy to the YMCA is to try to build up some 

of the programming that was lost through the outsourcing. 

 

 Quality of Programs – When a private business offers a program, there is an incentive to 

bring people to that program to increase revenue or to expose them to their mission.  When 



Page 10 of 16 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 3-26-2019 

 

the City offers a program and people to not come, there is no negative outcome for the City, 

it is just a program that does not break even. 

 

 Rental Fee – The YMCA does have the ability to charge a different rate for profit versus 

non-profit and break it out by category, just not by residents vs non-residents.  The YMCA 

has more flexibility in its rentals, as they have more staff that can be assigned.  Under this 

lease, Council does not set the rates by category or for room rentals. 

 

 After School Programs – YMCA Executive Director Politte said that, in Sierra Madre, the 

YMCA currently operates two after-school programs (1) licensed school-aged child care 

program for children Kindergarten – Grade 5 and (2) after-school recreation program for 

middle school students, which is a carryover from the program that the City of Sierra Madre 

previously provided in the Youth Activity Center (YAC).  He said that fees are charged to 

participate in the programs, considering that the cost is for operating a licensed program 

with more qualified staff and that the ratios are lower than some other providers.  Mr. Politte 

stated that financial assistance is provided to people who are lower income.  He reported 

that, last year, the Pasadena-Sierra Madre YMCA provided about $50,000 in financial 

assistance in childcare, camps, and different programs, although not all programs were in 

Sierra Madre.   

 

Mayor Delmar asked if anyone else would like to come forward to this item.  Seeing no one, Mayor 

Delmar closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion. 

 

Council Member Arizmendi suggested that the YMCA consider differentiating rates for non-profit 

organizations.  Mr. Politte said that, as a non-profit itself, the YMCA is not in a position to subsidize 

other non-profits but is also not looking to make a profit from other non-profits.  He stated that the 

YMCA would have to look at the exact cost for renting the facility to determine the rate to a non-

profit organization for a specific event. 

 

Discussion occurred and Council Members concurred with approving a lease renewal with the 

YMCA as recommended.  

 

Council Member Arizmendi made a motion to approve a lease renewal with the YMCA for a term of 

three years, with an effective start date upon execution of the lease agreement.   

 

Council Member Goss seconded the motion to approve. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Members 

Rachelle Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to approve a lease renewal with the YMCA for a term of three years, with an effective 

start date upon execution of the lease agreement was passed unanimously. 

 

4. DISCUSSION -  CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 19-09 INITIATING FORMATION 

PROCEEDINGS THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE DOWNTOWN AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE 

DISTRICT - Recommendation that the City Council adopt Resolution 19-09 Initiating 

Proceedings to form the new Downtown Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance District, 

http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15429064
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15429064
http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/common/pages/DisplayFile.aspx?itemId=15429064


Page 11 of 16 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 3-26-2019 

 

authorizing NBS Government Finance Group to act as the Engineer of Record for the new 

District, and ordering the preparation of the Engineer’s Report. 

 

Public Works Director Cimino reported on this item, with the recommendation that the City Council 

adopt Resolution 19-09 Initiating Proceedings to form the new Downtown Landscaping and Lighting 

Maintenance District, authorizing NBS Government Finance Group to act as the Engineer of Record 

for the new District, and ordering the preparation of the Engineer’s Report.   

 

As described in the Staff Report, an alternative was that the City Council may choose to not 

approve Resolution 19-09 and not authorize the formation of a new District.  This would mean that 

the City would continue to collect special assessments via the four existing special assessment 

districts in the area.   

 

 Each of the four districts was established to fund the cost of improvements and maintenance 

of specific benefits in the Downtown District. 

 

 Two of the districts do not collect sufficient funds and are subsidized by expenditures from 

the General Fund. 

 

 The remaining two districts collect more revenue than is required for the benefit provided 

and have accumulated a fund balance of $595,000.  

 

 City Staff has identified the need to correctly balance the amount of revenue collected within 

the district(s) with necessary expenditures. 

 

 If formed, the new district would (replace the existing four districts) pay for the maintenance 

of the landscaping and lighting improvements put in place by these existing assessment 

districts and fund the implementation and associated maintenance of additional similar 

improvements nearby. 

 

 The new district would collect $22,676 less than the current combined collection of the four 

districts.  

 

Mayor Delmar asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item. 

 

In response to a question by Council Member Arizmendi regarding Prop. 218 and the response 

time, PW Director Cimino said that, from the date that the ballots go out, it is 45 days.  In addition, 

he said that business/community outreach and communication is part of the process by the 

consultant, which will be initiated after the engineering report.  He said that the engineering report 

establishes the funds, identifies the necessary funds, and determines the appropriate assessment 

on each property. 

 

Regarding a question by Council Member Capoccia regarding the new district boundaries, PW 

Director Cimino responded that the boundary definition includes East Montecito and, from the 

existing Downtown District, South Baldwin to Suffolk and North Baldwin to Highland.  He said that 

the new district’s boundaries include the boundaries of the current four districts plus East Montecito. 

 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on this item.   

 

 Barbara Lee, Sierra Madre, thanked the City Council for the new street crossing lights and 

the new benches in town.  



Page 12 of 16 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 3-26-2019 

 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if anyone else would like to come forward to speak on this item.  Seeing no 

one, Mayor Delmar closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for 

discussion. 

 

City Manager Engeland explained that this plan reduces the overall collection (tax burden) in the 

district by about 15% and better aligns the benefits to businesses with what the district can offer, 

while reducing the General Fund subsidy by about $40,000 per year.  In short, he summarized, “we 

are charging people less to provide better service and reducing a General Fund subsidy”.   

 

Discussion occurred and there was consensus among the Council Members to support the 

equivalent of a 15% tax cut for those in the new district and that this is definitely a win-win for 

everyone.        . 

 

Council Member Capoccia made a motion to adopt Resolution 19-09 as presented. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian seconded the motion to adopt.  

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Members 

Rachelle Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to adopt Resolution 19-09 as presented was passed unanimously. 

 

5. DISCUSSION – STATE AND DISTRICT SALES TAX MEASURE(S) AND STATUTORY LIMITS – 

Recommendation that the City Council provide direction. 

 

City Manager Engeland reported on this item that included a PowerPoint titled, “District Sales Tax 

Collection”,  requesting that the City Council provide direction.  A summary of which follows: 

 

 Sales Tax Limit 

  State Tax Cap    =  10.25% 

  District Tax Cap  =     2.0%  

 

 Current Collections 

  State                   =   7.25% (3% remaining)  

  District                 =   2.25% (.75% remaining, 1% exempted by State – Measures M & R) 

 

 LA County (District) Tax History 

  Since 2008, LA County voters have passed 10 of 11 proposed taxes. 

  Meaning that, when LA County puts a tax forward for vote, it passes. 

 

 Current Sales Tax Collection 

  Sierra Madre is a donor to both the State and LA County 

  For every dollar collected at the State level, Sierra Madre retains 20 cents. 

  For every dollar collected at the LA County level, Sierra Madre retains 77.5 cents. 

  Overall, for every dollar collected locally, only 33.6 cents is retained locally. 

 

 Sierra Madre Sales Tax Collection – Sierra Madre retains: 



Page 13 of 16 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 3-26-2019 

 

  33.6% of all sales tax collected in City 

  20.0% of all sales tax collected at the State level 

  77.5% of all sales tax collected at the LA County (District) level 

 

As noted in the report, at the City Council meeting on February 26, 2019, the City Council 

discussed the statutory limits of sales tax collections in taxing districts and reviewed the current 

sales tax authorization in Los Angeles County.  At that meeting (2-26-19), City Council asked for 

clarifying information on the types of sales tax elections that are available should Sierra Madre 

decide to place a local sales tax measure on the ballot, as well as information on joining other San 

Gabriel Valley cities in a lobbying effort to stop additional sales tax measures from being exempted 

from the legal sales tax limit.   

 

Per the Staff Report, the City Council has the following options available with regards to a potential 

sales tax measure: 

 

a. Do not propose any local sales tax measures within Sierra Madre in 2019 or 2020. 

 

b. Discuss and vote as the City Council to place a local sales tax measure on the November 

2020 general election.  A sales tax for general use would require 50% + 1 of all votes cast 

for approval.  A sales tax for a specific use would require a 2/3rd of all votes cast for 

approval. 

 

c. Adopt a citizen initiative, should a citizen group decide to collect 15% valid signatures 

requesting such a local sales tax ordinance. 

 

d. Accept a ballot measure should a citizen group collect signatures (5% of number of voters 

in the last gubernatorial election) requesting a sales tax measure be placed on the ballot for 

a special election and call a special election in November 2019. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item. 

 

In response to a question by Council Member Goss, City Manager Engeland said that there are 18 

cities that have passed a sales tax with the idea of stopping the District (LA County) or anyone 

within the District from collecting more, with Arcadia, Duarte, Monrovia, San Marino, South 

Pasadena, and others in the process of discussing this same issue. 

 

City Attorney Highsmith clarified that the question is really a matter of what capacity is left to tax 

and is LA County going to take it, i.e. you are going to have to pay the tax anyway, but do you want 

to keep 100% of it for Sierra Madre or retain less than that.  In addition, she said that the only way 

for Sierra Madre to keep 100% is for Sierra Madre to consider whether it wants a local sales tax 

and, if we wait, LA County will surely get the excess capacity, which is now only .75%. 

 

City Attorney Highsmith explained that, if Sierra Madre waits until LA County has a sales tax 

initiative on the ballot (anticipated to be November 2020), the Sierra Madre vote will be very diluted 

because the vote will be countywide.  City Manager Engeland added that there is information from 

LA County or Districts within LA County that at least two sales tax initiatives are likely to be on the 

ballot in 2020 or one in 2020 and one in 2022 so the issue is not if, but when will the tax be levied 

and where will the revenues go. 

 

Regarding a local (Sierra Madre) sales tax, City Attorney Highsmith said the following: 

 



Page 14 of 16 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 3-26-2019 

 

 With a local tax for Sierra Madre, the money stays in Sierra Madre. 

 

 Only Sierra Madre residents get to vote on it. 

 

 It is a form of local control, although it is difficult to think about taxing. 

 

In response to a question by Council Member Capoccia regarding a “Citizen Initiative” and the 

number of signatures required,  City Attorney Highsmith explained that, for a local ballot initiative 

pertaining to taxes, (1) it would require 5% of the number of people in Sierra Madre who voted in 

the last gubernatorial election and (2) a tax initiative for general purposes can be on a special 

election, but the City itself cannot do that, without a declaration of fiscal emergency (which Sierra 

Madre is not in).  She said that elections code law allows that, if 15% of signatures from the 

registered voters in Sierra Madre were collected for a local tax initiative (submitted on time for it to 

be on a special election), then the City Council could adopt the local tax initiative without an 

election, but that this law has not been tested in court. 

 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on this item.   

 

 Barbara Lee, Sierra Madre, complemented City Manager Engeland and asked about what 

happens when the sales tax threshold is reached. 

 

City Manager Engeland said that there are two situations in which taxes could increase, in the 

hypothetical world where we have reached the district sales tax limit, (1) the state has not reached 

its sales tax limit, the state has 3% left, and at any time can impose additional taxes and (2) tax 

measures that are exempted from the district cap limit.  He stated that a .75% sales tax collection  

equals $215,000 per year. 

 

 Philip Crabbe, Public Affairs Manager, South Coast Air Quality Management District (South 

Coast AQMD), spoke about (1) AQMD’s focus (including air quality issues & climate change) 

on a regional level, but that it really impacts local communities, (2) the upcoming AQMD’s 

sales tax bill would be exempt from the sales tax cap, and (3) if the AQMD does not meet 

the required air quality standards by the next deadline in 2023, there is a risk of Federal 

sanctions, (4) Federal sanctions could result in the loss of billions of dollars in highway 

funding, stricter requirements for new businesses coming into areas, and a potential Federal 

takeover that could cause more draconian type of measures, such as no-drive days, 

business shut down days, etc., (5) AQMD is more focused on trying to incentivize as 

opposed to regulation, and (6) funding would be available for public and private projects so 

cities would likely be a major beneficiary. 

  

Mayor Delmar asked if anyone else would like to come forward to speak on this item.  Seeing no 

one, Mayor Delmar closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for 

discussion.  

 

Mayor Delmar asked that the City Council answer Policy Question #1 – “Should Sierra 

Madre join with other San Gabriel Valley cities in a coordinated effort to lobby the 

legislature to limit or eliminate further exemptions from the sales tax district cap?” 

 

 

Discussion occurred and there was consensus among the Council  to answer YES and, if there is a 

cost involved, to spend in proportion to our population, i.e. pay only Sierra Madre’s fair share. 

 



Page 15 of 16 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 3-26-2019 

 

Mayor Delmar asked that the City Council answer Policy Question #2 – “Should  

the  City Council support a sales tax measure in Sierra Madre in an attempt  

to eliminate LA County from permanently foreclosing on the City’s ability  

to collect and retain future sales tax revenues?” 

 

 

Discussion occurred and there was consensus among the Council to answer YES and were in favor 

of exploring a Citizen Initiative with the required signatures from 5% of the last gubernatorial 

election to have the initiative on a special election (signature deadline is May 17, 2019) even if it 

costs approximately $200,000, with the knowledge that there will be a need for the City to have new 

revenues in the future.  Council Members were in agreement that the sales tax initiative needs to be 

on the ballot sooner rather than later to avoid competing with a LA County sales tax measure. 

 

Council Members encouraged citizens to begin the process of a Citizen Initiative and gathering 

signatures, as this needs to happen quickly.  City Manager Engeland said that City Staff cannot be 

involved or advocate in any way for a Citizen Initiative and Staff can only provide factual answers to 

questions. 

 

City Attorney Highsmith shared that it is easy for a concerned citizen to borrow a ballot measure 

from the City of Barstow, which was successful in passing a local tax.  She said that City Council 

members, as private citizens and not through their official position, can participate in a Citizen 

Initiative process. 

 

Mayor Delmar summarized that the City Council was in agreement that a citizen’s group is going to 

collect the signatures of 5% of voters in the last gubernatorial election (who voted for governor) and 

request that a sales tax initiative be placed on the ballot for special election (November 2019).  

 

Mayor Delmar allowed Public Comment on this issue again.  

 

 Gary Hood, Sierra Madre, asked if a Citizen Initiative was begun, could the tax be 

earmarked for a special purpose and not the General Fund. 

 

City Manager Engeland said that would be possible, but that a special purpose tax requires a two-

thirds supermajority to pass, while a general-purpose tax only requires 50% + 1 to pass.  He said 

that the General Fund is essentially community services, fire, library, and police. 

 

 Pat Alcorn, Sierra Madre, asked what is the amount that a Citizen Initiative should ask for. 

 

Mayor Delmar said that the sales tax initiative would be limited to .75%, which would generate 

$215,000 annually for the SM General Fund. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if anyone else would like to come forward to speak on this item.  Seeing no 

one, Mayor Delmar closed Public Comment. 

 

In closing this item, Mayor Delmar invited interested residents (1) to call any of the City Council 

members for advice or help regarding a Citizen Initiative or (2) contact the Assistant City Clerk 

regarding questions about the process, timelines, and dates. 

 

NEW ITEMS PLACED FOR FUTURE AGENDA: 

 



Page 16 of 16 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 3-26-2019 

 

Mayor Delmar asked the members of the City Council if there are any new items for future meeting 

agendas. 

 

Council Members did not suggest any new items.   

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

Mayor Delmar asked for a motion to adjourn. 

 

Council Member Goss made a motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 

The motion to adjourn was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Members Rachelle 

Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss. 

 Noes:      None 

 Absent:   None 

 Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to adjourn was passed unanimously. 

 

THIS SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING WAS ADJOURNED at 8:59 p.m. to a 

Regular Meeting to be held on Tuesday, April 9, 2019, in the Sierra Madre City Hall Council Chambers. 

 

 

       _________________________________ 

   Denise Delmar, Mayor 

Minutes taken and prepared by: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Sue Spears, City Clerk   

 













































































































EXHIBIT A 

CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 19-08 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA  
MADRE PURSUANT TO SIERRA MADRE MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 17.66.040B 
(CALL FOR REVIEW) APPROVING THE DISCRETIONARY DEMOLITION PERMIT 

18-09 AND DESIGN REVIEW PERMIT 18-04 TO ALLOW DEMOLITION IN PART OR 
IN WHOLE OF ROOF STRUCTURE, EXTERIOR AND INTERIOR WALLS AND 

FRAMING FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 2,082-SQUARE-FOOT ADDITION TO THE 
EXISTING 2,577-SQUARE-FOOT ONE-STORY SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE; AND 

TO ALLOW ADDITIONS ONTO EXISTING PRIMARY STRUCTURES TO BE 
ALIGNED WITH THE EXISTING LEGALLY CONSTRUCTED SIDE YARD SETBACK 

OF THE PRIMARY STRUCTURE ON THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 91 EAST 
BONITA AVENUE  

 
 

WHEREAS, an application for a Discretionary Demolition Permit and Design 
Review Permit were filed by: 

 
Bryson Reaume 

91 East Bonita Ave 
Sierra Madre, CA  91024 

 
WHEREAS, the request for DISCRETIONARY DEMOLITION PERMIT 18-09 and 

DESIGN REVEW PERMIT 18-04 can be described as: 
 
A request to demolish in part or in whole the roof structure, exterior and interior walls and 
framing of the existing 2,577-square-foot primary house, storage shed and attached 2-
car garage ,pursuant to SMMC Section 17.60.056.C, no structure which was constructed 
seventy-five years or more prior to the date of application for review shall be demolished 
without a discretionary demolition permit; and to construction of 2,082-square-foot 
addition to the existing one-story single family residence; and to allow additions onto 
existing primary structures to be aligned with the existing legally constructed side yard 
setback of the primary structure.  Pursuant to SMMC Section 17.20.027.C.3, approval of 
a design review permit is required to allow gross floor area for all structures on a single 
lot that exceeds 3,500 square feet of floor area, either by addition or new construction, 
and SMMC 17.20.050.B.2.b, single story additions onto existing primary structures, which 
result in an increase in gross floor area of greater than fifty percent of the original 
structure, may be aligned with the existing legally constructed side yard setback of the 
primary structure, subject to the approval of a design review permit. 
 

WHEREAS, public hearings were held before the Planning Commission on 
February 7 and March 7, 2019 with all testimony received being made part of the public 
record; 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission received the reports and recommendations 

of staff, and at its meeting on March 7th, 2019, denied the request based on the finding 
provided in Planning Commission Resolution 19-02; 

 



WHEREAS, the matter was called up for review by two members of City Council 
pursuant to SMMC § 17.66.040B; 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed project qualifies for a Categorical Exemption, pursuant 
to CEQA Guidelines Sections 15061(b)(3), in that it can be seen with certainty that there 
is not a possibility that the project may have a significant effect on the environment and 
Guidelines Section 15301(e) Class 1 additions to Existing Facilities provided that the 
addition will not result in an increase of more than:  (1) 50 percent of the floor area of the 
structures before that addition, or 2,500 square feet, whichever is less; or (2) 10,000 
square feet if: (A) The project is in an area where all public services and facilities are 
available to allow for maximum development permissible in the General Plan; and (B) The 
area in which the project is located is in not environmentally sensitive. 
  
 WHEREAS, the proposed project qualifies for a Class 1 Categorical Exemption, 
pursuant to Section 15301 Class 1 (e) Addition to existing structures of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) in that it involves demolition, renovation and addition 
to one single family residence. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the evidence received at the hearing, and 

for the reasons discussed by the City Council at the April 9, 2019 public hearing, the City 
Council finds as follows: 

 
A. Pursuant to Code Section 17.60.056, the following findings can be made for 
approval of a Discretionary Demolition Permit:  

 
1. The structure proposed for demolition a) has no local, state or natural historic 

significance as determined by the historic resources survey pursuant to Code 
Section 17.60.056.D.1; or b) is deemed eligible for local listing or designation 
under the California Historic Resource Code 1 to 5, or a contributor to an 
existing or potential district, and all environmental review has been conducted 
and/or a historical resources evaluation report with identified mitigation 
measures has been prepared that will allow the project to proceed with a 
certificate of appropriateness, including, but not limited to construction of a 
replacement structure in substantially similar architectural style and façade, 
maintenance of a plaque, photographs and/or publication describing the 
original structure and its local, state or national historic value, or other 
mitigation measures described in the environmental review document; in that 
the historic resources evaluation report prepared by Sapphos Environmental Inc. in 
November 2018 concludes that the structure is deemed not eligible for listing in the 
National Register, California Register, or designation as a City Historic Landmark.  

2. That the proposed demolition activities will not unreasonably interfere with the 
use, possession, and enjoyment of surrounding and adjacent properties; in that 
demolition is being undertaken according to all applicable requirements for demolition, 
including limitation to construction hours.   

3. That there is a demonstrated need for the demolition activity requested; in that 
demolition of the roof, exterior and interior wall and framing is needed for the new 
addition and interior renovation. 



4. That the result of the demolition activity is consistent with the objectives of the 
General Plan; in that the demolition complies with all requirements of the R-1 (Single 
Family Residential) Zone which codifies and implements the objectives of the General 
Plan with respect to Residential Low Density development. 

5. That the public interest, convenience, and necessity require that the demolition 
activity be undertaken at the location requested; in that the demolition is required 
while meeting all requirements of the California Building Code, the City’s Fire Code 
and Zoning Code.   

B.  Pursuant to SMMC § 17.20.041D., the following findings can be made for 

approval of a Design Review Permit: 

 

1. The proposed project is consistent with the general plan, zoning code, and any 

applicable design standards; in that the proposed project’s use will remain single 

family residential, and is therefore consistent with the site’s current General Plan 

designation of Residential – Low Density. The project complies with General Plan 

Objective L6 in that the project protects the privacy of surrounding properties as the 

proposed structure remains a single-story building with front setback remaining as 

existing and aligned with neighboring structures, thereby minimizing obstruction of any 

mountain views.  

 

The legally constructed primary structure encroaches into the required side yard 

setback, and is therefore a legal non-conforming use as to the side yard setback. The 

project is proposing to align the new addition with the existing building walls.  Pursuant 

to Sierra Madre Municipal Code Section 17.20.050.B.2b, single-story additions onto 

existing primary structures, which result in an increase in gross floor area of greater 

than 50 percent of the original structure, may be aligned with the existing legally 

constructed side yard setback of the primary structure, subject to the approval of a 

design review permit.  The proposed alignment of the addition with the existing legal 

non-conforming side yard setbacks will not obstruct neighboring viewscapes.  Existing 

trees and foliage in the surrounding neighboring yards will negate the obstruction or 

privacy issues from north, east and west. 

 

2. The project will not unreasonably interfere with the use, possession, and 

enjoyment of surrounding adjacent properties; in that the proposed addition to the 

existing single-family residence was designed to maintain the Colonial Revival 

characteristics of the existing home. The proposed project will remain one-story with 

the majority of the additions located behind the existing residence providing the same 

number of bedrooms. There will be no additional impact on off-site parking. The 

project also complies with the development standards in the R-1 Ordinance in regards 

to allowable floor area, lot coverage, and angle plane etc. The house has a front 

setback of 50 feet and the rear yard setback is 77’-8”. Although the side yard setbacks 

are, 9’-3” and 12’-1” cumulatively 21’-4”, the proposed additions remain compatible to 

its neighboring properties and cannot be seen from the public view, therefore, will not 



interfere with the project use, possession, and enjoyment of surrounding adjacent 

properties. 

 

3. That the height, bulk, scale, mass, and siting of the proposed project be 

compatible with the existing neighborhood, landforms, and surroundings; in 

that, in terms of bulk, scale, and mass, the proposed project occupies 18.6% of the 

lot, the gross floor area and the height are below the requirement allowed by the 

Municipal Code. The neighborhood analysis (Exhibit C, Attachment 6) shows that the 

proposed square footage is consistent with the top one-third of the neighboring homes 

according to Assessor’s data. The propose project also protects the existing sycamore 

tree on the front yard and is compatible with the existing neighborhood and 

surroundings. The existing house is a single-story construction and the proposed 

addition maintains the front façade while adding no visible bulk or mass to the existing 

property, as the addition cannot be seen from the public view. 
 

4. That the proposed project reflects the scale of the neighborhood in which it is 

proposed and does not visually overpower or dominate the neighborhood and 

is not ill-proportioned so as to produce either architecture or design that 

detracts from foothill village setting; in that the additions onto existing single family 

home are consistent with the single story residential character of the adjacent 

neighborhood.  Moreover, the 18’-0” high structure is of a typical height for one-story 

residential structures, and below the maximum 25’-0” height allowed by the Municipal 

Code, so it will not visually overpower or impact the privacy of the neighboring 

properties.  The project design is well-proportioned relative to the site as well as to the 

foothill village setting of Sierra Madre, and will not overpower or dominate the 

neighborhood.  The addition maintains the visible scale of the existing house, as the 

addition cannot be seen from the public view. 

 

5. That the project neither unreasonably interferes with public views or the views 

and privacy of neighbors, produces unreasonable noise levels, nor causes 

material adverse impacts; in that the residence does not unreasonably interfere with 

public views or the views and privacy of neighbors as the 18’-0” height is typical for 

single story buildings and below the maximum height allowed by the Municipal Code. 

Existing trees and foliage in the surrounding neighboring yards will negate the 

obstruction or privacy issues.  

 

6. The proposed project exhibits a coherent project-wide design, and each 

structure or portion thereof (especially additions) on the site is compatible with 

other portions of the project, regardless of whether the same are publicly 

visible; in that the proposed design is inspired by Colonial Revival architectural 

detailing depicting supporting design elements including a brick chimney, evenly 

spaced columns that support the front porch,  false shutter, shingle siding and cross 

gable roof to achieve an overall coherent design that is consistent throughout. 

 



7. For proposed projects seeking relief from development standards, where 

allowed, to accommodate characteristics of an identifiable architectural style 

(such as additional height, pursuant to section 17.20.027(A)), that the proposed 

project adheres to the norms of such identifiable architectural style and that 

such style is consistently carried through on all elevations of the building, 

regardless of whether the same are publicly visible; in that the project proposes 

to apply the existing Colonial Revival design style, details and massing of the house 

to the rear addition; and whereas the Zoning Code allows the alignment of the addition 

with the existing legally constructed side yard setback of the primary structure. 

 

8. For proposed projects that require discretionary review due to exceeding size 

thresholds (pursuant to Sections 17.20.027(C), 17.30.045(B), (17.28.070(A)1 or 

similar), that the proposed is a superior project that would enhance its 

neighborhood and exhibit exceptional design through a combination of most, if 

not all, the following:  

 

a. Innovative, thoughtful and/or noteworthy architecture that is responsive to 

the specific site, rather than standard, or generic, or “cookie-cutter” plans; 

in that proposed project is thoughtful that it remains as a one-story structure, 

preserving the existing front façade of the house which has existed since 1942, 

and the rear additions are not visible from public view. The proposed project is also 

responsive to the existing site by protecting the existing sycamore tree, and 

maintaining the existing Colonial Revival architectural style design aesthetic. 

 

b. Where applicable, adaptive reuse or other preservation and restoration of 

historic structures; in that the finding is not applicable to the proposed project.  

 

c. Preservation of the natural landscape to the extent possible by such means 

as minimizing grade changes and retaining protected specimen trees; in that 

the proposed project is built on existing footprints, proposed front enclosure and 

rear additions are away from protected tree on site. Landscape Plan with planting 

specimen details. Furthermore, an arborist’s letter has been prepared to provide 

protective measures and recommended the infatuation basin to be 20 feet away 

from the sycamore tree.  

 

d. Siting of structure in keeping with landforms and so as to maximize open 

space, public views, and neighbor views and privacy; in that the proposed 

structure works with the landform, preserves the existing front yard and side yard 

setbacks, and occupies 18.6% of the lot. The low pitched, single story residence 

does not impede views and privacy of adjacent properties. 

 

e. High quality architectural details and building materials compatible with the 

overall project design; in that the project will be constructed in high quality 



material for the addition and renovation. The building material is complimentary to 

the design elements of the existing structure with references to white coursed 

wood shingle siding, decorative shutters, six over one double hung windows, 

exterior lantern lighting, carriage-style wood panel garage doors, clerestory 

circular window, and new shingle roof. The primary entryway is further enhanced 

with a portico supported by evenly spaced columns and incorporated sidelights 

flaking the doorway.   

 

f. Sustainable building and landscaping practices, especially water-saving 

features; in that the proposed project will comply with all applicable building codes 

to satisfy sustainable building and landscaping practices including the Low Impact 

Development standards and Water Efficient Landscape Ordinances.  The property 

will be landscaped using drought tolerant and native plants. 
 
C. PURSUANT TO THE ABOVE FINDINGS, IT IS RESOLVED that the City Council 

APPROVES Discretionary Demolition Permit 18-09 and Design Review Permit 18-04. 
 
The time in which to seek judicial review of this decision shall be governed by Code of 
Civil Procedure Section 1094.6.  The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this 
resolution, transmit copies of the same to the applicant and his counsel, if any, together 
with a proof of mailing in the form required by law and shall enter a certified copy of this 
resolution in the book of resolution of the City. 
 
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING DISCRETIONARY DEMOLITION PERMIT 18-09 and 
DESIGN REVIEW PERMIT APPROVED, the 9th Day of April 2019, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:    

NOES:   

ABSTAIN:   

ABSENT:   
 

 

      

      ________________________________ 

      Denise Delmar, Mayor 

      City of Sierra Madre 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Sue Spears, City Clerk 

 



I, Sue Spears, CITY CLERK OF THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE, hereby certify that the foregoing 

Resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Sierra Madre at a regular meeting held 

on the 9th Day of April, 2019. 

 

 _________________________________  

 Sue Spears, City Clerk   



CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
DISCRETIONARY DEMOLITION PERMIT 18-09 AND  

DESIGN REVIEW PERMIT 18-04 
 

 
General Conditions: 
 
The applicant and property owner shall: 
 
1. Comply with all applicable provisions of the Sierra Madre Municipal Code, 

including but not limited to those Chapters pertaining to Zoning, Building and 
Construction, Vehicles and Traffic, and Health and Safety, and including all such 
provisions which may be contained in Uniform Codes which have been 
incorporated by reference within the Sierra Madre Municipal Code. 

 
2. Comply with all applicable provisions of Federal, State and Los Angeles County 

law and regulations, including but not limited to the California Environmental 
Quality Act. 

 
3. Execute and deliver to the City’s Department of Development Services an Affidavit 

of Acceptance of Conditions on a form to be provided by such Department within 
ten business days of the date of this approval. This approval shall not be effective 
for any purpose until the Applicant complies with this condition. 
 

4. To the fullest extent permitted by law, fully protect the City, its employees, agents 
and officials from any loss, injury, damage, claim, lawsuit, expense, attorneys’ 
fees, litigation expenses, court costs or any other costs arising out of or in any way 
related to the issuance of this approval, or the activities conducted pursuant to this 
approval. Accordingly, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the applicant and 
property owner shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless City, its employees, 
agents and officials, from and against any liability, claims, suits, actions, arbitration 
proceedings, regulatory proceedings, losses, expenses or costs of any kind, 
whether actual, alleged or threatened, including, but not limited to, actual attorneys’ 
fees, litigation expenses and court costs of any kind without restriction or limitation, 
incurred in relation to, as a consequence of, arising out of or in any way attributable 
to, actually, allegedly or impliedly, in whole or in part, the issuance of this approval, 
or the activities conducted pursuant to this approval. Applicant and property owner 
shall pay such obligations as they are incurred by City, its employees, agents and 
officials, and in the event of any claim or lawsuit, shall submit a deposit in such 
amount as the City reasonably determines necessary to protect the City from 
exposure to fees, costs or liability with respect to such claim or lawsuit. 

 
Planning Conditions 

The applicant and property owner shall: 
 
1. Construct the project in substantial conformance with approved Design Review 

Permit 18-04 and supporting materials presented to the City Council on April 9, 
2019.  Inaccuracies and misrepresentations will be grounds for immediate 



revocation of the Conditional Use Permit. 
 

2. Submit framing plan of the of the replacement structure, for 1st Plan Check within 
one (1) year of the date of this approval; failure to do so will constitute an 
abandonment of the entitlement, and shall render this approval null and void. 
 

3. Applicant shall comply with the requirements of the Water Efficient Landscape 

Ordinance. 

 
Public Works Conditions: 
 
The applicant and property owner shall: 
 
1. The arborist report shall describe proposed pruning impacts that will be required 

for the construction of the new structure. 

2. Provide an arborist’s report shall clearly delineate a path of travel for vehicular and 
construction access to the three buildings. The path of travel shall be respectful of 
the fenced areas, low branches, and root protection zones of the protected trees; 

3. Complete the application for review of construction activities in proximity to 
protected trees; 

4. Review the mitigation guide for protected trees; 

5. All tree protective recommendations included in the arborist’s report shall be 
followed throughout the construction process; 

6. Prior to issuance of a building permit, applicant shall submit to Public Works a fully 
executed agreement with the arborist fully describing the arborist’s construction 
monitoring services and preparation of the arborist’s final report as to the impacts 
on the protected trees; 

7. Review the procedures for demolition of a building; 

8. Review the minimum requirements for construction plans, grading and drainage 
plans and LID requirements; 

9. List of forms to be filled out and submitted for approval; 

10. Construction fence shall be off set from the property line not to interfere with 
sidewalk pedestrian traffic during construction. 

11. The addition floor space exceeds 500 square feet, therefore Low Impact 
Development (LID) standards apply to the entire project. A grading and drainage 
plan will therefore be required. 

12. As of today’s date, much of the front and rear yard area is loose, disturbed soil 
which is subject to wind and storm water erosion. An erosion control plan must be 
prepared by a licensed civil engineer and submitted to the public works department 



for approval prior to issuance of any permits. 

13. The revised site shall not redirect, concentrate or increase drainage across 
adjoining private properties. 

14. All trees on and adjacent and overhanging the project site must be shown on the 
site plan, labeled as to diameter at breast height and species. The trees shall be 
plotted accurately to scale as measured in the field, and the drip line of each tree 
within the subject property shall be measured in the field at eight points of the 
compass and drawn to scale. 

15. Elevation drawings shall be submitted demonstrating encroachment of new 
structures upon existing protected trees. 

16. All buildings shall be connected to the public sewer.  

17. Driveway approach to be added and abandoned drive approaches to be replaced with 
curb and gutter, PW permit required.  

18. Parkway trees shall be raised to meet City Municipal Code standards, crowns thinner 
per international Society of Arboriculture standards, and trees shall be evaluated by 
city staff prior to any improvements. 

19. Additional conditions may be determined following a complete submittal. 

Fire Department Conditions: 
 
The applicant and property owner shall: 
 
1. Install fire sprinklers in the proposed structures. 

 
 

           (end of conditions) 



clin
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B











CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 1 

PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 2 

Regular Meeting of 3 

Thursday, March 7, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. 4 

City Council Chambers, 232 W. Sierra Madre Blvd. 5 

 6 

 7 

CALL TO ORDER  8 

 9 

 Chair Hutt called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 10 

 11 

ROLL CALL    12 

 13 

Present: Chair Hutt, Vice Chair Denison, Commissioners Catalano, Pevsner, 14 

Spears 15 

Absent:  Commissioner Desai 16 
 17 
Staff:  Vincent Gonzalez, Director of Planning and Community Preservation 18 

 Clare Lin, Associate Planner 19 

 Jennifer Peterson, Administrative Analyst 20 

 Terri Highsmith, City Attorney 21 

 22 

 23 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 24 

Commissioner Spears moved to approve the agenda.  Commissioner Catalano 25 

seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.   26 

 27 

REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION 28 

City Attorney Highsmith reported that no action was taken.  29 

 30 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 21, 2019 31 

Commissioner Catalano moved to approve the minutes.   Vice Chair Denison seconded.  32 

Motion carried 4.0 with Commissioner Pevsner abstaining due to his absence.  33 

 34 

AUDIENCE COMMENTS 35 

 36 

David Gordon  37 

460 Fairview 38 

Mr. Gordon inquired if the Planning Commission will be reviewing any of the Kersting 39 

Ct. proposals.  40 

 41 

Director Gonzalez stated that he will reach out to the Community Services Department 42 

to see if the Planning Commission is on calendar for a presentation. 43 

 44 

Deb Sheridan  45 

Valle Vista Dr.  46 

Ms. Sheridan inquired about two building projects that she felt were too large for their 47 

respective neighborhoods.  48 



Planning Commission Minutes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Page 2 
March 7, 2019 

Anne Chesterman 49 

Brookside Ln. 50 

Ms. Chesterman spoke about the same projects as Ms. Sheridan, stating that both 51 

projects seem to be taking up 80% of the lot.   52 

 53 

PUBLIC HEARING 54 

 55 

1. DISCRETIONARY DEMOLITION PERMIT 18-09 (DDP 18-09) AND DESIGN 56 

REVIEW PERMIT 18-04 (DRP 18-04) 57 

91 E. Bonita Ave.  58 

Applicant: Bryson Reaume 59 

 60 

Associate Planner Lin delivered the Staff Report and Power Point presentation.   61 

 62 

Chair Hutt noted that the Commission had received a number of letters in support of the 63 

project from neighbors. 64 

 65 

Bryson Reaume 66 

Applicant 67 

Mr. Reaume shared his qualifications and history of the project. 68 

 69 

Chair Hutt clarified that the project has not changed since the last meeting. 70 

Mr. Reaume stated that he was not given clear direction for revision at the last meeting. 71 

Chair Hutt clarified that the applicant is requesting a vote tonight, which Mr. Reaume 72 

confirmed.   73 

 74 

Marguerite Schuster  75 

Mt. Wilson Trail 76 

Ms. Schuster spoke against the project.  77 

 78 

Discussion 79 

 80 

Commissioner Spears stated that he could not see the colonial style or true 81 

preservation of the existing structure.  He stated that he did not hear in the staff report 82 

about any architectural details that qualify as exceptional design. Commissioner Spears 83 

also stated that he did not hear the applicant’s defense of exceptional design, therefore 84 

he was unable to make that finding. 85 

 86 

Commissioner Denison stated that he has an issue with the request for setback 87 

requirement relief, therefore he could not make the finding.   He stated also that he felt 88 

that putting a new veneer on a cookie cutter house does not qualify as exceptional 89 

design and therefore could not make the finding.  90 

 91 

Commissioner Catalano acknowledged the support letters.   He stated that he is okay 92 

with the demolition, but cannot make the findings for design review.  Commissioner 93 

Catalano felt that the set back is the primary issue. He also stated that he has less of a 94 

problem with the facade, rather than the design quality.   95 

 96 



Planning Commission Minutes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Page 3 
March 7, 2019 

Commissioner Pevsner stated that he was not present at original review. He stated that 97 

the setback is a challenge, but the Colonial style is okay.  98 

 99 

Chair Hutt stated that he is unable to make the findings for a number of reasons.  He 100 

stated that he is okay with the demolition as the property is not historic and no 101 

preservation is necessary and referenced the Historic Resource Report which indicated 102 

that this was an “average house.” Chair Hutt felt that the design of the proposed project 103 

was not exceptional, and that the extension of the addition along the same building 104 

plane without providing the required cumulative side yard setback is not ok.  He stated 105 

that he is unable to make the finding that this project is an exceptional design.  106 

 107 

Action: Commissioner Denison moved to deny Discretionary Demolition Permit 108 

18-09 and Design Review Permit 18-04.  Commissioner Spears seconded.  Motion 109 

carried unanimously.   110 

 111 

 112 

2. DISCRETIONARY DEMOLITION PERMIT 19-02 (DDP 19-02), DESIGN REVIEW 113 

PERMIT 19-01 (DRP 19-01), AND VARIANCE 19-01 (VAR 19-01) 114 

535 Hermosa Ave.  115 

Applicant: Michael Ying, Breland-Harper Architects 116 

 117 

Director Gonzalez delivered the Staff Report 118 

 119 

Applicant 120 

Detailed the history and scope of the project 121 

 122 

Chair Hutt inquired if there is not net add in square footage, than a Design Review 123 

Permit would not be required.  124 

City Attorney Highsmith confirmed that a Design Review Permit is not required if no net 125 

add square footage.   126 

 127 

Deb Sheridan 128 

Valle Vista Dr. 129 

Ms. Sheridan stated that her main concern is the vine.  130 

 131 

Applicant 132 

Assured that the vine will be protected, and that they are trying to get ready for the 133 

festival.  134 

 135 

Discussion 136 

 137 

Chair Spears acknowledged that the vine limits the options on the property, with 138 

additions, exposure and parking. 139 

Chair Spears stated that he could make the findings.  140 

 141 

Commissioner Denison was in favor of the design, and that he wants to find a way to 142 

approve, but that the challenge is the parking space.  Commissioner Denison expressed 143 



Planning Commission Minutes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Page 4 
March 7, 2019 

concern with getting a fire engine up and down the street.  Commissioner Denison 144 

stated that if not for the vine that he would not be able to recommend approval.   145 

 146 

Commissioner Catalano stated that his main concern is the parking.   147 

 148 

Chair Hutt stated that it is hard to make the variance findings, however, the presence of 149 

the vine gets me there.  150 

 151 

The Commission discussed the option of replacement of the Variance with a Minor 152 

Conditional Use Permit.   The Commission reviewed the findings for the Minor 153 

Conditional Use permit, and agreed by consensus that a Minor Conditional Use Permit 154 

would be more appropriate for this project.   155 

 156 

ACTION – Commissioner Denison moved to approve Discretionary Demolition Permit 157 

19-02, Design Review Permit 19-01 and Minor Conditional Use Permit. Commissioner 158 

Spears seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 159 

 160 

Oral Communication 161 

 162 

Audience 163 

 164 

None 165 

 166 

Planning Commission 167 

 168 

Commissioner Denison raised Accessory Dwelling Unit / Air BnB concerns.  169 

Chair Hutt reminded the Commissioner that their Form 700 is due by April 1, 2019.  170 

The Commission discussed their availability for second meeting in March and the first 171 

meeting in April.   172 

 173 

Staff 174 

 175 

Director Gonzalez stated that there is one item on the agenda for March 21, 2019 176 

 177 

Chair Hutt adjourned the meeting at 9:30 p.m.   178 

 179 

 180 

______________________________________ 181 

Secretary to the Planning Commission 182 

Vincent Gonzalez, Director of Planning & Community Preservation 183 

 184 

 185 
 186 



  

1, 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE: March 7, 2019  
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Vincent Gonzalez, Director 
 
PREPARED BY:  Clare Lin, Associate Planner 
  
 
SUBJECT: Discretionary Demolition Permit 18-09 (DDP 18-09) and Design Review 

Permit 18-04 (DRP 18-04) to allow demolition in part or in whole of roof 
structure, exterior and interior walls and framing for the construction 
of a 2,082-square-foot addition including a detached pool house to the 
existing 2,577-square-foot one-story single family residence; and to 
allow additions onto existing primary structures to be aligned with the 
existing legally constructed side yard setback of the primary structure 
on the property located at 91 East Bonita Avenue 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve Discretionary Demolition 
Permit 18-09 and Design Review Permit 18-04 pursuant to Planning Commission 
Resolution 19-02, subject to the conditions of approval. 
 
ALTERNATIVES 

1. Approve the request for Discretionary Demolition Permit 18-09 and Design Review 
Permit 18-04, pursuant to Planning Commission Resolution 19-02, subject to the 
conditions of approval; 

2. Approve the request for Discretionary Demolition Permit 18-09 and Design Review 
Permit 18-04 with modifications; 

3. Deny the request for Discretionary Demolition Permit 18-09 and Design Review Permit 
18-04 citing the reasons and findings for denial; 

4. Continue the subject project, and provide direction to staff and applicant. 

 

 
Planning Commission  

STAFF REPORT 

John Hutt, Chair 
Thomas Denison, Vice-Chair 
Joseph Catalano, Commissioner 
Manish Desai, Commissioner 
William Pevsner, Commissioner 
Bob Spears, Commissioner 
 
Vincent Gonzalez, Director  

Planning & Community Preservation  

clin
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT C



DDP 18-09 / DRP 18-04 
March 7, 2019 
Page 2 

 

 

 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The applicant, Bryson Reaume, is requesting that the Planning Commission consider 
Discretionary Demolition Permit 18-09 (DDP 18-09) to demolish in part or in whole the 
roof structure, exterior and interior walls and framing of the existing 2,577-square-foot 
primary structure (house), storage shed and attached 525-square-foot two-car garage; 
and Design Review Permit 18-04 (DRP 18-04) to allow the construction of a 2,082-
square-foot house addition including a 564-square-foot detached pool house onto the 
existing one-story single family residence; and allow the additions to be aligned with the 
existing legally constructed primary structure that encroaches into the required side yard 
setback. Total proposed floor area to be 5,184 square feet. 
 
Pursuant to SMMC Section 17.60.056.C, no structure which was constructed seventy-
five years or more prior to the date of application for review shall be demolished without 
a discretionary demolition permit. Pursuant to SMMC Section 17.20.027.C.3, approval of 
a design review permit is required to allow gross floor area for all structures on a single 
lot that exceeds 3,500 square feet of floor area, either by addition or new construction, 
and SMMC 17.20.050.B.2.b, single story additions onto existing primary structures, which 
result in an increase in gross floor area of greater than fifty percent of the original 
structure, may be aligned with the existing legally constructed side yard setback of the 
primary structure, subject to the approval of a design review permit. 
 
At the February 7, 2019 meeting, the Planning Commission continued this matter to a 
date uncertain. Applicant has returned the project without any modification. Applicant is 
requesting that the Planning Commission vote accordingly. 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve Discretionary Demolition 
Permit 18-09 and Design Review Permit 18-03 pursuant to Planning Commission 
Resolution 19-02, subject to the conditions of approval.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The subject property is a 27,740-square-foot rectangular lot located in the R-1 Zone 
(Single Family Residential) with a General Plan Land Use Designation of RL (Residential 
Low Density). The property is bounded by R-1 Residential uses. The adjacent properties 
to the north, east, and south are one-story residences, and properties to the west and 
southwest are two-story residences. The average floor area of the neighboring properties 
is 3,068 square feet, and the top one-third of the homes have an average of 4,307 square 
feet.  The Assessor’s data excludes the garage floor area from the neighborhood analysis 
calculation which is included herein as Exhibit C, Attachment 6.   
 
The existing property has a single-story 2,577-square-foot structure and an attached 525-
square-foot two-car garage built in 1942. In November of 2018, a Historical Resources 



DDP 18-09 / DRP 18-04 
March 7, 2019 
Page 3 

 

 

 
 

Aerial View of 91 E. Bonita Ave. 
(Property outlined in Red) 

Evaluation Report (Report) were 
prepared by Sapphos Environmental 
Inc., included herein as Exhibit C, 
Attachment 7.  The Report 
determined the property is ineligible 
for listing in the National Register, 
California Register or designation as 
a City Historic Landmark; and the 
proposed renovation project to the 
existing structure’s potential impacts 
are less than significant. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROPOSED PROJECT 
 
The proposed project involves the demolition in part or in whole of roof structure, exterior 
and interior walls, framing, sun room and laundry room, of the existing single story, single 
family residence to allow the construction of a 2,082-square-foot addition including: 1) an 
enclosure of a recessed area of the primary façade; 2) two new additions onto the rear of 
the building; 3) a new detached 564-square-feet pool house that will not be visible from 
public view; 4) roof of the enlarged garage altered with front-facing gabled roof with round 
window accent in the gable. Total proposed new floor area is 4,588 square feet with new 
596-square-foot garage. The proposed additions are aligned with the existing building in 
the front and sides. The proposed two rear additions is aligned to the side of existing 
nonconforming structure which increases the degree of nonconformity to the side yard 
setback requirement; however, the rear addition cannot be seen from public view.  SMMC 
allows additions onto an existing structure to be aligned with the legal constructed 
structure subject to the approval of Design Review Permit.  
 
Pursuant to Sierra Madre Municipal Code Section 17.20.027.C.3, a Design Review Permit 
is required to allow any new construction with allowable gross floor area for all structures 
on a single lot that exceeds 3,500 square feet of floor area. Pursuant to Sierra Madre 
Municipal Code Section 17.20.050.B.2.b, single story additions onto existing primary 
structures, which result in an increase in gross floor area of greater than fifty percent of 
the original structure, may be aligned with existing legally constructed side yard setback 
of the primary structure, subject to the approval of a design review permit. 
 
The proposed residence includes 4 bedrooms, 3 bathrooms, powder room, living room, 
dining room, kitchen, and den with a new detached pool house. Pool house includes a 
changing room and a bathroom set back 120 feet from the front property line.  The existing 
2-car garage will be enlarged by 71 square feet. The overall height of the primary structure 



DDP 18-09 / DRP 18-04 
March 7, 2019 
Page 4 

 

 

 
 

is 18’-0” with a cross gable roof configuration. The front yard setback remains at 50 feet, 
in compliance with the prevailing front yard setback calculation for the linear block. The 
side yard setbacks of 9,-3” and 12’-1” are aligned with existing primary structure, in sum, 
providing 21’-4” (20%) of cumulative side yard. The applicant is seeking relief from the 
requirement of cumulative side yard setback dimension of not less than (30%) of the width 
of the lot, totaling 31’-10”.  The rear yard setback is 77’-8”, which is more than the required 
15 feet.  
 
The existing residence is designed in Colonial Revival architectural style. The proposed 
project intends to maintain the single-story volume of the structure while enhancing the 
Colonial Revival architectural treatments.  Those treatments include replacing the 
supporting square posts of the street facing portico with new round columns, exterior walls 
reclad with coursed wood shingle siding, windows replaced with six over one within the 
existing openings. Front entryway with Chippendale-style broken pediment wood will be 
widened to incorporate sidelights flanking the doorway. The garage with side gable will 
be altered with a street facing gable with clearstory round window inset at the apex of the 
gable. The new roof will be charcoal asphalt shingles. The pool house will be simple 
exposed rafter and gable roof construction with shed roof on one side. The overall 
massing of the building is compatible and in proportion to other houses in the 
neighborhood. The existing structure will remain a single-story residence with low pitched 
roof, thereby minimizing privacy issues for neighbors.  
 
A neighborhood analysis (Exhibit C, Attachment 6) has been conducted on the 18 
properties that were notified within a 300-foot radius with Assessor’s data. The analysis 
indicates that the proposed 4,588 square footage is 281 square feet greater than the 
average top one-third of the neighboring homes at 4,307 square feet, excluding non-
habitable floor area. The site plan, building elevations sections, site photographs, and 
perspective renderings are attached herein as Exhibit C, Attachment 2, 3, 5 and 10. 
 
Arborist Letter 
 
An arborist review letter has been prepared by McKinley & Associates, Certified Arborist, 
to assess the viability of the proposed additions in relation to an existing sycamore tree. 
The existing structure is located approximately 10 feet from the margin of the sycamore 
tree’s trunk. It is the opinion of the arborist that the sycamore tree can be protected in 
place in the context of the proposed design. The certified arborist’s direction and the tree 
protection plan should be followed to include: Installing a 6 foot chain-link T-Panel fence 
at dripline of the tree until construction has been completed; avoid excavation within the 
dripline of the tree; remove any construction equipment, storage, and material within the 
dripline as illustrated in the landscape plan herein as Exhibit C, Attachment 12. The 
arborist also reviewed Low Impact Development plans and recommend the infiltration 
basin to be relocated to at least 20 feet from the east property line. Low Impact 
Development Plan and Conceptual Water Efficient Landscape plan is attached herein for 
reference as Exhibit C, Attachment 9; Sheet C-1 and LI.2. 
 



DDP 18-09 / DRP 18-04 
March 7, 2019 
Page 5 

 

 

 
 

 
PROJECT SUMMARY 

 
 

Category 
 

Existing 
 

 
Proposed  

 
Code 

Requirement /          
Allowed 

  

 
Meets 
Code 

 
Lot size 

 

 
27,740 sf  

approximately  
(118’-7” wide X 233’ 

deep) 

 
No Change 

  
7,500 (minimum) 

 
Yes 

 
Lot Coverage 
 

 
12% 

 
18.7% 

 
Not to exceed 

40% 

 
Yes 

 
Building Height 

 
18’-0”  

 
18’-0”  

 
25 feet  

 
Yes 

Gross Floor Area  3,102 sq. ft.  5,184 sq. ft.  5,508 sq. ft.  Yes 

 
Building Setbacks:  
 
Front 
 
Sides 
 
   East 
 
 
   West 
 
 
Rear 
 

 
 
 

50’-0” 
 

Cumulative 
21’-4” (20%) 

 
12’-1” 

 
9’-3” 

 
 

145’-4” 

 
 
 

50’-0” 
 
 
 
 

No Change 
 

No Change 
 
 

77’-8” 

 
 
 

50 feet 
 

Cumulative 
31’-10” (30%) 

 
10’-0” 

 
21’-10” 

 
 

15 feet  

 
 
 

Yes 
 

No* 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Yes 

 
 
 
Parking 

2-car garage 2-car garage 

 
2 spaces per 

dwelling unit in a 
garage or carport 
for dwelling units 
with maximum of 
four bedrooms 

 

 
 
 

Yes 

*Applicant is applying for a Design Review Permit to align to the side yard setback of the existing structure. 
Parcel lot width and side yard calculation is attached herein as Exhibit B. 
 
  



DDP 18-09 / DRP 18-04 
March 7, 2019 
Page 6 

 

 

 
 

ANALYSIS 
 
FINDINGS FOR DISCRETIONARY DEMOLITION PERMIT  
 

Pursuant to Code Section 17.60.056, approval of a Discretionary Demolition Permit 
requires that the following findings be made:  

 
1. The structure proposed for demolition a) has no local, state or natural historic 

significance as determined by the historic resources survey pursuant to Code 
Section 17.60.056.D.1; or b) is deemed eligible for local listing or designation 
under the California Historic Resource Code 1 to 5, or a contributor to an 
existing or potential district, and all environmental review has been conducted 
and/or a historical resources evaluation report with identified mitigation 
measures has been prepared that will allow the project to proceed with a 
certificate of appropriateness, including, but not limited to construction of a 
replacement structure in substantially similar architectural style and façade, 
maintenance of a plaque, photographs and/or publication describing the 
original structure and its local, state or national historic value, or other 
mitigation measures described in the environmental review document; in that 
the historic resources evaluation report prepared by Sapphos Environmental Inc. in 
November 2018 concludes that the structure is deemed not eligible for listing in the 
National Register, California Register, or designation as a City Historic Landmark.  

2. That the proposed demolition activities will not unreasonably interfere with the 
use, possession, and enjoyment of surrounding and adjacent properties; in that 
demolition is being undertaken according to all applicable requirements for demolition, 
including limitation to construction hours.   

3. That there is a demonstrated need for the demolition activity requested; in that 
demolition of the roof, exterior and interior wall and framing is needed for the new 
addition and interior renovation. 

4. That the result of the demolition activity is consistent with the objectives of the 
General Plan; in that the demolition complies with all requirements of the R-1 (Single 
Family Residential) Zone which codifies and implements the objectives of the General 
Plan with respect to Residential Low Density development. 

5. That the public interest, convenience, and necessity require that the demolition 
activity be undertaken at the location requested; in that the demolition is required 
while meeting all requirements of the California Building Code, the City’s Fire Code 
and Zoning Code.   

  



DDP 18-09 / DRP 18-04 
March 7, 2019 
Page 7 

 

 

 
 

DESIGN REVIEW PERMIT FINDINGS: 
 

The granting of a Design Review Permit is subject to the following findings pursuant to 
Code Section17.60.041.D:  
 

1.  The proposed project is consistent with the general plan, zoning code, and 

any applicable design standards; in that the proposed project’s use will remain single 

family residential, and is therefore consistent with the site’s current General Plan 

designation of Residential – Low Density. The project complies with General Plan 

Objective L6 in that the project protects the privacy of surrounding properties as the 

proposed structure remains a single-story building with front setback remaining as 

existing and aligned with neighboring structures, thereby minimizing obstruction of any 

mountain views.  

 

The legally constructed primary structure encroaches into the required side yard setback. 

The project is proposing to align the new addition with the existing building walls.  

Pursuant to Sierra Madre Municipal Code Section 17.20.050.B.2b, single-story additions 

onto existing primary structures, which result in an increase in gross floor area of greater 

than 50 percent of the original structure, may be aligned with the existing legally 

constructed side yard setback of the primary structure, subject to the approval of a design 

review permit.   

 

2. The project will not unreasonably interfere with the use, possession, and 

enjoyment of surrounding adjacent properties; in that the proposed addition to the 

existing single family residence was designed to maintain the Colonial Revival 

characteristics of the existing home. The proposed project will remain one-story with the 

majority of the additions located behind the existing residence providing the same number 

of bedrooms. There will be no additional impact on off-site parking. The project also 

complies with the development standards in the R-1 Ordinance in regards to allowable 

floor area, lot coverage, and angle plane etc. The house has a front setback of 50 feet 

and the rear yard setback is 77’-8”. Although the side yard setbacks are, 9’-3” and 12’-1” 

cumulatively 21’-4”, the proposed additions remain compatible to its neighboring 

properties and cannot be seen from the public view, therefore, will not interfere with the 

project use, possession, and enjoyment of surrounding adjacent properties. 

 

3. That the height, bulk, scale, mass, and siting of the proposed project be 

compatible with the existing neighborhood, landforms, and surroundings; in that, 

in terms of bulk, scale, and mass, the proposed project occupies 18.6% of the lot, the 

gross floor area and the height are below the requirement allowed by the Municipal Code. 

The neighborhood analysis (Exhibit C, Attachment 6) shows that the proposed square 

footage is consistent with the top one-third of the neighboring homes according to 



DDP 18-09 / DRP 18-04 
March 7, 2019 
Page 8 

 

 

 
 

Assessor’s data. The propose project also protects the existing sycamore tree on the front 

yard and is compatible with the existing neighborhood and surroundings.  
 

4. That the proposed project reflects the scale of the neighborhood in which it 

is proposed and does not visually overpower or dominate the neighborhood and 

is not ill-proportioned so as to produce either architecture or design that detracts 

from foothill village setting; in that the additions onto existing single family home are 

consistent with the single story residential character of the adjacent neighborhood.  

Moreover, the 18’-0” high structure is of a typical height for one-story residential 

structures, and below the maximum 25’-0” height allowed by the Municipal Code, so it will 

not visually overpower or impact the privacy of the neighboring properties.  The project 

design is well-proportioned relative to the site as well as to the foothill village setting of 

Sierra Madre, and will not overpower or dominate the neighborhood. 

 

5. That the project neither unreasonably interferes with public views or the 

views and privacy of neighbors, produces unreasonable noise levels, nor causes 

material adverse impacts; in that the residence does not unreasonably interfere with 

public views or the views and privacy of neighbors as the 18’-0” height is typical for single 

story buildings and below the maximum height allowed by the Municipal Code. Existing 

trees and foliage in the surrounding neighboring yards will negate the obstruction or 

privacy issues.  

 

6. The proposed project exhibits a coherent project-wide design, and each 

structure or portion thereof (especially additions) on the site is compatible with 

other portions of the project, regardless of whether the same are publically visible; 

in that the proposed design is inspired by Colonial Revival architectural detailing depicting 

supporting design elements including a brick chimney, evenly spaced columns that 

support the front porch,  false shutter, shingle siding and cross gable roof to achieve an 

overall coherent design that is consistent throughout. 

 

7. For proposed projects seeking relief from development standards, where 

allowed, to accommodate characteristics of an identifiable architectural style (such 

as additional height, pursuant to section 17.20.020(A)), that the proposed project 

adheres to the norms of such identifiable architectural style and that such style is 

consistently carried through on all elevations of the building, regardless of whether 

the same are publically visible; in that the project proposes to apply the existing 

Colonial Revival design style, details and massing of the house to the rear addition; and 

whereas the Zoning Code allows the alignment of the addition with the existing legally 

constructed side yard setback of the primary structure. 

 



DDP 18-09 / DRP 18-04 
March 7, 2019 
Page 9 

 

 

 
 

8. For proposed projects that require discretionary review due to exceeding 

size thresholds (pursuant to Sections 17.20.025(C), 17.30.040(B) or similar), that the 

proposed is a superior project that would enhance its neighborhood and exhibit 

exceptional design through a combination of most, if not all, the following:  

 

a. Innovative, thoughtful and/or noteworthy architecture that is responsive to 

the specific site, rather than standard, or generic, or “cookie-cutter” plans; 

in that proposed project is thoughtful that it remains as a one-story structure and 

the rear additions are not visible from public view. The proposed project is also 

responsive to the existing site by protecting the existing sycamore tree, and 

maintaining the existing Colonial Revival architectural style design aesthetic. 

 

b. Where applicable, adaptive reuse or other preservation and restoration of 

historic structures; in that the finding is not applicable to the proposed project.  

 

c. Preservation of the natural landscape to the extent possible by such means 

as minimizing grade changes and retaining protected specimen trees; in that 

the proposed project is built on existing footprints, proposed front enclosure and 

rear additions are away from protected tree on site. Landscape Plan with planting 

specimen details is attached herein as Exhibit C, Attachment 9.  Furthermore, an 

arborist’s letter has been prepared to provide protective measures and 

recommended the infatuation basin to be 20 feet away from the sycamore tree.  

 

d. Siting of structure in keeping with landforms and so as to maximize open 

space, public views, and neighbor views and privacy; in that the proposed 

structure works with the landform, preserves the existing front yard and side yard 

setbacks, and occupies 18.6% of the lot. The low pitched, single story residence 

does not impede views and privacy of adjacent properties. 

 

e. High quality architectural details and building materials compatible with the 

overall project design; in that the project will be constructed in high quality 

material for the addition and renovation. The building material is complimentary to 

the design elements of the existing structure with references to white coursed 

wood shingle siding, decorative shutters, six over one double hung windows, 

exterior lantern lighting, carriage-style wood panel garage doors, clerestory 

circular window, and new shingle roof. The primary entryway is further enhanced 

with a portico supported by evenly spaced columns and incorporated sidelights 

flaking the doorway.   

 



DDP 18-09 / DRP 18-04 
March 7, 2019 
Page 10 

 

 

 
 

f. Sustainable building and landscaping practices, especially water-saving 

features; in that the proposed project will comply with all applicable building codes 

to satisfy sustainable building and landscaping practices including the Low Impact 

Development standards and Water Efficient Landscape Ordinances.  The property 

will be landscaped using drought tolerant and native plants included herein as 

Exhibit C, Attachment 9. 
 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE PROCESS 
 
This item has been noticed through the regular agenda notification process. Copies of 
this report are available at the City Hall public counter, the Sierra Madre Public Library, 
and on the City’s website. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL 
 
The proposed project qualifies for a Class 1 Categorical Exemption, pursuant to Section 
15301 Class 1 (e) Addition to existing structures of the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) in that it involves demolition, renovation and addition to one single family 
residence. 
 
Exhibit A: Planning Commission Resolution 19-02 
Exhibit B: Parcel lot width and side yard calculation 
Exhibit C: Attachments from Planning Commission Meeting February 7, 2019 (12) 
 

Attachment 1: Planning Application and Narrative 
Attachment 2: Plans, Elevations and Section 

Attachment 3: Site Photographs 

Attachment 4: Reference to digital files 

Attachment 5: Color Renderings 

Attachment 6: Vicinity Map and Neighborhood Analysis 

Attachment 7: Historic Evaluation Resources Reports 
Attachment 8: Site Survey 
Attachment 9: Conceptual Landscape Plans and LID Plan 
Attachment 10: 3D Rendering 
Attachment 11: Material Board 
Attachment 12: Arborist Letter and Prevailing Front Yard Setback Calculation 

 



ATTACHMENT 1: 

PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND NARRATIVE 

  





































































ATTACHMENT 2: 

PLANS, ELEVATIONS AND SECTIONS 

  



Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N

1
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

 9
:1

4
:0

3
 A

M

G00

COVER SHEET

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

VICINITY MAP

DRAWING INDEX

GENERAL

G00 COVER SHEET

G30 TITLE 24 REPORT - ADDITION

G31 TITLE 24 REPORT - ADU

CIVIL

C00 SURVEY

ARCHITECTURAL

A10 PROPOSED SITE PLAN & AREA PLAN

A11 EXISTING FLOOR PLAN AND ROOF PLAN

A12 DEMO FLOOR PLAN AND ROOF PLAN

A13 PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN

A14 POOL HOUSE FLOOR PLAN

A16 PROPOSED ROOF PLAN

A20 ELEVATIONS

A21 POOL HOUSE ELEVATIONS AND SECTIONS

A30 SECTIONS

A31 SECTIONS

A80 SCHEDULES

PERSPECTIVE SCOPE OF WORK

1. REMODEL AND ADDITION OF (E) S.F.D
2. NEW REAR DECK
3. NEW POOL HOUSE

PROJECT DATA

HISTORIC: NO

A.P.N.: 5767-037-040

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

RE SURVEY OF THE G B DAVIS TRACT LOT COM
W ON N LINE OF BONITA AVE 90 FT FROM
MOST S COR OF LOT 3 TR NO 25185 TH N 3¢
06'30" E 25.05 FT TH N 20¢25'13" E 33
... SEE MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION ...
15" W TO SD N LINE TH E THEREON TO BEG

ZONING: R-1-15 (ONE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL, MIN. 15,000)

TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION: V-B

ZONING: 
R-1 - RESIDENTIAL 

LOT SIZE: 27,740 S.F.

ALLOWABLE FLOOR AREA: 5,508 S.F.

EXISTING ASSESSOR AREA: 2,577 S.F.

EXISTING BUILDING AREA:
(E) HOUSE: 2,577 S.F. (PER ASSESOR'S RECORDS)
(E) ATTACHED GARAGE: 525 S.F.
(E) COVERED FRONT PORCH: 248 S.F. (EXEMPT)

(E) TOTAL: 3,102 S.F.

PROPOSED NEW BUILDING AREA: 
(N) HOUSE: 3,877 S.F.
(N) ATTACHED GARAGE: 596 SF
(N) UNCOVERED REAR PORCH: 730 S.F. (EXEMPT)
(E) COVERED FRONT PORCH: 248 S.F. (EXEMPT)
(N) POOL HOUSE 564 S.F.

(N) TOTAL: 5,184 S.F.

ADDED AREAS
AREA ADDED TO HOUSE: 1,447 S.F.
AREA ADDED TO GARAGE: 71 S.F.
NEW POOL HOUSE: 564 S.F.

TOTAL ADDED AREA: 2,082 S.F.

ASSESSOR MAP

SITE LOCATION

PROJECT DIRECTORY

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. SIERRA BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

ENGINEERING:

LONG TANG
TANG.ENGINEERS@GMAIL.COM

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
562.400.3306
BETSYJCOLE@GMAIL.COM

DESIGNER: 

ROBERT FRANK INTERIORS
300 SOUTH RAYMOND AVENUE, SUITE 12
PASADENA, CALIFORNIA 91105
626.765.1750
INFO@ROBERTFRANKINTERIORS.COM

GOVERNING CODES:
2016 CBC, CEC, CFC, CMC, CPC;
2016 EES; 2016 TITLE 24 CBC,
2016 CAL GREEN BUILDING STANDARDS
AHJ AND LOCAL CODES AND NFPA.

PROPOSED PROJECT TO BE FIRE SPRINKLERED

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text



Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N

1
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

 9
:1

4
:0

5
 A

M

G30

TITLE 24 REPORT
- ADDITION

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18



Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N

1
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

 9
:1

4
:0

6
 A

M

G31

TITLE 24 REPORT
- ADU

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18



E
. B

O
N

IT
A

 A
V

E

A
2
0

9

(E) DRIVEWAY

(E) GARAGE - 2 SPACES

A
2
0

3
A

2
0

A
2
0

1
0

4

A
2
1

2
4

A
2
1

1

A
2
1

3

(E) LANDSCAPE

(E) LANDSCAPE

(E) LANDSCAPE

(N) ADDITION AREA

(UNCOVERED 
REAR PORCH

(N) POOL HOUSE

(E) S.F.D.

(N) 
ADDITION 

AREA

(N) ADDITION 
AREA

(E) DRIVEWAY

MIN. 2%

MIN. 2%

MIN. 2%

MIN. 2%

MIN. 2%

MIN. 2%

MIN. 2%

M
IN

. 2
%

M
IN

. 2
%

M
IN

. 2
%

MIN. 2%

51' - 10"

1
2

' - 1
"

1
0

' - 0
"

9
' - 3

"

15' - 0"

145' - 4"

77' - 8"

1
1
8
' - 7

 1
3
/ 1

6
"

28' - 10 3/32"

53' - 7 5/16"

2430 SF

(E) House to Remain

525 SF

(E) Garage

564 SF

(N) Pool House

810 SF

(N) House Area

521 SF

(N) House Area

116 SF

(N) House Area

71 SF

(N) Garage Area

Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N

As indicated

1
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

 9
:1

3
:5

1
 A

M

A10

PROPOSED SITE
PLAN & AREA

PLAN

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

N

 1/16" = 1'-0"
2

AREA PLAN

A
2
1

(N) POOL 
(ON 

SEPERATE 
PERMIT)

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text
AREA SCHEDULE - UNIT AREAS

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text
NAME

Bryson
Typewritten Text
AREA

Bryson
Typewritten Text
(E) HOUSE TO REMAIN 

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text
(N) HOUSE AREA 

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text
(N) HOUSE AREA 

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text
(N) HOUSE AREA 

Bryson
Typewritten Text
(E) GARAGE 

Bryson
Typewritten Text
(N) GARAGE AREA 

Bryson
Typewritten Text
(N) POOL HOUSE 

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text
2577SF

Bryson
Typewritten Text
810

Bryson
Typewritten Text
521SF

Bryson
Typewritten Text
116SF

Bryson
Typewritten Text
525

Bryson
Typewritten Text
71

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text
564SF

Bryson
Typewritten Text
GRAND TOTAL 

Bryson
Typewritten Text
5184SF

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text
    SF

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text
2577 SF

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text
FFFF

Bryson
Typewritten Text
FFFFF

Bryson
Typewritten Text
FFFFF

Bryson
Typewritten Text
FFFFFF

Bryson
Typewritten Text
FFFFF

Bryson
Typewritten Text
FFFFF

Bryson
Typewritten Text
FFFFF

Bryson
Typewritten Text
FFFFFFF

Bryson
Typewritten Text
FFFFFF

Bryson
Typewritten Text
FFFFFFFFFFFF

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text
2577 SF

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text



(E) DRIVEWAY

168 SF

BEDROOM

1
66 SF

BATH

201 SF

MASTER

BEDROOM

39 SF

BATH

463 SF

LIVING

ROOM

199 SF

KITCHEN

297 SF

DINING

ROOM

55 SF

W/D

525 SF

GARAGE

125 SF

BEDROOM

2

261 SF

BEDROOM

3

SUN ROOM

3
 1

/2
" 

/ 
1

'-
0

"
3

 1
/2

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"

3
 3

/4
" 

/ 
1

'-
0

"
3

 3
/4

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"

4
 1

/4
" 

/ 
1

'-
0

"
4

 1
/4

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"

4
" 

/ 
1

'-
0

"
4

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"

3
/8

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"

Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N

N

 1/8" = 1'-0"

1
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

 9
:1

3
:5

2
 A

M

A11

EXISTING FLOOR
PLAN AND ROOF

PLAN

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

 1/8" = 1'-0"
1

AS BUILT FLOOR PLAN

 1/8" = 1'-0"
2

AS BUILT ROOF PLAN



A20

9

A20

9

A203

Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N

N

 1/8" = 1'-0"

1
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

 9
:1

3
:5

3
 A

M

A12

DEMO FLOOR
PLAN AND ROOF

PLAN

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

 1/8" = 1'-0"
1

DEMO FLOOR PLAN

 1/8" = 1'-0"
2

DEMO ROOF PLAN



DWDWDWDW

REF.

A20

9

1

A30

190 SF

M BATH

150 SF

HALL

486 SF

LIVING

ROOM

225 SF

DINING

ROOM

122 SF

KIDS BATH

128 SF

WALK IN

CLOSET

433 SF

DEN

176 SF

GUEST

BEDROOM

596 SF

GARAGE

73 SF

GUEST

BATH

3

A31

21' - 4 1/4"

202 SF

KIDS

BEDROOM

2

6
' -

 3
"

37 SF

KITCHEN

10' - 0" 14' - 7"

25' - 0"

1
1

' -
 4

 1
/2

"
1

7
' -

 1
0
"

3
0

' -
 2

 1
/2

"

3
' -

 1
0
 1

/2
"

1
5

' -
 4

 1
/2

"

11' - 11"

25' - 7 1/2"

1
6
' -

 1
0
 3

/4
"

7
' -

 1
 1

/4
"

2
' -

 1
1
"

21' - 9"

1
8

' -
 9

 1
/2

"

1
1

' -
 5

 3
/4

"

8' - 11"

21' - 4 1/4"

2
3

' -
 4

 1
/4

"
6

' -
 1

 1
/2

"

6
' -

 0
"

4
' -

 1
"

1
' -

 3
 1

/2
"

113 SF

LAUNDRY

23 SF

POWDER

RM

1
1

' -
 4

 1
/4

"
5

' -
 3

"

166 SF

M

BEDROOM

SITTING

AREA

260 SF

M.

BEDROOM

CCCCLLLL

244 SF

KIDS

BEDROOM

1

G

D C B A

Z1

W

V

U1T

104

QP

102

O1

N

M

L

J

101

H

100

105

107 109

112115

113118

123

119

120

121

122

116

111 110

108

106

117

131

PER SPEC
103

E
Q

E
Q

5' - 0" 10' - 0 1/4"

2' - 3" 3' - 6" 3' - 2"

8
' -

 0
"

6
' -

 1
1
 1

/2
"

2' - 9"

9
' -

 1
1
"

7' - 2 1/4" 16' - 3" 1' - 7 1/4"

1

A31

6

A30

EQ EQ

O2

U2

E
Q

E
Q

EQ 2' - 6" EQ

Z2

1
5

" 
M

IN
.

1
5

" 
M

IN
.

24" MIN.

4' - 1 1/2"

4
' -

 5
"

1
5

" 
M

IN
.

1
5

" 
M

IN
.

15" MIN.15" MIN.

16' - 10" 29' - 3 7/8"

1
2
' -

 9
 3

/1
6
"

6
' -

 1
 3

/8
"

21' - 4 1/4"

22' - 1 1/4"

18' - 3 3/4" 30' - 1 7/8" 14' - 8 1/2"

12' - 4 1/2"

4' - 0 1/4"

8' - 0"

1
3

' -
 7

 7
/8

"

9' - 5 11/16" 3' - 9" 3' - 9" 9' - 5 11/16"

6
0
' -

 1
0
"

28' - 0 3/4" 45' - 8 3/8"

124A

125B

2

A31

1
3
' -

 1
0
 5

/8
"

75"

4
2
"

Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N

N

 1/4" = 1'-0"

1
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

 9
:1

3
:5

4
 A

M

A13

PROPOSED
FLOOR PLAN

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

 1/4" = 1'-0"
1

PROPOSED 1ST FLOOR PLAN



A212A21 4

A21

1

A21

3

6

A21

5

A21

253 SF

REC ROOM

172 SF

CHANGING

ROOM

47 SF

BATH

14' - 10"

1
4
' -

 1
0
"

14' - 10"

1
1

' -
 7

"

2' - 6" 7' - 10" 2' - 6"

PA PB

PCPD

126

127

4
' -

 7
 1

/2
"

128

1
2

' -
 0

"
P

E
R

 S
P

E
C

135

15" MIN.15" MIN.

ON SEPERATE PERMIT

8' - 3 7/8" 6' - 0"

3
3

' -
 6

 1
/2

"

3
4

' -
 6

 1
/2

"

16' - 4"

Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N

N

 1/4" = 1'-0"

1
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

 9
:1

3
:5

4
 A

M

A14

POOL HOUSE
FLOOR PLAN

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18 1/4" = 1'-0"
1

PROPOSED 1ST FLOOR PLAN - POOL
HOUSE



A20

9

1

A30

A203
A20

A20

10

4

3

A31

A212A21 4

A21

1

A21

3
1

A31

6

A30

MIN. 2%

M
IN

. 
2
%

M
IN

. 
2
%

MIN. 2% MIN. 2%

MIN. 2%

MIN. 2% MIN. 2%

M
IN

. 
2
%

M
IN

. 
2
%

MIN. 2% MIN. 2%

M
IN

. 
2
%

M
IN

. 
2
%

M
IN

. 
2
%

2

A31

Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N

N

 1/8" = 1'-0"

1
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

 9
:1

3
:5

6
 A

M

A16

PROPOSED ROOF
PLAN

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

 1/8" = 1'-0"
1

PROPOSED ROOF PLAN



DWDWDWDW

REF.

G
F

I
G

F
I

GFI

G
F

I

G
F

I

GFI

G
F

I

G
F

I

GFI

GFI

G
F

I
G

F
I

GFI GFI GFI

G
F

I

GFI

J

J

J

J

J J J

J J J

J

J

J

J J J

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

3

3

3

2

2

J

A20

9

M BATH

HALL LIVING

ROOM

DINING

ROOM

KIDS BATH

WALK IN

CLOSET

DEN

GUEST

BEDROOM

GARAGE

GUEST

BATH

KIDS

BEDROOM

2
KITCHEN

LAUNDRY

POWDER

RM

M

BEDROOM

SITTING

AREA

M.

BEDROOM

KIDS

BEDROOM

1

CM

SA

SA

SASA

SA

CM SA

REC ROOM

CHANGING

ROOM

BATH

1. SMOKE DETECTORS:
*SHALL BE 110V INTERCONNECTED W/ 
BATTERY BACKUP
*SHALL BE INSTALLED ON EACH FLOOR 
AND IN ALL BEDROOMS
*SHALL BE INSTALLED OUSTIDE EACH 
SEPERATE SLEEPING AREA IN THE 
IMMEDIATE VICINITY OF THE BEDROOMS.
*SHALL BE LISTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
UL217 & INSTALLED PER THE HOUSEHOLD 
FIRE WARNING EQUIPMENT PROVISIONS 
OF NFPA72.

3. BATHROOM EXHAUST FANS TO BE CAPABLE OF 
50 CFM. KITCHEN EXHAUST FANS TO BE 

CAPABLE OF 100 CFM.

4. EXHAUST FANS TO COMPLY WITH THE 
FOLLOWING: FANS SHALL BE ENERGY STAR 
COMPLIANT AND BE DUCTED TO TERMINATE TO 
THE OUTSIDE OF THE BUILDING.

6. EXTERIOR LIGHTING WILL BE SHIELDED AND 
DIRECTED AWAY FROM RESIDENTIALLY ZONED 
LOTS

SA

CM

SMOKE ALARM

CARBON MONOXIDE ALARM

EXHAUST FAN

SYMBOL LEGEND

CAN LIGHT

OUTLET DUPLEX / TRIPLEX

FLOOR OUTLET 

SCONCE

JUNCTION BOXJ

WALL SWITCH$

UNDERCOUNTER LIGHTING

Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N

N

As indicated

1
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

 9
:1

4
:0

8
 A

M

ZA17

POWER AND
LIGHTING PLAN

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

 3/16" = 1'-0"
1

PROPOSED 1ST FLOOR PLAN -
ELECTRICAL

 3/16" = 1'-0"
2

PROPOSED 1ST FLOOR PLAN - POOL
HOUSE  ELECTRICAL

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text



1

A30

W
V

6

A30

GRADE
0' - 0"

(E) TOP OF UPPER
ROOF
18' - 0"

GROUND FLR
1' - 0"

1

A30

1
' -

 0
"

(E) TOP OF LOWER
ROOF
16' - 3"

HJ

L

6

A30

HEADER HEIGHT
9' - 0"

MIN. SILL HT.
BEDROOMS

4' - 8"

ELEVATION NOTES:

- ALL EXTERIOR WALl FINISHES TO BE CEDAR SHINGLE

GRADE
0' - 0"

(E) TOP OF UPPER
ROOF
18' - 0"

GROUND FLR
1' - 0"

3

A31
6

A21

(E) TOP OF LOWER
ROOF
16' - 3"

101

G D C B

100

A Z1

EQEQEQEQEQEQ

AA

1

A31

Z2

HEADER HEIGHT
9' - 0"

8
' -

 0
"

3
7
 1

/4
"

MIN. SILL HT.
BEDROOMS

4' - 8"

2

A31

GRADE
0' - 0"

(E) TOP OF UPPER
ROOF
18' - 0"

GROUND FLR
1' - 0"

3

A31

(E) TOP OF LOWER
ROOF
16' - 3"

U1 T
PQ

O1

M

1

A31

U2

M
A

X
 4

4
"

4
4
"

103

HEADER HEIGHT
9' - 0"

MIN. SILL HT.
BEDROOMS

4' - 8"

2

A31

Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N

As indicated

1
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

 9
:1

3
:5

9
 A

M

A20

ELEVATIONS

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

 3/16" = 1'-0"
3

ELEVATION - EAST
 3/16" = 1'-0"

4
ELEVATION - WEST

 3/16" = 1'-0"
9

ELEVATION - SOUTH

 3/16" = 1'-0"
10

ELEVATION - NORTH



6

A21

PC PD

8
' -

 0
"

7
' -

 2
"

1
3

' -
 4

 3
/4

"

4
4
" 

M
A

X
.

4
0
 1

/2
"

5

A21

1
3

' -
 4

 3
/4

"

6

A21

PBPA

7
' -

 2
"

8
' -

 0
"

5

A21

7
' -

 1
 1

/4
"

8
' -

 0
"

1
3

' -
 4

 3
/4

"

6

A21

253 SF

REC ROOM

8
' -

 0
"

1
2
' -

 1
0
"

9
' -

 0
"

5

A21

172 SF

CHANGING

ROOM 47 SF

BATH

253 SF

REC ROOM

1
2
' -

 1
0
"

9
' -

 0
"

Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N

 1/4" = 1'-0"

1
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

 9
:1

3
:5

9
 A

M

A21

POOL HOUSE
ELEVATIONS AND

SECTIONS

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

 1/4" = 1'-0"
1

POOL HOUSE ELEV - NORTH
 1/4" = 1'-0"

2
POOL HOUSE ELEV - EAST

 1/4" = 1'-0"
3

POOL HOUSE ELEV - SOUTH
 1/4" = 1'-0"

4
POOL HOUSE ELEV - WEST

 1/4" = 1'-0"
5

SECTION - EW POOL HOUSE
 1/4" = 1'-0"

6
SECTION - NS POOL HOUSE



GRADE
0' - 0"

(E) TOP OF UPPER
ROOF
18' - 0"

GROUND FLR
1' - 0"

3

A31

486 SF

LIVING

ROOM
599 SF

GARAGE

176 SF

GUEST

BEDROOM

(E) TOP OF LOWER
ROOF
16' - 3"

KIDS

BEDROOM

1

KIDS BATH

8
' -

 3
"

9
' -

 3
 5

/8
"

8
' -

 3
"

1

A31

MIN. SILL HT.
BEDROOMS

4' - 8"

(E) FIREPLACE

2

A31

8
' -

 0
"

GRADE
0' - 0"

(E) TOP OF UPPER
ROOF
18' - 0"

GROUND FLR
1' - 0"

3

A31

(E) TOP OF LOWER
ROOF
16' - 3"

1

A31

HEADER HEIGHT
9' - 0"

128 SF

WALK IN

CLOSET

260 SF

M.

BEDROOM

202 SF

KIDS

BEDROOM

2
113 SF

LAUNDRY

225 SF

DINING

ROOM

37 SF

KITCHEN
MIN. SILL HT.
BEDROOMS

4' - 8"

2

A31

Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N

 3/16" = 1'-0"

1
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

 9
:1

4
:0

0
 A

M

A30

SECTIONS

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

 3/16" = 1'-0"
1

SECTION - EW

 3/16" = 1'-0"
6

SECTION - EW1



Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
STR

U
C
TIO

N

1
/1

8
/2

0
1
9

 9
:1

4
:0

1
 A

M

A80

SCHEDULES

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

WINDOW SCHEDULE

Phase Created Mark Width Height Sill Height Operation Comments

New Construction A 1' - 0" 8' - 0" 0' - 3"

New Construction B 1' - 0" 8' - 0" 0' - 3"

New Construction C 4' - 3" 6' - 0" 2' - 3" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction D 4' - 3" 6' - 0" 2' - 3" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction G 3' - 5" 3' - 6" 3' - 8" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction H 2' - 6" 2' - 6" 4' - 4" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction J 2' - 6" 2' - 6" 4' - 4" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction L 1' - 4" 4' - 0" 1' - 6"

New Construction M 3' - 4" 4' - 0" 1' - 6" BAY WINDOW

New Construction N 1' - 4" 4' - 0" 1' - 6" BAY WINDOW

New Construction O1 3' - 9" 6' - 0" 1' - 6" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction O2 3' - 9" 6' - 0" 1' - 6" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction P 4' - 3" 3' - 6" 3' - 5 1/2" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction Q 2' - 0" 3' - 0" 4' - 0 5/16" OVAL LAUNDRY WINDOW

New Construction T 3' - 9" 6' - 0" 1' - 6" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction U1 3' - 9" 6' - 0" 1' - 6" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction U2 3' - 9" 6' - 0" 1' - 6" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction V 3' - 0" 3' - 6" 4' - 4" ARCHED KITCHEN WINDOW

New Construction W 3' - 0" 3' - 5" 3' - 8 3/4" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction AA 2' - 0" 2' - 0" 9' - 9" FIXED ROUND CLERESTORY GARAGE WINDOW

New Construction BB 3' - 0" 6' - 0"

New Construction CC 3' - 0" 6' - 0"

New Construction EE 3' - 0" 6' - 0"

New Construction FF 3' - 0" 3' - 6"

New Construction PA 2' - 6" 4' - 0" 3' - 2" DOUBLE HUNG POOL HOUSE

New Construction PB 2' - 6" 4' - 0" 3' - 2" DOUBLE HUNG POOL HOUSE

New Construction PC 2' - 6" 4' - 0" 3' - 2" DOUBLE HUNG POOL HOUSE

New Construction PD 2' - 6" 4' - 0" 3' - 2" DOUBLE HUNG POOL HOUSE

NOTE: ALL WINDOWS TO BE VINYL 
WHITE FINISH U.N.O.

NOTE: ALL COLORS AND FINISH 
SPECIFICATIONS TO BE SELECTED BY OWNER

DOOR SCHEDULE

Mark Width Height Family and Type Comments
Frame

Material Operation RS LS

100 3' - 0" 8' - 0" WOOD SINGLE: 36" x 8 ft

101 16' - 0" 8' - 0" 8039_Overhead_Panel_Garage_Door_Colonial_1952: 8' x 16'

102 6' - 0" 8' - 0" Door - Double - Glass: 72" x 96"

103 15' - 9 1/2" 8' - 0" Sliding_or_Stacking_Glazed_Wall_12803: Type 1

104 6' - 0" 8' - 0" Door - Double - Glass: 72" x 96"

105 2' - 8" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 32" x 86"

106 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

107 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

108 9' - 0" 7' - 2" Bifold-4 Panel_no trim: 108" x 82"

109 2' - 8" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 32" x 86"

110 4' - 0" 8' - 0" Door - Single - Pocket: 48" x 96"

111 4' - 0" 8' - 0" Door - Single - Pocket: 48" x 96"

112 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

113 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

115 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

116 6' - 0" 7' - 2" Bifold-4 Panel_no trim: 72" x 86"

117 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

118 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

119 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

120 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

121 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

122 2' - 8" 7' - 2" Door - Single - Pocket: 32" x 86"

123 3' - 0" 7' - 2" door-trustile_doors-ts2030: 36" x 86" 1-HR FIRE RATED

124A 6' - 0" 7' - 2" Bifold-4 Panel_no trim: 72" x 86"

125B 6' - 0" 7' - 2" Bifold-4 Panel_no trim: 72" x 86"

126 2' - 8" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 32" x 86"

127 2' - 8" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 32" x 86"

128 2' - 0" 7' - 2" Single-Linen Closet: 24" x 86"

131 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

135 12' - 0" 8' - 0" 4-Panel_Sliding_door_17733: 4-Panel_Sliding_door_17733





ATTACHMENT 3: 

SITE PHTOGRAPHS 

  



November 6, 2018  
 
Reaume Residence  
91 E. Bonita Ave.  
Sierra Madre, CA 91024  
 
RE: North, South, East & West Views  
 

Southern Views: 

 

 



Northern Views 

 

 

 

 



Eastern Views  

 

 

 

 



Western Views  

 

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT 4: 

REFERENCE TO DIGITAL FILES 

  





ATTACHMENT 5: 

COLOR RENDERINGS 

  







ATTACHMENT 6: 

VICINITY MAP AND NEIGHBORHOOD ANALYSIS 

  





Neighboring Houses Lot Size Floor Area Lot to FA Ratio Current Property Lot Size Floor Area Lot to FA Ratio

88 Lowell 32,379 4909 15.16% 91 E. Bonita Ave 27740 2577 9.29%

71 E. Bonita 27,440 4470 16.29%

101 E. Bonita 18,710 4112 21.98% Proposed Addition Lot Size  Floor Area Lot to FA Ratio

118 E. Bonita Ave. 31,673 4023 12.70% 91 E. Bonita Ave. 27,740 4,440 16.01%

131 E. Bonita 27,510 4023 14.62%

100 Lowell 14,370 3768 26.22%

76 E. Bonita 14,810 3668 24.77%

61 W. Bonita 21,120 2879 13.63%

121 E. Bonita 17,860 2846 15.94%

125 E. Bonita 20,584 2714 13.18%

111 E. Bonita 16,530 2597 15.71%

70 E. Bonita 14,370 2488 17.31%

110 E. Bonita 17,290 2434 14.08%

110 Lowell 9,500 2434 25.62%

90 E. Bonita 18,740 1852 9.88%

140 Lowell 14,220 1846 12.98%

60 W. Bonita 23,650 1817 7.68%

126 Lowell Ave. 7,650 1310 17.12%

120 Lowell 12,330 1174 9.52%

AVERAGE: 16.02%

*Based on lot size, square footage and the corresponding neighborhood 

ratios we fall right below the "average" for this area in terms of lot size 

vs. coverage. The high side for the neighborhood being almost 26%, 10% 

higher than our new build.

GENERAL NOTES

NEIGHBORHOOD SIZE COMPARISON 

The average floor area of the  top 1/3 is 4,307s.f. 

The proposed floor area is 4,440 s.f. 

The proposed floor area is greater than average by 1,372 s.f. 

The proposed floor area is greater than the top 1/3 by 133 s.f. 

The average floor area of neighboring homes is 3,068s.f. 



ATTACHMENT 7: 

HISTORIC EVALUATION REPORTS 

  



P.O. Box 655

Sierra Madre, CA 91025

www.sapphosenvironmental.com

430 North Halstead Street

November 19, 2018 
Job Number: 2393-001 

Design Review for 91 E. Bonita Avenue, 
Sierra Madre, California 91024 

MEMORANDUM FOR THE RECORD 
2.6 2393-001.M01 

TO: City Constructors, Inc. 
3125 N. Broadway 
Los Angeles, CA 90031 
(Mr. Bryson Reaume) 

FROM:  Sapphos Environmental, Inc. 
(Ms. Carrie Chasteen) 

SUBJECT: Design Review for 91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra Madre, 
California 91024 

ATTACHMENTS: A. Resume of Key Personnel
B. Architectural Plans and Rendering

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This Memorandum for the Record (MFR) was undertaken on behalf of City 
Constructors, Inc. (Mr. Bryson Reaume) for the property located at 91 E. Bonita 
Avenue, Sierra Madre, Los Angeles County, California (APN 5767-037-040). 
The building is a 1-story Colonial Revival-style building that was constructed in 
1942. The property is assumed to be eligible for designation as a Landmark and 
is assumed to be a historical resource for the purposes of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA; Section 15064.5(a) of the CEQA 
Guidelines). The project proposes to construct additions, replace the windows, 
reconfigure the primary entry, and re-clad the building in shingles. Section 
15064.5(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines states that a project that complies with 
the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties 
(Standards) is considered mitigated to a level of less than significant. Therefore, 
the design of the proposed project was evaluated for compliance with the 
Standards. Sapphos Environmental, Inc. (Ms. Carrie Chasteen) determined that 
the proposed project complies with the Standards. Ms. Chasteen meets the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Professional Qualification Standards in the fields of 
History and Architectural History. The review was based on a site visit, review 
of building permits, and a review of the architectural plans for the project. 



Design Review for 91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra Madre, CA Memorandum for the Record 
November 19, 2018 Sapphos Environmental, Inc. 
\\zeus\wp\Projects\2393\2393-001\Memos\MFR 1.docx Page 1 

INTRODUCTION 
 
This Memorandum for the Record (MFR) documents the design review undertaken by Sapphos 
Environmental, Inc. (Ms. Carrie Chasteen; Attachment A, Resume of Key Personnel) for the 
property located at 91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra Madre, Los Angeles County, California (APN 5767-
037-040). The building is a 1-story Colonial Revival-style building that was constructed in 1942. 
The property is assumed to be eligible for designation as a Landmark and is assumed to be a 
historical resource for the purposes of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA; Section 
15064.5(a) of the CEQA Guidelines). The project proposes to construct additions, replace the 
windows, reconfigure the primary entry, and re-clad the building in shingles. Section 15064.5(b)(3) 
of the CEQA Guidelines states that a project that complies with the Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties (Standards) is considered mitigated to a level of 
less than significant. Therefore, the design of the proposed project was evaluated for compliance 
with the Standards.  
 
This MFR includes a summary of the property’s setting, identification of the building’s character-
defining features, and an assessment of the proposed project’s design for compliance with the 
Standards. Sapphos Environmental, Inc. finds that the proposed design for the renovation of the 
subject property is a complimentary but distinct design from the existing building and meets the 
Standards.  
 

SETTING  
 
The subject property is located near the intersection of Mountain Trail Avenue and Orange Grove 
Avenue on Bonita Avenue. Neighboring buildings generally were constructed in the 1960s and are 
Ranch-style single-family residential buildings.  

 

BUILDING DESCRIPTION 
 
The primary residence is set back from the street approximately 50 feet and is located above the 
street due to topography. The 1-story Colonial Revival style is irregular in plan. The cross-gabled 
roof is clad in composition shingles. The primary façade features three bays. The easternmost and 
westernmost bay are similar, and both features brick veneer and paired four-over-four wood sash 
windows with false shutters. A brick chimney pierces the roof near the ridge line of the western 
bay. The central bay features five evenly spaced columns that support the roof which overhangs to 
shelter the porch which spans this bay. The porch is raised and accessed via brick-clad stairs. The 
bay is asymmetrical with a pair of eight-over-eight wood windows with wood surrounds. The 
primary entrance is located near the eastern end of this bay and features a wood door with 
Chippendale-style broken pediment wood surround. A pendant light illuminates the entryway and 
it is not known if it is original to the building. The central bay is clad in smooth-textured stucco 
(Figure 1, Primary Residence, 91 E. Bonita Avenue). In 1967, a permit was issued for an addition of 
a bedroom and lanai.1 This addition was constructed on the rear of the building and altered the 
building’s footprint. A permit was issued for the installation of an aluminum patio cover with 
screen and acrylic enclosure in 1992.2 This addition is also on the rear of the building and further 
altered the building’s footprint. 
 

                                                 
1  City of Sierra Madre. Building Permit No. 4024. Issued June 9, 1967 

2  City of Sierra Madre. Building Permit No. 28750. Issued February 24, 1992. 



Design Review for 91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra Madre, CA Memorandum for the Record 
November 19, 2018 Sapphos Environmental, Inc. 
\\zeus\wp\Projects\2393\2393-001\Memos\MFR 1.docx Page 2 

 
Figure 1. Primary Residence, 91 E. Bonita Avenue 

SOURCE: Sapphos Environmental, Inc., 2018 
 
An attached vernacular garage is located west of the primary residence. The original garage was 
demolished and replaced with a 24-foot by 24-foot garage in 1963.3,4  The two-car garage features a 
side-gabled roof clad in composition shingles. The building is clad in smooth textured stucco. The 
door was replaced with a modern metal with glazing roll-up door at an unknown date (Figure 2, 
Garage, 91 E. Bonita Avenue). 
 

 
Figure 2. Garage, 91 E. Bonita Avenue 

SOURCE: Sapphos Environmental, Inc., 2018 
   

  

                                                 
3  City of Sierra Madre. Building Permit No. 86. Issued May 8, 1963 

4  City of Sierra Madre. Building Permit No. 55. Issued April 1, 1963. 



Design Review for 91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra Madre, CA Memorandum for the Record 
November 19, 2018 Sapphos Environmental, Inc. 
\\zeus\wp\Projects\2393\2393-001\Memos\MFR 1.docx Page 3 

CHARACTER-DEFINING FEATURES 

 
The following table summarizes and rates the character-defining features of the property (Table 1, 
Character-Defining Features). 
 

TABLE 1 

CHARACTER-DEFINING FEATURES  
 

Type Feature Ranking 

Shape/Form 
Irregular foot print NHNS 

1 story  MS 

Roof 

Cross Gable MS 

Brick Chimney S 

Composition shingles NHNS 

Fenestration 

Four-over-four wood sash windows  MS 

Eight-over-eight wood sash windows MS 

Shutters NS 

Wood door with Chippendale-style broken pediment 
wood surround 

MS 

Roll-up garage door NHNS 

Materials 
Smooth-textured stucco S 

Painted brick veneer S 

Setting 

Setback from E. Bonita Avenue S 

Wood fencing NS 

Single-family residential neighborhood S 
KEY: MS = Most Significant; NHNS = Not Historic; Not Significant; HNS = Historic; Not Significant; S = Significant; 
CU= Common and Utilitarian;  

 
Table 1 summarizes the character-defining features of the subject property to better inform an 
accurate consideration of potential impacts of the proposed project. After considering the 
character-defining features, the design review was completed to ensure the project would not affect 
these features in an adverse manner. Section 15064.5(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines states that a 
project that complies with the Standards is considered mitigated to a level of less than significant. 

 

PROJECT COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR’S STANDARDS FOR 

REHABILITATION 
 

Project Description  

 
The proposed project would construct two additions on the rear of the building and will not be 
visible from the public right-of-way. The proposed project would enclose a recessed area of the 
primary façade adjacent to the garage. The building would be reclad in coursed wood shingles. 
The windows would be replaced with six-over-one windows within the existing window openings. 
The primary entrance would be widened to incorporate sidelights flanking the doorway. A simple 
wood surround will frame the modified entryway. 
 
The garage would be altered with a front-facing gabled roof with round accent in the gable. The 
door will be replaced with carriage-style doors. Two sconces will be installed flanking the garage 
door for security purposes. 

 

  



Design Review for 91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra Madre, CA Memorandum for the Record 
November 19, 2018 Sapphos Environmental, Inc. 
\\zeus\wp\Projects\2393\2393-001\Memos\MFR 1.docx Page 4 

Standards Review 
 
Sapphos Environmental, Inc. (Ms. Chasteen) reviewed the project to determine if the proposed 
alterations comply with the Standards for Rehabilitation. In order to evaluate potential impacts, 
each alteration was considered using the applicable Standard for Rehabilitation.5 Standard Nos. 9 
and 10 were referenced: 
 

9.  New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not destroy 
historic materials, features, and spatial relationships that characterize the property. 
The new work will be differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the 
historic materials, features, size, scale, and proportion, and massing to protect the 
integrity of the property and its environment.  

10.  New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in 
such a manner that if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the 
historic property and its environment would be unimpaired. 

 
The rear additions will not be visible from the public right-of-way and will not impact the spatial 
relationships, or set back, of the property. If the rear additions are removed at a future date, the 
essential form and integrity of the historic building and its environment will be restored and 
unimpaired. The enclosed recessed area on the primary façade will be differentiated through the 
use of modern materials and will be compatible with the historic features, size, scale, and 
proportions of the building. Coursed shingles are compatible with this style of architecture.6 The 
proposed shingles are compatible with the historic materials, size, scale, and proportion of the 
building. Additionally, the shingles will essentially be a veneer and can be removed at a future 
date. The existing window openings will be retained, and the wood sash can be restored at a future 
date. Doors commonly have sidelights in this style of architecture.7 The proposed modification of 
the primary entrance is compatible with the historic materials, features, size, scale, and proportions 
of the existing building.   
 
The proposed modification to the garage roof will be executed maintaining the existing ridge line 
and slope of the residence which will not destroy historic features and spatial relationships that 
characterize the property. The proposed garage doors are in keeping with this style of architecture 
and are more appropriate than the existing door. The vent detail will be differentiated from the 
historic fabric of the building through the use of modern materials and can be easily removed at a 
future date. The proposed sconces are also in keeping with this style of architecture and easily 
removed at a future date. Therefore, the proposed project which modifies some of the most 
significant features of the building complies with the Standards. 

 

  

                                                 
5  “Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation.” National Park Service, U.S. Department of the Interior. 

Accessed November 8, 2018. Available at: https://www.nps.gov/tps/standards/rehabilitation/rehab/stand.htm 

6     McAlester, Virginia and Lee. 1984. A Field Guide to American Houses. New York, NY: Alfred A. Knopf. 

7  McAlester, Virginia and Lee. 1984. A Field Guide to American Houses. New York, NY: Alfred A. Knopf. 



Design Review for 91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra Madre, CA Memorandum for the Record 
November 19, 2018 Sapphos Environmental, Inc. 
\\zeus\wp\Projects\2393\2393-001\Memos\MFR 1.docx Page 5 

CONCLUSION 
 
Sapphos Environmental, Inc. determined the proposed renovation project for the residential 
building located at 91 E. Bonita Avenue, complies with the Standards for Rehabilitation. Therefore, 
potential impacts to this historical resource are considered mitigated to a level of less than 
significant (Section 15064.5(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines). 
 
Should there be any questions regarding the information contained in this MFR, please contact  
Ms. Carrie Chasteen at (626) 683-3547, extension 102. 
 
 
 
 



ATTACHMENT A 

RESUME OF KEY PERSONNEL 

 
 
 
 



Carrie E. Chasteen, MS

Historic Resources Manager 

Master of Science, (Historic 
Preservation), School of 
the Art Institute of 
Chicago, Chicago, Illinois 

Bachelor of Arts (History and 
Political Science), 
University of South 
Florida, Tampa, Florida 

• Cultural resource 
management and legal 
compliance

• History of California
• Architectural History
• Cultural History
• Identification and 

evaluation of the built 
environment

• Archival documentation
• Historic preservation 

consultation
• Certified Oregon 

Transportation 
Investment Act (OTIA) III 
CS3 Technical Lead 

• Historic Preservation 
Commissioner, City of 
Pasadena

• Phi Alpha Theta National 
Honor Society

Years of Experience: 16 

Relevant Experience: 

• Historic Evaluation for 
54 Parks, Golf Course, 
and Aboreta Project 

• Historic Evaluation and 
Design Review for Fries 
Avenue Elementary 
School

• Los Angeles Union 
Station Forecourt and 
Esplanade Project

• Los Angeles Music 
Center

Ms. Carrie Chasteen has more than 16 years of experience in the field of 
cultural resources management and the built environment, including 
project management, agency coordination, archival research, managing 
large surveys, preparation of Environmental Impact Statement/ 
Environmental Impact Report (EIS/EIR) sections, Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (MND) and Initial Study (IS) sections, peer review, and 
regulatory compliance. She has served as Principal Investigator / 
Principal Architectural Historian on projects throughout Los Angeles 
County. Ms. Chasteen meets and exceeds the Secretary of the Interior’s 
Professional Qualification Standards in the fields of History and 
Architectural History. She has extensive experience with the City of Los 
Angeles Office of Historic Resources (OHR), California Office of Historic 
Preservation, California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), County of 
Los Angeles Department of Parks and Recreation, and various other state, 
county, and local government agencies. 

On behalf of the County of Los Angeles (County) Department of Parks 
and Recreation, Ms. Chasteen is managing the documentation and 
evaluation of 54 parks, golf courses, and arboreta. The historic 
evaluations assess County facilities that were identified as priorities due to 
the age of the facility, architect of record, or affiliation with event of 
importance to the history of development of Los Angeles County. The 
historic evaluations consider eligibility for listing on the National Register of 
Historic Places, the California Register of Historical Resources, the 
standards provided in CEQA, and the County Register of Landmarks and 
Historic Districts. The results documented in the historic evaluations 
were used by the County to address future projects in the facilities, alter 
plans as needed, and to inform a Cultural Resources Treatment Plan 
(CRTP) and Worker Environmental Awareness Program (WEAP) 
training. 

On behalf of the Los Angeles Unified School District (LAUSD), Ms. 
Chasteen prepared a historical evaluation of the Fries Avenue 
Elementary School. The evaluation tiered off the historic context and 
registration criteria developed for the award-winning LAUSD Historic 
Context Statement, 1870 to 1969. The property was determined to be a 
historical resource pursuant to CEQA. As a result, Ms. Chasteen also 
reviewed the design of the proposed campus revisions to determine if the 
proposed project complied with the Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties. 

On behalf of the County of Los Angeles, Ms. Chasteen reviewed plans for 
the proposed renovation of the plaza at the Los Angeles Music Center. 
Design refinements were suggested and implemented in order to reduce 
impacts to the plaza and it’s character-defining features.  

Ms. Chasteen is a member of the Society of Architectural Historians, 
National Trust, California Preservation Foundation, Los Angeles 
Conservancy, Pasadena Heritage, and currently serves as a City of 
Pasadena Historic Preservation Commissioner. 



ATTACHMENT B 

ARCHITECTURAL PLANS AND RENDERING 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
S
TR

U
C
TIO

N

1
0
/2

9
/2

0
1

8
 6

:4
3

:3
5

 P
M

G00

COVER SHEET

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

VICINITY MAP

DRAWING INDEX

GENERAL

G00 COVER SHEET

G30 TITLE 24 REPORT

G31 TITLE 24 REPORT

CIVIL

C00 SURVEY

ARCHITECTURAL

A10 PROPOSED SITE PLAN

A11 EXISTING FLOOR PLAN AND ROOF PLAN

A12 DEMO FLOOR PLAN AND ROOF PLAN

A13 PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN

A14 POOL HOUSE FLOOR PLAN

A15 PROPOSED CEILING PLAN

A16 PROPOSED ROOF PLAN

A20 ELEVATIONS

A21 POOL HOUSE ELEVATIONS AND SECTIONS

A30 SECTIONS

A80 SCHEDULES

PERSPECTIVE - SOUTHWEST SCOPE OF WORK

1. REMODEL AND ADDITION OF (E) S.F.D
2. NEW REAR  COVERED DECK
3. NEW ACCESSORY LIVING QUARTER

PROJECT DATA

HISTORIC: NO
SPRINKLERED: NO

A.P.N.: 5767-037-040

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 

RE SURVEY OF THE G B DAVIS TRACT LOT COM
W ON N LINE OF BONITA AVE 90 FT FROM
MOST S COR OF LOT 3 TR NO 25185 TH N 3¢
06'30" E 25.05 FT TH N 20¢25'13" E 33
... SEE MAPBOOK FOR MISSING PORTION ...
15" W TO SD N LINE TH E THEREON TO BEG

ZONING: R-1-15 (ONE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL, MIN. 15,000)

TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION: V-B

OCCUPANCY: 
R-2 - RESIDENTIAL 

OCCUPANT LOAD: 13

NUMBER OF STORIES: 2

EXISTING ASSESSOR AREA: 2,577 S.F.

EXISTING BUILDING AREA: 
HOUSE: 2,423 S.F.
SUN ROOM: 381 S.F. (TO DEMO)
LAUNDRY ROOM: 35 S.F. (TO DEMO)
COVERED FRONT PORCH: 248 S.F.
ATTACHED GARAGE: 499 S.F.
(E) TOTAL: 3,586 S.F.

PROPOSED NEW BUILDING AREA: 
(N) HOUSE ADDITIONS: 1,285 S.F.
(N) COVERED REAR DECK: 823 S.F.
(N) ACCESSORY LIVING QUARTER 497 S.F.

TOTAL NEW HOUSE AREA: 4,455 SQUARE FEET
NEW ACCESSORY LIVING QUARTER: 497 S.F.

NEW TOTAL LIVING AREA: 4,952 S.F.

GOVERNING CODES:
2016 CBC, CEC, CFC, CMC, CPC;
2016 EES; 2016 TITLE 24 CBC,
2016 CAL GREEN BUILDING STANDARDS
AHJ AND LOCAL CODES AND NFPA.

ASSESSOR MAP

SITE LOCATION

PROJECT DIRECTORY

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. SIERRA BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

ENGINEERING:

LONG TANG
TANG.ENGINEERS@GMAIL.COM

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
562.400.3306
BETSYJCOLE@GMAIL.COM

DESIGNER: 

ROBERT FRANK INTERIORS
300 SOUTH RAYMOND AVENUE, SUITE 12
PASADENA, CALIFORNIA 91105
626.765.1750
INFO@ROBERTFRANKINTERIORS.COM



E
. B

O
N

IT
A

 A
V

E

A
2
0

9

(E) DRIVEWAY

(E) GARAGE - 2 SPACES

A
2
0

3
A

2
0

A
2
0

1
0

4

A
2
1

2
A

2
1

4

A
2
1

1

A
2
1

3

(E) LANDSCAPE

(E) LANDSCAPE

(E) LANDSCAPE

(N) POOL 
(ON 

SEPERATE 
PERMIT)

(N) ADDITION AREA

(N) COVERED 
REAR PORCH

(N) ACCESSORY 
LIVING QUARTER

(E) S.F.D.

(N) 
ADDITION 

AREA

(N) ADDITION 
AREA

(E) DRIVEWAY

MIN. 2%

MIN. 2%

MIN. 2%

MIN. 2%

MIN. 2%

MIN. 2%

MIN. 2%

M
IN

. 2
%

M
IN

. 2
%

M
IN

. 2
%

MIN. 2%

Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
S
TR

U
C
TIO

N

 3/32" = 1'-0"

1
0
/2

9
/2

0
1

8
 6

:4
3

:1
4

 P
M

A10

PROPOSED SITE
PLAN

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

N



(E) DRIVEWAY

168 SF

BEDROOM

1
66 SF

BATH

201 SF

MASTER

BEDROOM

39 SF

BATH

463 SF

LIVING

ROOM

240 SF

KITCHEN

308 SF

DINING

ROOM

55 SF

W/D

500 SF

GARAGE

125 SF

BEDROOM

2

244 SF

BEDROOM

3

378 SF

SUN ROOM

3
 1

/2
" 

/ 
1

'-
0

"
3

 1
/2

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"

3
 3

/4
" 

/ 
1

'-
0

"
3

 3
/4

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"

4
 1

/4
" 

/ 
1

'-
0

"
4

 1
/4

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"

4
" 

/ 
1

'-
0

"
4

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"

3
/8

" 
/ 
1

'-
0

"

Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
S
TR

U
C
TIO

N

N

 1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/2

9
/2

0
1

8
 6

:4
3

:1
6

 P
M

A11

EXISTING FLOOR
PLAN AND ROOF

PLAN

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

 1/8" = 1'-0"
1

AS BUILT FLOOR PLAN

 1/8" = 1'-0"
2

AS BUILT ROOF PLAN



A20

9

A20

9

A203

Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
S
TR

U
C
TIO

N

N

 1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/2

9
/2

0
1

8
 6

:4
3

:1
7

 P
M

A12

DEMO FLOOR
PLAN AND ROOF

PLAN

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

 1/8" = 1'-0"
1

DEMO FLOOR PLAN

 1/8" = 1'-0"
2

DEMO ROOF PLAN



DWDWDWDW

REF.

A20

9

1

A30

165 SF

M BATH

154 SF

HALL

488 SF

LIVING

ROOM

225 SF

DINING

ROOM

125 SF

KIDS BATH

140 SF

WALK IN

CLOSET

433 SF

DEN

176 SF

GUEST

BEDROOM

599 SF

GARAGE

73 SF

GUEST

BATH

2

A30

21' - 4 1/4"

202 SF

KIDS

BEDROOM

2

6
' -

 3
"

402 SF

KITCHEN

10' - 0" 14' - 7"

25' - 0"

1
1

' -
 4

 1
/2

"
1

7
' -

 1
0
"

3
0

' -
 2

 1
/2

"

4
' -

 0
"

1
5

' -
 4

 1
/2

"

11' - 11"

25' - 7 1/2"

1
6
' -

 1
0
 3

/4
"

7
' -

 1
 1

/4
"

2
' -

 1
1
"

21' - 9"

1
8

' -
 9

 1
/2

"

1
1

' -
 5

 3
/4

"

8' - 11"

21' - 4 1/4"

2
3

' -
 4

 1
/4

"
6

' -
 1

 1
/2

"

6
' -

 0
"

4
' -

 1
"

1
' -

 3
 1

/2
"

113 SF

LAUNDRY

23 SF

POWDER

RM

1
1

' -
 4

 1
/4

"
4

' -
 0

"

166 SF

M

BEDROOM

SITTING

AREA

260 SF

M.

BEDROOM

CCCCLLLL

219 SF

KIDS

BEDROOM

1

F EG

D C B A

Z1

W

V

U1T

104

QP

102

O1

N

M

L

J

101

H

100

114

105

107 109

112115

113118

123

119

120

121

122

116

111 110

108

106

117

131

PER SPEC
103

E
Q

E
Q

EQ EQ EQ EQ

2' - 3" 3' - 6" 3' - 2"

5' - 0"

8
' -

 0
"

6
' -

 1
1
 1

/2
"

2' - 9"

9
' -

 1
1
"

15' - 10 3/4"

7' - 2 1/4" 16' - 3" 1' - 7 1/4"

5

A30

6

A30

EQ EQ

O2

U2

E
Q

E
Q

EQ 2' - 6" EQ

Z2

1
5

" 
M

IN
.

1
5

" 
M

IN
.

24" MIN.

4' - 1 1/2"

4
' 
- 

5
"

1
5

" 
M

IN
.

1
5

" 
M

IN
.

15" MIN.15" MIN.

14' - 8 7/16" 31' - 5 7/16"

1
4
' -

 0
 3

/1
6
"

5
' -

 8
 3

/8
"

21' - 4 1/4"

22' - 1 1/4"

8' - 11" 18' - 3 3/4" 30' - 1 7/8" 14' - 8 1/2"

12' - 4 1/2"

4' - 0 1/4"4' - 0 1/4"

8' - 0"

1
3

' -
 7

 7
/8

"
1

5
' -

 8
 1

/2
"

9' - 5 11/16" 3' - 9" 3' - 9" 9' - 5 11/16"

6
0
' -

 1
0
"

28' - 0 3/4" 45' - 8 3/8"

Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
S
TR

U
C
TIO

N

N

 1/4" = 1'-0"

1
0
/2

9
/2

0
1

8
 6

:4
3

:1
8

 P
M

A13

PROPOSED
FLOOR PLAN

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

 1/4" = 1'-0"
1

PROPOSED 1ST FLOOR PLAN



A212A21 4

A21

1

A21

3

6

A21

5

A21

253 SF

LIVING

ROOM

172 SF

BEDROOM

47 SF

BATH

444 SF

POOL

14' - 10"

1
4
' -

 1
0
"

14' - 10"

1
1

' -
 7

"

2' - 6" 7' - 10" 2' - 6"

PA PB

PCPD

126

127

4
' -

 7
 1

/2
"

128

1
2

' -
 0

"
P

E
R

 S
P

E
C

135

15" MIN.15" MIN.

ON SEPERATE PERMIT

8' - 3 7/8" 6' - 0"

3
3

' -
 6

 1
/2

"

3
4

' -
 6

 1
/2

"

16' - 4"

Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
S
TR

U
C
TIO

N

N

 1/4" = 1'-0"

1
0
/2

9
/2

0
1

8
 6

:4
3

:1
9

 P
M

A14

POOL HOUSE
FLOOR PLAN

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18 1/4" = 1'-0"
1

PROPOSED 1ST FLOOR PLAN - POOL
HOUSE



1

A30

2

A30

M BATH

M

BEDROOM

SITTING

AREA

GARAGE

KIDS BATH

HALL

DINING

ROOM

LIVING

ROOM

WALK IN

CLOSET

DEN

LAUNDRY

GUEST

BEDROOM

GUEST

BATH

5

A30

6

A30

8' - 3"

8' - 9"

9' - 3 5/8"

8' - 3"

KITCHEN
KIDS

BEDROOM

2

M.

BEDROOM

KIDS

BEDROOM

1

8' - 3"
8' - 1 7/8"8' - 1 7/8"

8' - 1 7/8"

8' - 0"

9' - 0"9' - 0"

9' - 0"
9' - 0"

9' - 0"

VAULTED CEILING

11' - 0" 14' - 1"

8' - 3"8' - 3"

8' - 3" 8' - 3"

CM SA

SA

SASA

SA

CM SA

6

A21

5

A21

9' - 0"

12' - 9 7/8"

9' - 6"

LIVING

ROOM

BATH

BEDROOM

9' - 0"

9' - 0"

9' - 6" 12' - 9 7/8"

VAULTED CEILING

VAULTED CEILING

CM SA

SA

1. SMOKE DETECTORS:
*SHALL BE 110V INTERCONNECTED W/ 
BATTERY BACKUP
*SHALL BE INSTALLED ON EACH FLOOR 
AND IN ALL BEDROOMS
*SHALL BE INSTALLED OUSTIDE EACH 
SEPERATE SLEEPING AREA IN THE 
IMMEDIATE VICINITY OF THE BEDROOMS.
*SHALL BE LISTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
UL217 & INSTALLED PER THE HOUSEHOLD 
FIRE WARNING EQUIPMENT PROVISIONS 
OF NFPA72.

3. BATHROOM EXHAUST FANS TO BE CAPABLE OF 
50 CFM. KITCHEN EXHAUST FANS TO BE 

CAPABLE OF 100 CFM.

4. EXHAUST FANS TO COMPLY WITH THE 
FOLLOWING: FANS SHALL BE ENERGY STAR 
COMPLIANT AND BE DUCTED TO TERMINATE TO 
THE OUTSIDE OF THE BUILDING.

6. EXTERIOR LIGHTING WILL BE SHIELDED AND 
DIRECTED AWAY FROM RESIDENTIALLY ZONED 
LOTS

SA

CM

SMOKE ALARM

CARBON MONOXIDE ALARM

BE: BATH FAN
KE: KITCHEN FAN
DE: DRYER EXHAUST

CEILING FIXTURE LEGEND

Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
S
TR

U
C
TIO

N

N

As indicated

1
0
/2

9
/2

0
1

8
 6

:4
3

:2
0

 P
M

A15

PROPOSED
CEILING PLAN

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

 3/16" = 1'-0"
1

GROUND FLR
 3/16" = 1'-0"

2
POOL HOUSE



A20

9

1

A30

A203
A20

A20

10

4

2

A30

A212A21 4

A21

1

A21

3
5

A30

6

A30

MIN. 2%

M
IN

. 
2
%

M
IN

. 
2
%

MIN. 2% MIN. 2%

MIN. 2%

MIN. 2% MIN. 2%

M
IN

. 
2
%

M
IN

. 
2
%

MIN. 2% MIN. 2%

M
IN

. 
2
%

M
IN

. 
2
%

M
IN

. 
2
%

Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
S
TR

U
C
TIO

N

N

 1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0
/2

9
/2

0
1

8
 6

:4
3

:2
1

 P
M

A16

PROPOSED ROOF
PLAN

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

 1/8" = 1'-0"
1

PROPOSED ROOF PLAN



1

A30

W

V

6

A30

GRADE
0' - 0"

(E) TOP OF UPPER
ROOF
18' - 0"

GROUND FLR
1' - 0"

1

A30

1
' -

 0
"

(E) TOP OF LOWER
ROOF
16' - 3"

HJ

L

6

A30

HEADER HEIGHT
8' - 2"

MIN. SILL HT.
BEDROOMS

4' - 8"

ELEVATION NOTES:

- ALL EXTERIOR WALl FINISHES TO BE CEDAR SHINGLE

GRADE
0' - 0"

(E) TOP OF UPPER
ROOF
18' - 0"

GROUND FLR
1' - 0"

2

A30
6

A21

(E) TOP OF LOWER
ROOF
16' - 3"

101

G F E D C B

100

A Z1

EQEQEQEQEQEQ

AA

5

A30

4
4
" 

M
A

X

4
4
"

Z2

HEADER HEIGHT
8' - 2"

7
' -

 2
"

3
7
 1

/4
"

MIN. SILL HT.
BEDROOMS

4' - 8"

GRADE
0' - 0"

(E) TOP OF UPPER
ROOF
18' - 0"

GROUND FLR
1' - 0"

2

A30

(E) TOP OF LOWER
ROOF
16' - 3"

U1 T
PQ

O1

M

5

A30

U2

M
A

X
 4

4
"

4
4
"

103

HEADER HEIGHT
8' - 2"

MIN. SILL HT.
BEDROOMS

4' - 8"

Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
S
TR

U
C
TIO

N

As indicated

1
0
/2

9
/2

0
1

8
 6

:4
3

:2
5

 P
M

A20

ELEVATIONS

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

 3/16" = 1'-0"
3

ELEVATION - EAST
 3/16" = 1'-0"

4
ELEVATION - WEST

 3/16" = 1'-0"
9

ELEVATION - SOUTH

 3/16" = 1'-0"
10

ELEVATION - NORTH



6

A21

PC PD

8
' -

 6
"

7
' -

 2
"

1
3

' -
 4

 3
/4

"

4
4
" 

M
A

X
.

4
0
 1

/2
"

5

A21

1
3

' -
 4

 3
/4

"

6

A21

PBPA

7
' -

 2
"

8
' -

 0
"

5

A21

7
' -

 1
 1

/4
"

8
' -

 0
"

1
3

' -
 4

 3
/4

"

6

A21

253 SF

LIVING

ROOM

8
' -

 0
"

1
2
' -

 1
0
"

9
' -

 0
"

5

A21

172 SF

BEDROOM 47 SF

BATH

253 SF

LIVING

ROOM

1
2
' -

 1
0
"

9
' -

 0
"

Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
S
TR

U
C
TIO

N

 1/4" = 1'-0"

1
0
/2

9
/2

0
1

8
 6

:4
3

:2
6

 P
M

A21

POOL HOUSE
ELEVATIONS AND

SECTIONS

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

 1/4" = 1'-0"
1

POOL HOUSE ELEV - NORTH
 1/4" = 1'-0"

2
POOL HOUSE ELEV - EAST

 1/4" = 1'-0"
3

POOL HOUSE ELEV - SOUTH
 1/4" = 1'-0"

4
POOL HOUSE ELEV - WEST

 1/4" = 1'-0"
5

SECTION - EW POOL HOUSE
 1/4" = 1'-0"

6
SECTION - NS POOL HOUSE



GRADE
0' - 0"

(E) TOP OF UPPER
ROOF
18' - 0"

GROUND FLR
1' - 0"

2

A30

488 SF

LIVING

ROOM599 SF

GARAGE

176 SF

GUEST

BEDROOM

(E) TOP OF LOWER
ROOF
16' - 3"

KIDS

BEDROOM

1
KIDS BATH

8
' -

 1
 7

/8
"

9
' -

 3
 5

/8
"

8
' -

 3
"

5

A30

MIN. SILL HT.
BEDROOMS

4' - 8"

FIREPLACE

1

A30

225 SF

DINING

ROOM

488 SF

LIVING

ROOM

6

A30

GRADE
0' - 0"

(E) TOP OF UPPER
ROOF
18' - 0"

GROUND FLR
1' - 0"

1

A30

GUEST

BEDROOM

GUEST

BATH KITCHEN

8
' -

 3
"

8
' -

 3
"

DEN

6

A30

HEADER HEIGHT
8' - 2"

MIN. SILL HT.
BEDROOMS

4' - 8"

GRADE
0' - 0"

(E) TOP OF UPPER
ROOF
18' - 0"

GROUND FLR
1' - 0"

2

A30

(E) TOP OF LOWER
ROOF
16' - 3"

5

A30

HEADER HEIGHT
8' - 2"

140 SF

WALK IN

CLOSET

260 SF

M.

BEDROOM

202 SF

KIDS

BEDROOM

2
113 SF

LAUNDRY

225 SF

DINING

ROOM

402 SF

KITCHEN
MIN. SILL HT.
BEDROOMS

4' - 8"

Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
S
TR

U
C
TIO

N

 3/16" = 1'-0"

1
0
/2

9
/2

0
1

8
 6

:4
3

:2
8

 P
M

A30

SECTIONS

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

 3/16" = 1'-0"
1

SECTION - EW

 3/16" = 1'-0"
2

SECTION - NS
 3/16" = 1'-0"

5
SECTION - NS1

 3/16" = 1'-0"
6

SECTION - EW1



Scale

Project Issue Date

91 E BONITA AVE
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024

NO.

ISSUES:

DATE DESCRIPTION

OWNER:

BRYSON AND MONICA REAUME
91 E. BONITA AVE.
SIERRA MADRE, CA 91024
213.628.8882

PLAN SET:

BETSY COLE
442 S. BOYLE AVE.
LOS ANGELES, CA 90033
532.400.3306

N
O
T F

O
R
 

C
O
N
S
TR

U
C
TIO

N

1
0
/2

9
/2

0
1

8
 6

:4
3

:3
0

 P
M

A80

SCHEDULES

REAUME
RESIDENCE

11/01/18

WINDOW SCHEDULE

Phase Created Mark Width Height Sill Height Operation Comments

New Construction A 1' - 0" 8' - 0" 0' - 3"

New Construction B 1' - 0" 8' - 0" 0' - 3"

New Construction C 4' - 3" 6' - 0" 2' - 3" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction D 4' - 3" 6' - 0" 2' - 3" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction E 3' - 5" 3' - 6" 3' - 8" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction F 3' - 5" 3' - 6" 3' - 8" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction G 3' - 5" 3' - 6" 3' - 8" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction H 2' - 6" 2' - 6" 4' - 4" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction J 2' - 6" 2' - 6" 4' - 4" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction L 1' - 4" 4' - 0" 1' - 6"

New Construction M 3' - 4" 4' - 0" 1' - 6" BAY WINDOW

New Construction N 1' - 4" 4' - 0" 1' - 6" BAY WINDOW

New Construction O1 3' - 9" 6' - 0" 1' - 6" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction O2 3' - 9" 6' - 0" 1' - 6" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction P 4' - 3" 3' - 6" 3' - 5 1/2" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction Q 2' - 0" 3' - 0" 4' - 0 5/16" OVAL LAUNDRY WINDOW

New Construction T 3' - 9" 6' - 0" 1' - 6" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction U1 3' - 9" 6' - 0" 1' - 6" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction U2 3' - 9" 6' - 0" 1' - 6" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction V 3' - 0" 3' - 6" 4' - 4" ARCHED KITCHEN WINDOW

New Construction W 3' - 0" 3' - 5" 3' - 8 3/4" DOUBLE HUNG

New Construction AA 2' - 0" 2' - 0" 9' - 9" FIXED ROUND CLERESTORY GARAGE WINDOW

New Construction BB 3' - 0" 6' - 0"

New Construction CC 3' - 0" 6' - 0"

New Construction EE 3' - 0" 6' - 0"

New Construction FF 3' - 0" 3' - 6"

New Construction PA 2' - 6" 4' - 0" 3' - 2" DOUBLE HUNG POOL HOUSE

New Construction PB 2' - 6" 4' - 0" 3' - 2" DOUBLE HUNG POOL HOUSE

New Construction PC 2' - 6" 4' - 0" 3' - 2" DOUBLE HUNG POOL HOUSE

New Construction PD 2' - 6" 4' - 0" 3' - 2" DOUBLE HUNG POOL HOUSE

NOTE: ALL WINDOWS TO BE VINYL 
WHITE FINISH U.N.O.

NOTE: ALL COLORS AND FINISH 
SPECIFICATIONS TO BE SELECTED BY OWNER

DOOR SCHEDULE

Mark Width Height Family and Type Comments
Frame

Material Operation RS LS

100 3' - 0" 8' - 0" WOOD SINGLE: 36" x 8 ft

101 16' - 0" 8' - 0" 8039_Overhead_Panel_Garage_Door_Colonial_1952: 8' x 16'

102 6' - 0" 7' - 2" Door - Double - Glass: 72" x 86"

103 15' - 9 1/2" 7' - 4" Sliding_or_Stacking_Glazed_Wall_12803: Type 1

104 6' - 0" 7' - 2" Door - Double - Glass: 72" x 86"

105 2' - 8" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 32" x 86"

106 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

107 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

108 9' - 0" 7' - 2" Bifold-4 Panel_no trim: 108" x 82"

109 2' - 8" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 32" x 86"

110 4' - 0" 8' - 0" Door - Single - Pocket: 48" x 96"

111 4' - 0" 8' - 0" Door - Single - Pocket: 48" x 96"

112 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

113 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

114 6' - 0" 7' - 2" Bifold-4 Panel_no trim: 72" x 86"

115 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

116 6' - 0" 7' - 2" Bifold-4 Panel_no trim: 72" x 86"

117 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

118 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

119 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

120 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

121 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

122 2' - 8" 7' - 2" Door - Single - Pocket: 32" x 86"

123 3' - 0" 7' - 2" door-trustile_doors-ts2030: 36" x 86" 1-HR FIRE RATED

126 2' - 8" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 32" x 86"

127 2' - 8" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 32" x 86"

128 2' - 0" 7' - 2" Single-Linen Closet: 24" x 86"

131 3' - 0" 7' - 2" WOOD SINGLE: 36" X 86"

135 12' - 0" 8' - 0" 4-Panel_Sliding_door_17733: 4-Panel_Sliding_door_17733







P.O. Box 655

Sierra Madre, CA 91025

www.sapphosenvironmental.com

430 North Halstead Street

November 29, 2018 
Job Number: 2393-001 

Historical Evaluation for 
91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra Madre, California 91024 

DRAFT MEMORANDUM FOR THE RECORD 
2.6 2393-001.M01 

TO: City Constructors, Inc. 
3125 N. Broadway 
Los Angeles, CA 90031 
(Mr. Bryson Reaume) 

FROM: Sapphos Environmental, Inc. 
(Ms. Carrie Chasteen) 

SUBJECT: Historical Evaluation for 91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra 
Madre, California 91024 

ATTACHMENTS: A. Resumes of Key Personnel
B. DPR 523 Series Forms



Historical Evaluation for 91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra Madre, CA Draft Memorandum for the Record 
November 29, 2018  Sapphos Environmental, Inc. 
\\zeus\wp\Projects\2393\2393-001\Memos\MFR 1.docx Page 2 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
This Memorandum for the Record is undertaken on behalf of City Constructors, Inc. (Mr. Bryson 
Reaume) for the property located at 91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra Madre, California (APN 5767-037-
040. The property contains one 2,577-square-foot, 1-story, single-family Colonial Revival-style 
residential building and attached garage. The project proposes to construct front and rear additions, 
replace the windows, reconfigure the primary entry, and re-clad the building in shingles, an act 
that requires clearance from the City of Sierra Madre under the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA). Sapphos Environmental, Inc. understands that the subject property is greater than 75 
years of age as it was constructed in 1942 according to the Los Angeles County Assessor’s Property 
Assessment Information System. Therefore, a survey and evaluation of the property was required in 
order to determine whether the property meets the definition of a “historical resource” as defined 
in Section 15064.5(a) of the CEQA Guidelines. Sapphos Environmental, Inc. (Ms. Carrie Chasteen) 
determined the property is not eligible for inclusion in the National Register of Historic Places, the 
California Register of Historical Resources, or for designation as a Sierra Madre Historic Landmark. 
Therefore, the property does not constitute as a historical resource pursuant to CEQA (Section 
15064.5(a) of the CEQA Guidelines). Ms. Chasteen meets the Secretary of the Interior’s 
Professional Qualification Standards in the fields of History and Architectural History.  



Historical Evaluation for 91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra Madre, CA Draft Memorandum for the Record 
November 29, 2018  Sapphos Environmental, Inc. 
\\zeus\wp\Projects\2393\2393-001\Memos\MFR 1.docx Page 3 

INTRODUCTION 
 
This Memorandum for the Record (MFR) documents the historical evaluation undertaken by 
Sapphos Environmental, Inc. (Ms. Carrie Chasteen) for the property located at 91 E. Bonita Avenue, 
Sierra Madre, Los Angeles County, California (APN 5767-037-040). The property contains one 
2,577-square-foot, 1-story, single-family Colonial Revival-style residential building and attached 
garage. The subject property is located in the central region of the City of Sierra Madre (City). The 
subject property is not part of an existing City-designated historic district and was not previously 
identified as an individual historical resource. The property was not shown in the 1927–1941 
Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps.1 The current footprint of the primary residence is similar to the 
original, with the exception of the addition of an attached garage (Figure 1, 91 E. Bonita Avenue 
Footprint, 2018).  
 

  
Figure 1. 91 E. Bonita Avenue Footprint, 2018 

SOURCE: Los Angeles County Assessor, Property Assessment Information System,  
November 28, 2018 

 
This historical evaluation was prepared for City Constructors, Inc. to determine whether the subject 
residence with attached garage is considered a “historical resource” as defined in Section 
15064.5(a) of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. Sapphos 
Environmental, Inc. (Ms. Chasteen) conducted a site visit on November 14, 2018, to document the 
building.  Ms. Chasteen also conducted research for purposes of evaluating whether the residence 

                                                 
1  Sanborn-Perris Map Company. March 1927. Sierra Madre Index. 



Historical Evaluation for 91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra Madre, CA Draft Memorandum for the Record 
November 29, 2018  Sapphos Environmental, Inc. 
\\zeus\wp\Projects\2393\2393-001\Memos\MFR 1.docx Page 4 

meets the criteria for inclusion in the National Register of Historic Places (National Register), the 
California Register of Historical Resources (California Register), or for designation as a City Historic 
Landmark (City Landmark). Ms. Chasteen meets the Secretary of the Interior’s Professional 
Qualification Standards in the fields of History and Architectural History (Attachment A, Resumes 
of Key Personnel). 
 
This MFR includes a summary of the property’s setting; the findings of a field survey; and an 
assessment of the residence’s eligibility for listing in federal, state, and/or local registers. Sapphos 
Environmental, Inc. finds that the dwelling located at 91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra Madre does not 
possess sufficient significance to merit listing in the National Register, the California Register, or for 
designation as a City Landmark as an individual resource and would not contribute to a potential 
historic district. Therefore, the property does not constitute as a historical resource pursuant to 
CEQA. 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
The proposed project would construct two additions on the rear of the building that will not be 
visible from the public right-of-way. The proposed project would enclose a recessed area of the 
primary façade adjacent to the garage. Additionally, the project would reclad the building in 
coursed wood shingles. The windows would be replaced with six-over-one windows within the 
existing window openings. The primary entrance would be widened to incorporate sidelights 
flanking the doorway. A simple wood surround would frame the modified entryway. 
 
The garage would be altered with a front-facing gabled roof with round accent in the gable. The 
door would be replaced with carriage-style doors. Two sconces would be installed flanking the 
garage door for security purposes. 
 

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA 

 

Federal 
 
The National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, defines the criteria to be considered 
eligible for listing in the National Register: 
 

The quality of significance in American history, architecture, archeology, engineering, and 
culture is present in districts, sites, buildings, structures, and objects that possess integrity 
of location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, and association and 
 
A. that are associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the 

broad patterns of our history; or 
 
B. that are associated with the lives of persons significant in our past; or 
 
C.  that embody distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction, 

or that represent the work of a master, or that possess high artistic values, or that 
represent a significant and distinguishable entity whose components may lack 
individual distinction; or 

 
D.  that have yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or 

history (36 Code of Federal Regulations [CFR] Section part 63). 



Historical Evaluation for 91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra Madre, CA Draft Memorandum for the Record 
November 29, 2018  Sapphos Environmental, Inc. 
\\zeus\wp\Projects\2393\2393-001\Memos\MFR 1.docx Page 5 

 

State of California 

 
Section 5024.1(c), Title 14 CCR, Section 4852 of the California Public Resources Code defines the 
criteria to be considered eligible for listing in the California Register: 
 

A resource may be listed as an historical resource in the California Register if it meets any 
of the following [National Register] criteria: 
 
1.  Is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad 

patterns of California's history and cultural heritage; or 
 
2.  Is associated with the lives of persons important in our past; or 
 
3. Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, region, or method of 

construction, or represents the work of an important creative individual, or 
possesses high artistic values; or 

 
4.  Has yielded, or may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory or 

history. 
 

Section 15064.5(b) of the CEQA Guidelines identifies the following criteria which may result in a 
substantial adverse change to a historical resource: 
 

b)  A project with an effect that may cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of an historical resource is a project that may have a significant effect 
on the environment. 

 
(1)  Substantial adverse change in the significance of an historical resource 

means physical demolition, destruction, relocation, or alteration of the 
resource or its immediate surroundings such that the significance of an 
historical resource would be materially impaired. 

 
(2)  The significance of an historical resource is materially impaired when a 

project: 
 
(A) Demolishes or materially alters in an adverse manner those physical 

characteristics of an historical resource that convey its historical 
significance and that justify its inclusion in, or eligibility for, 
inclusion in the California Register of Historical Resources; or 

 
(B) Demolishes or materially alters in an adverse manner those physical 

characteristics that account for its inclusion in a local register of 
historical resources pursuant to section 5020.1(k) of the Public 
Resources Code or its identification in an historical resources survey 
meeting the requirements of section 5024.1(g) of the Public 
Resources Code, unless the public agency reviewing the effects of 
the project establishes by a preponderance of evidence that the 
resource is not historically or culturally significant; or 

 



Historical Evaluation for 91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra Madre, CA Draft Memorandum for the Record 
November 29, 2018  Sapphos Environmental, Inc. 
\\zeus\wp\Projects\2393\2393-001\Memos\MFR 1.docx Page 6 

(C) Demolishes or materially alters in an adverse manner those physical 
characteristics of a historical resource that convey its historical 
significance and that justify its eligibility for inclusion in the 
California Register of Historical Resources as determined by a lead 
agency for purposes of CEQA. 

 
 (3)  Generally, a project that follows the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for 

the Treatment of Historic Properties with Guidelines for Preserving, 
Rehabilitating, Restoring, and Reconstructing Historic Buildings or the 
Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation and Guidelines for 
Rehabilitating Historic Buildings (1995), Weeks and Grimmer, shall be 
considered as mitigated to a level of less than a significant impact on the 
historical resource. 

 

City of Sierra Madre  
 
Chapter17.82. of the Zoning section for the Sierra Madre Municipal Code provides the following 
designation criteria:  
 

For the purposes of this chapter, an improvement, natural feature, or site may be 
designated a historic landmark by the city council upon a recommendation by the 
commission if it meets at least one of the following criteria:  
 
A. Historic. It was the site of, or is associated with local, state or national cultural, 

social, economic, political or natural history, events or persons significant to the 
history of Sierra Madre, or it reflects significant geographical patterns, including 
those associated with different eras of settlement and growth, particular 
transportation modes, or distinctive examples of park or community planning.  

 
B.  Architectural. It is representative of the work or is one of a few remaining examples 

of a notable builder, designer or architect, or, it embodies distinctive characteristics 
of a style, type, period or method of construction, or, is a valuable example of 
architectural achievement or innovation such as the use of indigenous materials or 
craftsmanship.  

 

HISTORIC CONTEXT 

 

Early Development of Sierra Madre  
 
The Spanish entered the San Gabriel Valley area in 1761, displacing the native Tongva villages and 
creating the Mission San Gabriel Arcángel. Sierra Madre was initially developed by Nathaniel 
Carter, after whom Carter Avenue is named, and purchased 1,103 acres of land for the town in 
1881 from Elias “Lucky” Baldwin. Baldwin was a trader who had purchased valuable properties in 
San Francisco, eventually acquiring the former Spanish Santa Anita Rancho from one of the land 
speculators who were acquiring Foothill Region land short term which they sold for a quick profit. 
Baldwin became well known for creating the first Santa Anita horse race track. 
 
Significant infrastructure was initiated to form the town. Between 1882 and 1900, a firehouse was 
constructed, followed by the Sierra Madre Water Company, a schoolhouse, a cigar factory, a 
church, a library, and the first town hall. Just after the Pacific Electric Railway (Red Car) line was 



Historical Evaluation for 91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra Madre, CA Draft Memorandum for the Record 
November 29, 2018  Sapphos Environmental, Inc. 
\\zeus\wp\Projects\2393\2393-001\Memos\MFR 1.docx Page 7 

constructed in 1906, the first electric lights and telephone lines were installed, and Baldwin 
Avenue was paved. The name of Central Avenue, the Red Car line’s path, was changed to Sierra 
Madre Boulevard on January 8, 1936.2  
 

Street Car Development  

 
The Red Car line in the San Gabriel Valley was developed and reached Sierra Madre in early 1906. 
Its last stop was near the Mount Wilson Trail. Stated the Los Angeles Times, “…during the Great 
Hiking Era (1895–1938), thousands of Southern Californians rode the Pacific Electric red cars to 
Sierra Madre.” The Red Car line was responsible for encouraging Sierra Madre’s continued period 
of development early in the 20th century after that line was constructed into Sierra Madre along 
Central Avenue, now known as Sierra Madre Boulevard. 
 
Throughout the United States, the introduction of the electric streetcar dramatically changed 
suburbanization patterns by allowing people to travel the equivalent of a 30-minute walk in 10 
minutes. Residential tracts sprouted up near each of the streetcar stops, typically no further than a 
10-minute walk from the station.  
 
The impact that the early Red Car line transportation system had on the development of Sierra 
Madre preceded the subject property at 91 E. Bonita Avenue, as most of the City’s related 
residential development attributable to the improvement of the City’s transportation infrastructure 
occurred between 1906 and 1930. Nevertheless, the Red Car line was not only responsible for 
encouraging Sierra Madre’s largest period of development; it also became a beloved mode of pre-
war and war-time transportation through the 1940s during the period when the subject property 
was improved with its current residence. On October 6, 1950, local residents traveled to see a Red 
Car make its last run out of the City. Angelinos and Sierra Madre residents alike filmed the event, 
and in the past decades, books, and documentaries have been created about the popularity of the 
line.  

 

PROPERTY HISTORY 

 

Site and Building History  

 
The subject property is not located within a platted tract and the original building permit was not 
available. The original architect, if any, and builder are unknown. In 1963, a permit was issued for 
the demolition of a garage and guest room.3 A permit for the construction of a 24-foot by 24-foot 
garage was issued the same year.4 In 1967, a permit was issued for the construction of a rear 
bedroom and lanai.5 In 1992, a permit was issued for the construction of a rear aluminum patio 
with screen and acrylic enclosure.6 No additional permits have been issued for the property. 

 

Ownership History 

 

                                                 
2  “Sierra Madre Historical Timeline.” City of Sierra Madre. Accessed September 2017. Available at: 

http://cityofsierramadre.hosted.civiclive.com/services/library/local_history/sierra_madre_timeline/ 

3  City of Sierra Madre. Building Permit No. 86. Issued May 8, 1963. 

4  City of Sierra Madre. Building Permit No. 55. Issued April 1, 1963. 

5  City of Sierra Madre. Building Permit No. 4021. Issued June 9, 1967. 

6  City of Sierra Madre. Building Permit No. 26750. Issued February 24, 1992. 



Historical Evaluation for 91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra Madre, CA Draft Memorandum for the Record 
November 29, 2018  Sapphos Environmental, Inc. 
\\zeus\wp\Projects\2393\2393-001\Memos\MFR 1.docx Page 8 

Based upon a review of the Los Angeles County Assessor’s parcel data, the property changed 
ownership several times between 1926 and 2015 (Table 1, Assessor Data, APN 5767-037-040). 
 

TABLE 1 

ASSESSOR DATA, APN 5767-037-040 
 

Map Book No. Page No. Date Name 

303 25 1926–1939 Robert D. Dodge 

303 pt. 1 25 1939–1950 Robert D. and Harriet M. Dodge 

303 pt. 2 201 1951–1955 Robert D. and Harriet M. Dodge 

303 pt. 2 201 1956–1960 Robert D. and Harriet M. Dodge 

5767 37 1961 Robert D. and Harriet M. Dodge 

  2011* Anna M. Hession 

  2014* Mary A. Golden 

  2014* Mursol Real Estate LLC 

  2015* Bryson V. Reaume 

* Denotes information obtained from the Los Angeles County Assessor’s public counter. 

 
Based upon a review of to the Assessor tax rolls, the property was improved in 1950. However, the 
original building permit is not available to confirm if the subject property was developed in 1942 
or 1950. Robert D. Dodge was a native of Canada and worked as an “organizing salesman” in the 
medical records industry. Harriet M. Dodge was a native of Illinois and did not work outside the 
home.7 No information was available for Anna M. Hession, Mary A. Golden, or Mursol Real Estate 
LLC. The current owner of the property is Bryson V. Reaume. 

 

FIELD SURVEY FINDINGS 
 
Sapphos Environmental, Inc. Historic Resources staff (Ms. Chasteen; Attachment A) conducted an 
intensive-level field survey of 91 E. Bonita Avenue and its setting on November 14, 2018. Ms. 
Chasteen meets the Secretary of the Interior’s Professional Qualification Standards in the fields of 
History and Architectural History. 
 
Research was also conducted in the building permits on file at the City of Sierra Madre Building 
and Safety Department and the Sierra Madre public library. Additional research was conducted in 
online resources including newspapers, Ancestry.com, and Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps. 
 

BUILDING DESCRIPTION 

 
The primary residence is set back from the street approximately 50 feet and is located above the 
street due to topography. The 1-story Colonial Revival-style residence is irregular in plan and has a 
cross-gabled roof clad in composition shingles. The primary façade features three bays. The 
easternmost and westernmost bays are similar, and both feature brick veneer and paired four-over-
four wood sash windows with false shutters. A brick chimney pierces the roof near the ridge line of 
the western bay. The central bay features five evenly-spaced columns that support the roof which 
overhangs to shelter the porch spanning this bay. The porch is raised and accessed via brick-clad 
stairs. The bay is asymmetrical with a pair of eight-over-eight wood windows with wood surrounds. 
Located near the eastern end of this bay is the primary entrance which features a wood door with 

                                                 
7  Year: 1940; Census Place: Monrovia, Los Angeles, California; Roll: m-t0627-00237; Page: 16A; Enumeration 

District: 19-384 



Historical Evaluation for 91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra Madre, CA Draft Memorandum for the Record 
November 29, 2018  Sapphos Environmental, Inc. 
\\zeus\wp\Projects\2393\2393-001\Memos\MFR 1.docx Page 9 

Chippendale-style broken pediment wood surround. A pendant light illuminates the entryway; it is 
unclear if the pendant light is original to the building. The central bay is clad in smooth-textured 
stucco (Figure 2, Primary Residence, 91 E. Bonita Avenue).  
 

 
Figure 2. Primary Residence, 91 E. Bonita Avenue 

SOURCE: Sapphos Environmental, Inc., 2018 
 
The two-car garage features a side-gabled roof clad in composition shingles. The building is clad in 
smooth textured stucco. The door was replaced with a modern metal with glazing roll-up door at 
an unknown date (Figure 3, Garage, 91 E. Bonita Avenue). 
 
An ancillary building is located in the central eastern portion of the parcel and is not visible from 
the public right-of-way. 
  



Historical Evaluation for 91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra Madre, CA Draft Memorandum for the Record 
November 29, 2018  Sapphos Environmental, Inc. 
\\zeus\wp\Projects\2393\2393-001\Memos\MFR 1.docx Page 10 

 
Figure 3. Garage, 91 E. Bonita Avenue 

SOURCE: Sapphos Environmental, Inc., 2018 
Setting 

 
Neighboring residences were largely constructed in the 1960s in the Ranch style of architecture. 
 

EVALUATION 
 

Criterion A/1/A 
 
The subject property is not located within a platted tract. The current residence was constructed in 
1942 according to the Los Angeles County Property Assessment Information System, during a 
period when Southern California experienced little real estate development as a result of World 
War II. The residence is not associated with a significant period of growth and is not individually 
significant in the early development of Sierra Madre. Therefore, the property is not eligible for 
listing under Criterion A/1/A for the National Register, California Register, or as a City Landmark. 
 

Criterion B/2/A 
 
Persons who made demonstrably significant contributions to the history of the nation, state, or 
region are not known to be associated with this property. Therefore, the property is not eligible for 
listing under Criterion B/2/A for the National Register, the California Register, or as a City 
Landmark. 
 

Criterion C/3/B 
 
The residence located on the subject property is a Colonial Revival-style building. Although there 
are few examples of this style of architecture in the City, this building is a low-style example of this 
architectural style. The only character-defining features that reflect this architecture style are the 
front porch with columns and the Chippendale-style broken pediment door surround on the 
primary entryway. The remainder of the building has minimal architectural detail and style. 
Because the building is a low-style example of Colonial Revival architecture, it does not embody 
the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction and does not possess 



Historical Evaluation for 91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra Madre, CA Draft Memorandum for the Record 
November 29, 2018  Sapphos Environmental, Inc. 
\\zeus\wp\Projects\2393\2393-001\Memos\MFR 1.docx Page 11 

high artistic value. The building is not known to be the work of a master. Therefore, the property is 
not eligible for listing under Criterion C/3/B for the National Register, the California Register, or as 
a City Landmark. 
 

Criterion D/4 
 
The subject property is ineligible for the National Register or the California Register under Criteria 
D/4, as it is not anticipated to yield, nor may be likely to yield, information important in prehistory 
or history (Attachment B, DPR 523 Series Forms). 
 

Statement of Integrity  
 
The subject property was evaluated against the seven aspects of integrity as outlined in the 
California Code of Regulations (Section 4852 [C]),8 and described in the National Register Program. 
The seven aspects of integrity include location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling, 
and association. As described above, the building has been altered with rear additions which are 
not visible from the public right-of-way. However, the attached garage is an addition that has not 
achieve 75 years of age. The building has not been moved. Therefore, the building retains integrity 
of design, materials, workmanship, feeling, association, and location. Neighboring buildings were 
constructed in the 1960s and in 2005. Therefore, the property does not retain integrity of setting. 
Although the building possesses sufficient integrity for consideration for listing in a historical 
register, it does not meet one or more eligibility criteria for listing in the National Register, 
California Register, or for designation as a City Historic Landmark. 
 

CONCLUSION 
 
Sapphos Environmental, Inc. determined the property located at 91 E. Bonita Avenue is ineligible 
for listing in the National Register, California Register, or designation as a City Historic Landmark.  
Therefore, the subject property does not constitute as a historical resource as defined in Section 
15064.5(a) of the CEQA Guidelines.  
 
Should there be any questions regarding the information contained in this MFR, please contact  
Ms. Carrie Chasteen at (626) 683-3547, extension 102. 

                                                 
8  California Office of Historic Preservation. 1999. California State Law and Historic Preservation, 4853 (c), p. 66. 



ATTACHMENT A 

RESUMES OF KEY PERSONNEL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Carrie E. Chasteen, MS

Historic Resources Manager 

Master of Science, (Historic 
Preservation), School of 
the Art Institute of 
Chicago, Chicago, Illinois 

Bachelor of Arts (History and 
Political Science), 
University of South 
Florida, Tampa, Florida 

• Cultural resource 
management and legal 
compliance

• History of California
• Architectural History
• Cultural History
• Identification and 

evaluation of the built 
environment

• Archival documentation
• Historic preservation 

consultation
• Certified Oregon 

Transportation 
Investment Act (OTIA) III 
CS3 Technical Lead 

• Historic Preservation 
Commissioner, City of 
Pasadena

• Phi Alpha Theta National 
Honor Society

Years of Experience: 16 

Relevant Experience: 

• Historic Evaluation for 
54 Parks, Golf Course, 
and Aboreta Project 

• Historic Evaluation and 
Design Review for Fries 
Avenue Elementary 
School

• Los Angeles Union 
Station Forecourt and 
Esplanade Project

• Los Angeles Music 
Center

Ms. Carrie Chasteen has more than 16 years of experience in the field of 
cultural resources management and the built environment, including 
project management, agency coordination, archival research, managing 
large surveys, preparation of Environmental Impact Statement/ 
Environmental Impact Report (EIS/EIR) sections, Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (MND) and Initial Study (IS) sections, peer review, and 
regulatory compliance. She has served as Principal Investigator / 
Principal Architectural Historian on projects throughout Los Angeles 
County. Ms. Chasteen meets and exceeds the Secretary of the Interior’s 
Professional Qualification Standards in the fields of History and 
Architectural History. She has extensive experience with the City of Los 
Angeles Office of Historic Resources (OHR), California Office of Historic 
Preservation, California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), County of 
Los Angeles Department of Parks and Recreation, and various other state, 
county, and local government agencies. 

On behalf of the County of Los Angeles (County) Department of Parks 
and Recreation, Ms. Chasteen is managing the documentation and 
evaluation of 54 parks, golf courses, and arboreta. The historic 
evaluations assess County facilities that were identified as priorities due to 
the age of the facility, architect of record, or affiliation with event of 
importance to the history of development of Los Angeles County. The 
historic evaluations consider eligibility for listing on the National Register of 
Historic Places, the California Register of Historical Resources, the 
standards provided in CEQA, and the County Register of Landmarks and 
Historic Districts. The results documented in the historic evaluations 
were used by the County to address future projects in the facilities, alter 
plans as needed, and to inform a Cultural Resources Treatment Plan 
(CRTP) and Worker Environmental Awareness Program (WEAP) 
training. 

On behalf of the Los Angeles Unified School District (LAUSD), Ms. 
Chasteen prepared a historical evaluation of the Fries Avenue 
Elementary School. The evaluation tiered off the historic context and 
registration criteria developed for the award-winning LAUSD Historic 
Context Statement, 1870 to 1969. The property was determined to be a 
historical resource pursuant to CEQA. As a result, Ms. Chasteen also 
reviewed the design of the proposed campus revisions to determine if the 
proposed project complied with the Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties. 

On behalf of the County of Los Angeles, Ms. Chasteen reviewed plans for 
the proposed renovation of the plaza at the Los Angeles Music Center. 
Design refinements were suggested and implemented in order to reduce 
impacts to the plaza and it’s character-defining features.  

Ms. Chasteen is a member of the Society of Architectural Historians, 
National Trust, California Preservation Foundation, Los Angeles 
Conservancy, Pasadena Heritage, and currently serves as a City of 
Pasadena Historic Preservation Commissioner. 



ATTACHMENT B 

DPR 523 SERIES FORMS 

 



State of California ⎯ The Resources Agency  Primary #  
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION  HRI #   

PRIMARY RECORD    Trinomial   

       NRHP Status Code: 6Z 
    Other Listings  
 Review Code   Reviewer  Date   

 

DPR 523A (9/2013) *Required information  

Page 1 of 5 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder): 91 E. Bonita Avenue 

P1. Other Identifier: None 

 
*P2. Location: ☐ Not for Publication     ☒ Unrestricted  

*a. County: Los Angeles and (P2b and P2c or P2d. Attach a Location Map as necessary.) 

*b. USGS 7.5' Quad:  Mount Wilson Date: 1995   T1N; R11W;     of     of Sec ;     B.M. 

c. Address: 91 E. Bonita Avenue City: Sierra Madre  Zip: 91024  
d. UTM (Give more than one for large and/or linear resources)  Zone:       ,             mE/             mN 
e. Other Locational Data: (e.g., parcel #, directions to resource, elevation, etc., as appropriate): APN 5767-037-027 

 
*P3a. Description (Describe resource and its major elements.  Include design, materials, condition, alterations, size, setting, and 

boundaries):  
 
The primary residence is set back from the street approximately 50 feet and is located above the 

street due to topography. The 1-story Colonial Revival-style residence is irregular in plan and has 

a cross-gabled roof clad in composition shingles. The primary façade features three bays. The 

easternmost and westernmost bays are similar, and both feature brick veneer and paired four-over-

four wood sash windows with false shutters. A brick chimney pierces the roof near the ridge line of 

the western bay. The central bay features five evenly-spaced columns that support the roof which 

overhangs to shelter the porch spanning this bay. The porch is raised and accessed via brick-clad 

stairs. The bay is asymmetrical with a pair of eight-over-eight wood windows with wood surrounds. 

Located near the eastern end of this bay is the primary entrance which features a wood door with 

Chippendale-style broken pediment wood surround. A pendant light illuminates the entryway; it is 

unclear if the pendant light is original to the building. The central bay is clad in smooth-

textured stucco. (See Continuation Sheet page 4) 

 
*P3b.  Resource Attributes (List attributes and codes): HP2 Single-family residence 
 

*P4.  Resources Present: ☒Building  ☐Structure  ☐Object  ☐Site  ☐District  ☐Element of District  ☐Other (Isolates, etc.) 

 
P5b.  Description of Photo (view, date, 
accession #): Facing northeast; 
November 14, 2018; IMG_2350 

 
*P6.  Date Constructed/Age and Source:  

☒Historic   ☐Prehistoric   ☐Both 

 
*P7.  Owner and Address:   
Bryson Reaume 

91 E. Bonita Avenue 

Sierra Madre, CA 91024 

 
*P8.  Recorded by (Name, affiliation, and 
address): Carrie Chasteen 
Sapphos Environmental, Inc. 

430 N. Halstead Street 

Pasadena, CA  91107 

 
*P9. Date Recorded: November 14, 2018 

   
*P10. Survey Type (Describe): Intensive 

 
*P11. Report Citation (Cite survey report and 
other sources, or enter "none"): Sapphos 

Environmental, Inc. 2017. Historic Evaluation for 91 E. Bonita Avenue, Sierra Madre, California 

91024. 
 

 

 

Attachments: ☐ NONE  ☒ Location Map  ☐ Sketch Map  ☒ Continuation Sheet ☒  Building, Structure, and Object Record  

☐ Archaeological Record  ☐ District Record  ☐ Linear Feature Record  ☐ Milling Station Record  ☐ Rock Art Record  

☐  Artifact Record  ☐ Photograph Record ☐  Other (List): 

P5a. Photo or Drawing (Photo required for buildings, structures, and objects.) 
 

 



State of California ⎯ The Resources Agency  Primary #  
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION  HRI #   

BUILDING, STRUCTURE, AND OBJECT RECORD 
*Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder): 91 E. Bonita Avenue   *NRHP Status Code: 6Z 

Page 2 of 5 

 

DPR 523B (9/2013) *Required information  

B1. Historic Name: Robert D. and Harriet M. Dodge Residence 

B2. Common Name: 91 E. Bonita Avenue 

B3. Original Use:  Single-family residence B4.  Present Use:  Single-family residence 

*B5. Architectural Style: Colonial Revival  

*B6. Construction History: (Construction date, alterations, and date of alterations)  
 

The subject property is not located within a platted tract and the original building permit was 

not available. The original architect, if any, and builder are unknown. In 1963, a permit was 

issued for the demolition of a garage and guest room.  A permit for the construction of a 24-foot 

by 24-foot garage was issued the same year.  In 1967, a permit was issued for the construction of 

a rear bedroom and lanai.  In 1992, a permit was issued for the construction of a rear aluminum 

patio with screen and acrylic enclosure.  No additional permits have been issued for the 

property. 

 

*B7. Moved? ☒ No     ☐ Yes     ☐ Unknown Date: N/A Original Location: N/A 

*B8. Related Features: Ancillary building 

B9a.  Architect:  N/A  b. Builder:  N/A 

*B10. Significance: Theme:  Residential architecture Area:  Sierra Madre 

Period of Significance: 1942  Property Type: Residential    Applicable Criteria: N/A 

(Discuss importance in terms of historical or architectural context as defined by theme, period, and geographic scope. Also 
address integrity.)   

 

Criterion A/1/A 

 

The subject property is not located within a platted tract. The current residence was constructed 

in 1942 according to the Los Angeles County Property Assessment Information System, during a 

period when Southern California experienced little real estate development as a result of World 

War II. The residence is not associated with a significant period of growth and is not 

individually significant in the early development of Sierra Madre. Therefore, the property is not 

eligible for listing under Criterion A/1/A for the National Register, California Register, or as 

a City Landmark. 

 

Criterion B/2/A 

 

Persons who made demonstrably significant contributions to the history of the nation, state, or 

region are not known to be associated with this property. Therefore, the property is not eligible 

for listing under Criterion B/2/A for the National Register, the California Register, or as a 

City Landmark. (See Continuation Sheet page 5) 

 

B11. Additional Resource Attributes (List attributes and codes): N/A 
 

*B12. References: See Continuation Sheet page 5. 

 
*B13. Remarks:  N/A 

 
*B14. Evaluator:   
Carrie Chasteen 

Sapphos Environmental, Inc. 

430 N. Halstead Street 

Pasadena, CA  91107 

 
*Date of Evaluation: November 30, 2018 

(Sketch Map with north arrow required.) 

 

(This space reserved for official comments.) 



State of California ⎯ Natural Resources Agency    Primary #  
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION  HRI #  

LOCATION MAP      Trinomial  

 

DPR 523J (9/2013) *Required information  

Page 3 of 5 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder): 91 E. Bonita Avenue 
 

*Map Name:  Mt. Wilson       *Scale:  1:24,0000          *Date of map: 1995 

 

 
 



State of California ⎯ Natural Resources Agency    Primary #  
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION  HRI #  

CONTINUATION SHEET     Trinomial  

 

DPR 523L (9/2013) *Required information  

Page 4 of 5 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder): 91 E. Bonita Avenue 

 
*P3a. Description: (Continued from Primary Record page 1) 

 

 
 

The two-car garage features a side-gabled roof clad in composition shingles. The building is 

clad in smooth textured stucco. The door was replaced with a modern metal with glazing roll-up 

door at an unknown date. 

 

 
 

An ancillary building is located in the central eastern portion of the parcel and is not visible 

from the public right-of-way. 

 
 
  



State of California ⎯ Natural Resources Agency    Primary #  
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION  HRI #  

CONTINUATION SHEET     Trinomial  

 

DPR 523L (9/2013) *Required information  

Page 5 of 5 *Resource Name or # (Assigned by recorder): 91 E. Bonita Avenue 

 
*B10. Significance: (Continued from Building, Structure, and Object Record page 2) 
 

Criterion C/3/B 
 
The residence located on the subject property is a Colonial Revival-style building. Although 

there are few examples of this style of architecture in the City, this building is a low-style 

example of this architectural style. The only character-defining features that reflect this 

architecture style are the front porch with columns and the Chippendale-style broken pediment 

door surround on the primary entryway. The remainder of the building has minimal architectural 

detail and style. Because the building is a low-style example of Colonial Revival architecture, 

it does not embody the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of construction 

and does not possess high artistic value. The building is not known to be the work of a master. 

Therefore, the property is not eligible for listing under Criterion C/3/B for the National 

Register, the California Register, or as a City Landmark. 

 

Criterion D/4 

 

The subject property is ineligible for the National Register or the California Register under 

Criteria D/4, as it is not anticipated to yield, nor may be likely to yield, information 

important in prehistory or history*B12. References: 

 
*B12. References: (Continued from Building, Structure, and Object Record page 2) 
 

City of Sierra Madre. Building Permit No. 86. Issued May 8, 1963. 

 

City of Sierra Madre. Building Permit No. 55. Issued April 1, 1963. 

 

City of Sierra Madre. Building Permit No. 4021. Issued June 9, 1967. 

 

City of Sierra Madre. Building Permit No. 26750. Issued February 24, 1992. 

 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 8: 

SITE SURVEY MAP 

  





ATTACHMENT 9: 

CONCEPTUAL LANDSCPAE AND LID PLAN 

  



NEW STEPS

FOUNTAIN
ON PEBBLES

NEW FRUIT TREES

LOW PILLAR FUTURE POOL HOUSE

& PERGOLA

NEW RETAINING
WALL

VEGETABLE BOX
TYP

BUILT IN BENCH
FIRE PLACE

D
O

W
N

POOL
DOWN

SPA

DOWN

NEW RETAINING
WALLEXISTING TREE

TO REMAIN
NEW LARGE
ACCENT TREE

LAWN

REUME RESIDENCE

STONE
DECKING

WOOD OR
TREX DECK

STONE PATHWAY

STONE
DECKING

GRAVEL PATHWAY

EXISTING TREE
TO REMAIN

GRAVEL

34'-3"

1
1
'-2

"

DOWNDOWNDOWNDOWN

DOWN

NEW CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY

LAWN

LAWN

LAWN

(E) TREE
TO REMAIN

GRAVEL

GRAVEL
BENCH

BENCH

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

(E)

Dwarf English Boxwood

Echinacea purpurea 'Flame Thrower'

118 - 5 gal

Existing Hedge to remain

Aegopodium podagraria 'Variegatum'

Pink Mist Pincushion Flower

Dwarf Pincushion Bush

212 - 1 gal

Juniperus squameta 'Blue Star'

40 - 1 gal

30 - 1 gal

16 - 1 gal

54 - 1 gal

Podocarpus macrophyllus

455 sq. ft. - 6' o.c. - In flats, triangular spacing

PLANT LEGEND:

(E)

Sweet Alyssum Lobularia hybrid

220 sq. ft. - 18" o.c. - In flats, triangular spacing

15 sq. ft. - 10" o.c. - In flats, triangular spacing

Trachelospermum Jasminoides

Sophora secundiflora 3 - 24" Box

Citrus Tree 8 - 5 gal.

1- 24" BoxPistacia chinensis

2 - 24" gal.Tabebuia impegitinosa

1- 5 galHydrangea quercifolia

34 - 1 galAgastache foeniculum 'Golden Jubilee'

1 - 36" BoxLive Oak

GROUNDCOVERS:

SHRUBS: TREES:

Simbol Botanical Name Common Name Quantity- Size

Buxus sempervirens 'Suffruticosa'

Flame Thrower Echinacea

Scabiosa columbaria 'Pink Mist'

Scabiosa farinosa

Blue star juniper

Yew Podocarpus

Oakleaf Hydrangea

Golden Jubilee Anise Hyssop

Simbol Botanical Name Common Name Quantity- Size

Texas Mountain Laurel

Citrus Tree

Chinese Pistachio

Pink Trumpet Tree

Live Oak

Simbol Botanical Name Common Name Quantity - Size - Notes

Variegated Bishop's weed

Snow Princes

Star Jasmine

REVISION:

DESIGN BY:  EAE

SCALE: AS SHOWN

300 S. WALNUT AVE STE. 401
SAN DIMAS CA 91773

OFFICE:         626.332.1527
FAX:               909.305.0109

     CA LIC. C53 985267

SHEET:

A
 
N

E
W

 
L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 
D

E
S

I
G

N
 
F

O
R

:

R
E

A
U

M
E

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

C
E

SCALE 1/8" = 1'-0"
PLANTING PLAN N

O
R

T
H

L1.2

NOTE: NO PROTECTED TREES ON SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
98.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
101.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
99.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
102.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
102.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
104.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
207.3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
107.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
107.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
106.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
103.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
102.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
102.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF ELEV:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIERRA MADRE, CA   

AutoCAD SHX Text
91 BONITA AVENUE



FUTURE POOL HOUSE

D
O

W
N

POOL
DOWN

SPA

DOWN

LAWN

REUME RESIDENCE

STONE
DECKING

WOOD OR
TREX DECK

STONE PATHWAY

STONE
DECKING

GRAVEL PATHWAY

GRAVEL

NEW CONCRETE
DRIVEWAY

LAWN
LAWN

LAWN

1
1
'-2

"

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

1
" 3
/4

"

3/4"

3
/4

"

3
/4

"

3
/4

"
3
/4

"

3
/4

"

3
/4

"

3/4"

EXISTING TREE
TO REMAIN

3
/4

"3
/4

"

3
/4

"

3
/4

"

3/4"

1
"

1
"

1
"

1"

1"

3
/4

"

3
/4

"

1
"

3/4"

3/4"

1"

3/4"

3
/4

"

3/4"

1"

3
/4

"

3
/4

"

3
/4

"

3
/4

"
1
"

3
/4

"

3
/4

"
3
/4

"

3
/4

"

3
/4

"

3
/4

"

3
/4

"

3
/4

"

3/4"

3/4"

3/4"

3/4"

1"

1"

3
/4

"
1
"

3/4"3/4"3/4"

1
-1

/4
"

3
/4

"

POINT OF CONNECTION AT
EXISTING WATER METER

3/4"

3/4" 3/4"

3/4"

3
/4

"

3/4"

3/4"

3/4"

1
-1

/4
"

3/4"3/4"

1"
1"

1
-1

/4
"

3/4"

3/4"

3/4"

1
"

1
"

1"

1
"

1
"

1"
1-1/4"

EXISTING TREE
TO REMAIN

EXISTING TREE
TO REMAIN

I R R I G A T I O N  L E G E N D

REVISION:

DESIGN BY:  EAE

SCALE: AS SHOWN

300 S. WALNUT AVE STE. 401
SAN DIMAS CA 91773

OFFICE:         626.332.1527
FAX:               909.305.0109

     CA LIC. C53 985267

SHEET:

A
 
N

E
W

 
L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 
D

E
S

I
G

N
 
F

O
R

:

R
E

A
U

M
E

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

C
E

SCALE 1/8" = 1'-0"
IRRIGATION PLAN N

O
R

T
H

L1.3

NOTE: NO PROTECTED TREES ON SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
99.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF ELEV:

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1404 1.00 GPM FULL CIRCLE BUBBLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
B1

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.35 GPM

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.95 GPM

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.55 GPM

AutoCAD SHX Text
A2

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.40 GPM

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
B2

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
A4

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.08 GPM

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.81 GPM

AutoCAD SHX Text
B3

AutoCAD SHX Text
B1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1

AutoCAD SHX Text
B3

AutoCAD SHX Text
A4

AutoCAD SHX Text
A6

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
B2

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-1/4" MAINLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" SLEEVE TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" SLEEVE TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" SLEEVE TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" SLEEVE TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-1/4" MAINLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-1/4" MAINLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-1/4" MAINLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.39 GPM

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3

AutoCAD SHX Text
A5

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.02 GPM

AutoCAD SHX Text
A6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2 TIMES DIAMETER OF PIPE, MIN. 24" COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC 1120 SCH 40, CELL CLASS 1245A, SOLVENT WELD, NSF APPROVED, SLEEVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC 1120 SCH 40, CELL CLASS 1245A, SOLVENT WELD, NSF APPROVED, LATERAL PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE PER PLAN, INSTALL MIN. 12" COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
100-PGA-PRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
45-UB SERIES BALL VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-401 HOSE BIBB

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF CONNECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC 1120 SCH 40, CELL CLASS 1245A, SOLVENT WELD, NSF APPROVED, MAINLINE PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1800-SAM-PRS POP-UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PACIFIC PLASTICS OR EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
12Q

AutoCAD SHX Text
12H

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAINBIRD

AutoCAD SHX Text
10T

AutoCAD SHX Text
10Q

AutoCAD SHX Text
10H

AutoCAD SHX Text
10F

AutoCAD SHX Text
POC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NIBCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAMPION

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAINBIRD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALL VALVE, LINE SIZE, INSTALL PER DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOSE BIBB ON 24" GALVANIZED NIPPLE WITH BACKFLOW DEVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT MAINLINE TO EXISTING WATER METER. VERIFY LOCATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1800-SAM AT ALL PAVING SURFACES, CURBS, AND DRIVES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE PER PLAN, INSTALL @ MIN. 18" COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GPM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PSI

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATTERN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC PRESSURE REGULATING REMOTE CONTROL VALVE ON SCH 80 RISERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8H

AutoCAD SHX Text
8Q

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
180

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
360

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
180

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
180

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15Q

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANUFACTURER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYMBOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODEL NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION/REMARKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8F

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
360

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1804-SAM IN ALL LAWN AREAS  1806-SAM IN ALL PLANTER AREAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5T

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15EST

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' X 15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15SST

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' X 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15RCS

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' X 15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
8T

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8V

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
10V

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
12F

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
360

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
12T

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
12V

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
15F

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
360

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
15H

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
180

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
15V

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
15LCS

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' X 15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
5Q

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
18H

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
180

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
18Q

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24H

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
180

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24Q

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24T

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1404 1.00 GPM FULL CIRCLE BUBBLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
360

AutoCAD SHX Text
"      "    "  "      "      "          "      "    "  "    "          "

AutoCAD SHX Text
AR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NETAFIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
NETAFIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
AIR RELIEF VALVE-TLAVRV

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLUSH VALVE TL050MFV-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NETAFIM

AutoCAD SHX Text
TLDL-.6 GPH-18" TECHLINE PRESSURE COMPENSATING DRIPPER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE PER PLAN, INSTALL MIN. 4" COVER, MAX. 6" DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
XCZ-100-PRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAINBIRD

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOW FLOW CONTROL VALVE WITH PRESSURE REGULATING FILTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIERRA MADRE, CA   

AutoCAD SHX Text
91 BONITA AVENUE





P
R

O
JE

C
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
:

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 F
O

R
:

E
G

L
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s,
 I

nc
.

11
81

9 
G

O
L

D
R

IN
G

 R
O

A
D

,
U

N
IT

 A
,

A
R

C
A

D
IA

, C
A

 9
10

06

T
E

L
: (

62
6)

 2
63

-3
58

8
F

A
X

: (
62

6)
 2

63
-3

59
9

B
R

Y
S

O
N

 
&

 
M

O
N

I
C

A
 
R

E
A

U
M

E

9
1
 
E

.
 
B

O
N

I
T

A
 
A

V
E

R
O

S
E

M
E

A
D

,
 
C

A
 
9
1
0
2
4

T
E

L
:
 
2
1
3
-
6
2
8
-
8
8
8
2

S
F

R
 
A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N

9
1

 
E

.
 
B

O
N

I
T

A
 
A

V
E

S
I
E

R
R

A
 
M

A
D

R
E

,
 
C

A
 
9

1
0

2
4

A
P

N
:
 
5

7
6

7
-
0

3
7

-
0

4
0

EN

OF SSION

NG-L I A

E
AL

ONG

IN
EE R

GN

J

P

H

R

S I

A
F CALI FOR
CIVIL

NITE O

TE
G

I
RE

S

D

RE

KN

A

ST

HA 45846

SCALE: 1"=10'

C-1

CONCEPTUAL GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN FOR 91 E. BONITA AVENUE
IN THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE

BENCHMARK

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

NORTH

VICINITY MAP

CATCH BASIN W/FILTER DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/M

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.94)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.79)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.46)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.11)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.20)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.54)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756.84)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756.53)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757.05)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757.33)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756.78)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757.45)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757.64)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757.78)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(758.05)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(758.54)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(758.65)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.32)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756.35)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.74)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(754.54)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.74)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.51)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.72)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.38)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.01)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.09)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.27)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.94)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.48)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.49)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.38)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.25)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.81)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.56)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.98)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.01)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.63)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.16)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(754.05)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.49)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.69)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.29)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.22)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.51)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.26)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.84)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.82)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.84)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.85)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.85)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.81)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.78)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.63)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.68)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.71)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.66)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.66)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.68)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.63)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.61)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.15)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.80)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.97)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.98)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.03)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.83)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.60)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.23)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.01)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.74)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.20)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.50)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.60)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.40)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.49)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.56)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.52)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.82)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.98)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.98)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.20)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.74)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.52)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.97)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.72)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.44)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.84)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.98)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.46)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(745.32)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(744.68)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(744.61)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(744.27)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(744.79)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(744.17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(744.20)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(743.56)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.06)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.03)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(746.01)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(745.37)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(745.62)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(743.45)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(742.82)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(743.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.04)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.33)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.38)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.81)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.81)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.60)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.48)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.77)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.65)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.34)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.29)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.35)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.70)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.43)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.04)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.66)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(743.33)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(743.62)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.80)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.45)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.56)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(744.67)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.50)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.06)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.66)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.01)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.06)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.52)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.05)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.11)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.46)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.74)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(742.16)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(741.53)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(741.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(742.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(742.28)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(741.50)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(741.06)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.69)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.69)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(740.95)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALKYWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. POOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
BONITA                       AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' H C FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H C FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H W FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H W FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H W FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H W FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' H RET WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°30'00"E    53.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N86°38'45"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.21'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°59'35"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.88'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
N3°06'13"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.05'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
N20°25'13"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
N3°06'30"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
174.73'               

AutoCAD SHX Text
N3°06'30"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.71'         

AutoCAD SHX Text
N3°21'15"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
228.99'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=47.00'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=16.69'            

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=80.00'             

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=41.87'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE OF 6' WIDE SCE EASEMENT               

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(744)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(743)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(754)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(758)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(754)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(754)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745)

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE ADDITION FF 749.65 RAISED FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE ADDITION FF 749.65 RAISED FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
POOL UNDER SEPARATE PERMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
POOL HOUSE FF 749.30 RAISED FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORTION OF EX. HOUSE TO REMAIN (FF 749.65)

AutoCAD SHX Text
756

AutoCAD SHX Text
756

AutoCAD SHX Text
755

AutoCAD SHX Text
754

AutoCAD SHX Text
753

AutoCAD SHX Text
753

AutoCAD SHX Text
754

AutoCAD SHX Text
753

AutoCAD SHX Text
755

AutoCAD SHX Text
756

AutoCAD SHX Text
756

AutoCAD SHX Text
752

AutoCAD SHX Text
752

AutoCAD SHX Text
752

AutoCAD SHX Text
752

AutoCAD SHX Text
753

AutoCAD SHX Text
752

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 6' HT. MAX. BLOCK WALL PER LANDSCAPE PLAN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DRIVEWAY APPROACH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PARKWAY DRAIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PAVING PER LANDSCAPE PLAN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPROVEMENT NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RETAINING WALL UNDER SEPARATE PERMIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STEM WALL AND WATERPROOFING UNDER SEPARATE PERMIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CATCH BASIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED UNDERGROUND INFILTRATION BASIN PER DETAIL HEREON.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED GRAVEL AREA PER LANDSCAPE PLAN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FENCE PER LANDSCAPE PLAN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DRAIN PIPE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CATCH BASIN W/ FILTER PER DETAIL HEREON.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EGL to

AutoCAD SHX Text
be directed to EGL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
 arisen from these 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
drawings should 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Inc.  Any questions 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS    BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
Associates in a written format.

AutoCAD SHX Text
whole or in part.  A written consent 

AutoCAD SHX Text
and specifications by any method in

AutoCAD SHX Text
re-use or reproduce these drawings

AutoCAD SHX Text
permission is required by 

AutoCAD SHX Text
of EGL Associates, Inc. Written 

AutoCAD SHX Text
specifications are exclusive property

AutoCAD SHX Text
These drawings and the accompanying

AutoCAD SHX Text
is required if the drawings are to

AutoCAD SHX Text
be used by other than EGL Associates,

AutoCAD SHX Text
RELEASED  DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER            DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR    DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED FOR DRAINAGE AND LID CONCEPTUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN AND OFFSITE IMPROVEMENTS ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
HJ

AutoCAD SHX Text
JY

AutoCAD SHX Text
18-AA-102

AutoCAD SHX Text
91 E. BONITA AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/16/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMH......... SEWER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL.......... FLOW LINE ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH.......... MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.......... EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABBREVIATIONS/LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
C&G......... CURB AND GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
...EXISTING STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
...PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
...EXISTING ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
...EXISTING CONTOURS

AutoCAD SHX Text
101.83..........PROPOSED ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
........DRAINAGE PATTERN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC.......... TOP OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
(101.0).......

AutoCAD SHX Text
--(102)--...

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.P............HIGH POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
..........PROPOSED CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SDMH............STORM DRAIN MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG.......... FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TW.......... TOP OF WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TG.......... TOP OF GRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
..........PVC DRAIN PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
...........PLANTER WALL/RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP.......... TOP OF CUDO SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOT.......... BOTTOM OF CUDO SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.......... GRADE DIFFERENCE (TW MINUS FG)

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.S........... LANDSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
..........DAYLIGHT LINE (LIMIT OF GRADING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FS.......... FINISHED SURFACE ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
....................CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
....................STEM WALL AND WATERPROOFING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 of 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
18AA102G.DWG

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK NO. G 4021 RDBM TAG IN N CB 600MM(2FT) W/O BCR @ NW COR BALDWIN AVENUE AND BONITA AVENUE (FR THE W) ELEVATION: 772.751'

AutoCAD SHX Text
A PORTION OF THE RE-SURVEY OF G.B. DAVIS TRACT, IN THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AS PER MAP RECORDED IN BOOK 42, PAGE 54 OF MISCLLEANEOUS RECORDS, IN THE COUNTY RECORDER OFFICE OF SAID COUNTY. APN: 5767-037-0407-037-040-037-0407-040-04040

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: SURVEY WAS PROVIDED BY OWNER AND CONDUCTED BY CALLAND ENGINEERING, INC.  EGL ASSOCIATES, INC. ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY NOR LIABILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THE DATA PROVIDED BY OTHERS FOR THIS ENGINEERING PLAN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORANGE GROVE AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWELL AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S BALDWIN AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S MOUNTAIN TRAIL AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
E BONITA AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
E BONITA AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Underground  Service  Alert

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-800-227-2600

AutoCAD SHX Text
Call: TOLL FREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWO WORKING DAYS BEFORE YOU DIG

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND INFILTRATION BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" MIN. COVER AT  LANDSCAPING AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN EQUIPPED WITH CATCH BASIN FILTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" - 6" DIAMETER WASHED GRAVEL (CLEAN STONE)  WITH 40% VOIDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOPOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTOTT

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV

AutoCAD SHX Text
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text
NATURAL SOIL PER SOIL ENGINEER'S  REQUIREMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEA GRAVEL FILTER LAYER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAND FILTER LAYER OR FABRIC (GEOMEMBRANE LINER) EQUIVALENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" DIA. PERFORATED  PVC SDR-26 PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OBSERVATION WELL WITH LOCKABLE AND REMOVEABLE ABOVE-GROUND CAP LOCATION(S) PER PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRAP IN FILTER FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKWAY DRAIN PER PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET PIPE(S) PER PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLO-GARD PLUS CATCH BASIN INSERT FGP-30F8 OR APPROVED EQUAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILL WITH 1" PEA GRAVEL LL WITH 1" PEA GRAVEL L WITH 1" PEA GRAVEL AT OPEN BOTTOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTLET (PARKWAY DRAIN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV 742.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET (PROPOSED DRAIN PIPE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV 740.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
TG 743.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
#4 REBAR THREE(3) PER SIDE LAID HORIZONTALLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALHAMBRA FOUNDRY C-22 GRATE AND FRAME (A2010)

AutoCAD SHX Text
POUR IN PLACE CONCRETE CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTLET TO INFILTRATION BASIN



1 
 

EGL ASSOCIATES 
11819 Goldring Road, Unit A, Arcadia, CA 91006 
Tel.: 626-263-3588; Fax: 626-263-3599; E-mail: mail@egl88.com  
 
 
 
 
 

Hydrology Analysis / LID 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Building Address:  91 E. Bonita Ave  
                                       Sierra Madre, CA 91024 
 
EGL JOB NO. 18-AA-102 
DATE: 01/16/19



2 
 

DRAINAGE CONCEPT 
 
Pre-Development 
Existing drainage pattern flows from northwest to southeast towards Bonita Avenue. 
 
Post-Development 
At post development, the project site will maintain the existing drainage pattern draining 
from northwest to southeast, and site drainage will be captured by catch basins and flow 
through drainage pipes to a underground infiltration basin located southeast of the 
existing house. Peak flows will bypass and discharge to the parkway drain and and curb 
and gutter on Bonita Avenue. 
 
Calculation Background: 
This calculation analyzes the storm run-off for Q50, in order to verify that this 
development will not adversely impact the downstream properties, and that natural & 
existing drainage pattern will be maintained. 
 
As per attached HydroCalc Results, the run-off is as follows. 
 
Pre-Development 
 
Maximum flow in a 50 yr period 

AREA 
(ACRES) 

IMP. (%) FREQUENCY
SOIL 
TYPE 

LENGTH SLOPE  Isohyet 

0.64 30 50 7 308 0.048 9.45 

 
Pre-Development Q50 = 3.05 c.f.s. 
 
Post-Development 
 
Maximum flow in a 50 yr period 

AREA 
(ACRES) 

IMP. (%) FREQUENCY
SOIL 
TYPE 

LENGTH SLOPE  Isohyet 

0.23 44 50 7 302 0.048 9.45 

 
Post-Development Q50 = 3.09 c.f.s. 
 
 
 



3 
 

LID Requirement  
 
TOTAL AREA = 0.64 AC (See attached LID Tributary Map) 

Required Retention Volume 

Per City of Sierra Madre Municipal Code Chapter 15-5B, the First 1.12” (85th percentile) 
of rainfall over the entire Post development impervious areas will be detained on-site: 
1.12” = 0.0933 ft. 
 
∆Ai = 12,148 SF Impervious Areas per Post Development Hydrology Map 
 
VLID = (0.0933 ft) x (12,148 ft2 ) = 1133.41 cf 
 
Underground Infiltration Basin Design 

Use 34’(L) x 21’(W) x 4’(D) 

A = 34’ x 21’ = 714 sf 

Assume 40% porosity, nt = 0.40 

VCAP =A x D x nt = 714 sf x 4 ft x 0.40 = 1142.4 cf > 1133.41 cf (ok) 

 



1/15/2019 Hydrology Map

http://dpw.lacounty.gov/wrd/hydrologygis/ 1/1

search our site..

Hydrology Map  A GIS viewer application to view the data for the hydrology manual.
LAYERS

 50yr Two Tenths (Rainfall) 
 DPA Zones 
 Soils 2004 
 Final 85th Percentile, 24-hr Rainfall 
 Final 95th Percentile, 24-hr Rainfall 
 1-year, 1-hour Rainfall Intensity 

 
SEARCH

Enter Address, Cross Street, or Parcel No.: 
(ex: 900 S. Fremont Ave., Fremont@Valley,
5342005904)
91 E. Bonita Ave, Sierra Madre
Search
Address Search Results:
91 E Bonita Ave Sierra Madre

   Map Tips 

lacounty.gov   |   Public Works FAQ   |   Privacy / Terms of Use   |      |       Feedback

County of Los Angeles, Bureau of Land

+
–

Basemaps

http://dpw.lacounty.gov/
http://lacounty.gov/
http://dpw.lacounty.gov/general/faq/
http://dpw.lacounty.gov/general/privacy-and-terms-of-use.html
http://twitter.com/LACoPublicWorks
http://dpw.lacounty.gov/general/rss/
http://www.youtube.com/user/LAPublicWorks/


1/15/2019 Hydrology Map

http://dpw.lacounty.gov/wrd/hydrologygis/ 1/1

search our site..

Hydrology Map  A GIS viewer application to view the data for the hydrology manual.
LAYERS

 50yr Two Tenths (Rainfall) 
 DPA Zones 
 Soils 2004 
 Final 85th Percentile, 24-hr Rainfall 
 Final 95th Percentile, 24-hr Rainfall 
 1-year, 1-hour Rainfall Intensity 

 
SEARCH

Enter Address, Cross Street, or Parcel No.: 
(ex: 900 S. Fremont Ave., Fremont@Valley,
5342005904)
91 E. Bonita Ave, Sierra Madre
Search
Address Search Results:
91 E Bonita Ave Sierra Madre

   Map Tips 

lacounty.gov   |   Public Works FAQ   |   Privacy / Terms of Use   |      |       Feedback

County of Los Angeles, Bureau of Land

+
–

Basemaps

http://dpw.lacounty.gov/
http://lacounty.gov/
http://dpw.lacounty.gov/general/faq/
http://dpw.lacounty.gov/general/privacy-and-terms-of-use.html
http://twitter.com/LACoPublicWorks
http://dpw.lacounty.gov/general/rss/
http://www.youtube.com/user/LAPublicWorks/


SCALE :  1"=30'-0"

PRE-DEVELOPMENT HYDROLOGY MAP

IMPERVIOUS AREA=0.19 AC

IMPERVIOUS RATIO 0.19/0.64= 0.30

TOTAL AREA= 0.64 AC

(758.05)

(743.33)

3

0

8

 

@

 

0

.

0

4

8

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/M

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.94)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.79)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.46)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.11)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.20)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.54)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756.84)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756.53)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757.05)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757.33)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756.78)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757.45)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757.64)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757.78)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(758.05)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(758.54)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(758.65)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.32)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756.35)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.74)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(754.54)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.74)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.51)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.72)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.38)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.01)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.09)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.27)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.94)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.48)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.49)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.38)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.25)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.81)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.56)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.98)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.01)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.63)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.16)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(754.05)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.49)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.69)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.29)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.22)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.51)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.26)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.84)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.82)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.84)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.85)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.85)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.81)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.78)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.63)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.68)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.71)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.66)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.66)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.68)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.63)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.61)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.15)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.80)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.97)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.98)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.03)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.83)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.60)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.23)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.01)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.74)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.20)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.50)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.60)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.40)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.49)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.56)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.52)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.82)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.98)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.98)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.20)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.74)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.52)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.97)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.72)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.44)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.84)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.98)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.46)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(745.32)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(744.68)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(744.61)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(744.27)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(744.79)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(744.17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(744.20)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(743.56)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.06)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.03)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(746.01)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(745.37)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(746.29)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(745.62)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.21)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(743.45)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(742.82)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(743.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.04)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.33)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.38)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.81)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.81)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.60)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.48)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.77)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.65)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.34)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.29)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.35)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.70)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.43)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.04)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.66)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(743.33)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(743.62)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.80)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.45)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.56)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(744.67)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.50)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.06)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.66)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.01)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.06)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.52)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.05)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.11)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.46)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.74)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(742.16)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(741.53)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(741.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(742.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(742.28)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(741.50)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(741.06)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.69)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.69)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(740.95)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALKYWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. POOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
BONITA                       AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' H C FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H C FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H W FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H W FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H W FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H W FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' H RET WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°30'00"E    53.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N86°38'45"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.21'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°59'35"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.88'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
N3°06'13"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.05'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
N20°25'13"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
N3°06'30"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
174.73'               

AutoCAD SHX Text
N3°06'30"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.71'         

AutoCAD SHX Text
N3°21'15"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
228.99'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=47.00'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=16.69'            

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=80.00'             

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=41.87'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE OF 6' WIDE SCE EASEMENT               

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(744)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(743)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(754)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(758)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(754)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(754)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
' @ 0.048



Peak Flow Hydrologic Analysis
File location: Z:/Hank/ACAD/Misc/2018/18AA102/Conceptual Grading/91 E Bonita Ave - Pre.pdf
Version: HydroCalc 1.0.2

Input Parameters
Project Name 91 E Bonita Ave
Subarea ID Pre
Area (ac) 0.64
Flow Path Length (ft) 308.0
Flow Path Slope (vft/hft) 0.048
50-yr Rainfall Depth (in) 9.45
Percent Impervious 0.3
Soil Type 7
Design Storm Frequency 50-yr
Fire Factor 0
LID False

Output Results
Modeled (50-yr) Rainfall Depth (in) 9.45
Peak Intensity (in/hr) 5.6381
Undeveloped Runoff Coefficient (Cu) 0.8228
Developed Runoff Coefficient (Cd) 0.846
Time of Concentration (min) 5.0
Clear Peak Flow Rate (cfs) 3.0527
Burned Peak Flow Rate (cfs) 3.0527
24-Hr Clear Runoff Volume (ac-ft) 0.1984
24-Hr Clear Runoff Volume (cu-ft) 8643.9223



SCALE :  1"=30'-0"

POST-DEVELOPMENT HYDROLOGY MAP

IMPERVIOUS AREA = 0.28 AC

IMPERVIOUS RATIO 0.28/0.64= 0.44

TOTAL AREA= 0.64 AC

(758.05)

(743.50)

3

0

2

 

@

 

0

.

0

4

8

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/M

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.94)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.79)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.46)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.11)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.20)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.54)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756.84)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756.53)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757.05)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757.33)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756.78)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757.45)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757.64)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757.78)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(758.05)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(758.54)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(758.65)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.32)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756.35)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.74)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(754.54)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.74)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.51)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.72)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.38)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.01)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.09)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.27)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.94)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.48)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.49)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.38)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.25)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.81)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.56)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.98)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.01)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.63)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.16)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(754.05)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.49)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.69)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.29)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.22)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.51)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.26)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.84)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.82)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.84)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.85)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.85)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.81)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.78)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.63)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.68)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.71)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.66)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.66)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.68)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.63)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.61)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.15)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.80)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.97)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.98)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.03)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.83)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.60)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.23)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.01)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.74)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.20)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.50)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.60)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.40)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.49)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.56)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.52)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.82)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.98)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.98)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.20)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.74)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.52)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.97)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.72)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.44)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.84)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.98)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.46)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(745.32)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(744.68)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(744.61)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(744.27)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(744.79)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(744.17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(744.20)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(743.56)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.06)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.03)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(746.01)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(745.37)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(746.29)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(745.62)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.21)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(743.45)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(742.82)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(743.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.04)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.33)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.38)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.81)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.81)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.60)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.48)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.77)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.65)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.34)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.29)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.35)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.70)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.43)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.04)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.66)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(743.33)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(743.62)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.80)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.45)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.56)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(744.67)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.50)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.06)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.66)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.01)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.06)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.52)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.05)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.11)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.46)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.74)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(742.16)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(741.53)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(741.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(742.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(742.28)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(741.50)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(741.06)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.69)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.69)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(740.95)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALKYWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. POOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
BONITA                       AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' H C FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H C FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H W FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H W FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H W FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H W FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' H RET WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°30'00"E    53.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N86°38'45"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.21'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°59'35"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.88'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
N3°06'13"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.05'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
N20°25'13"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
N3°06'30"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
174.73'               

AutoCAD SHX Text
N3°06'30"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.71'         

AutoCAD SHX Text
N3°21'15"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
228.99'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=47.00'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=16.69'            

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=80.00'             

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=41.87'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE OF 6' WIDE SCE EASEMENT               

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(744)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(743)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(754)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(758)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(754)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(754)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745)

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE ADDITION FF 749.65 (RAISED FLOOR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE ADDITION FF 749.65 (RAISED FLOOR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
POOL UNDER SEPARATE PERMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
POOL HOUSE FF 749.30 (RAISED FLOOR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. HOUSE TO REMAIN (FF 749.65)

AutoCAD SHX Text
756

AutoCAD SHX Text
756

AutoCAD SHX Text
755

AutoCAD SHX Text
754

AutoCAD SHX Text
753

AutoCAD SHX Text
753

AutoCAD SHX Text
754

AutoCAD SHX Text
753

AutoCAD SHX Text
755

AutoCAD SHX Text
756

AutoCAD SHX Text
756

AutoCAD SHX Text
752

AutoCAD SHX Text
752

AutoCAD SHX Text
752

AutoCAD SHX Text
752

AutoCAD SHX Text
753

AutoCAD SHX Text
752

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
' @ 0.048



Peak Flow Hydrologic Analysis
File location: Z:/Hank/ACAD/Misc/2018/18AA102/Conceptual Grading/91 E Bonita Ave - Post.pdf
Version: HydroCalc 1.0.2

Input Parameters
Project Name 91 E Bonita Ave
Subarea ID Post
Area (ac) 0.64
Flow Path Length (ft) 302.0
Flow Path Slope (vft/hft) 0.048
50-yr Rainfall Depth (in) 9.45
Percent Impervious 0.44
Soil Type 7
Design Storm Frequency 50-yr
Fire Factor 0
LID False

Output Results
Modeled (50-yr) Rainfall Depth (in) 9.45
Peak Intensity (in/hr) 5.6381
Undeveloped Runoff Coefficient (Cu) 0.8228
Developed Runoff Coefficient (Cd) 0.8568
Time of Concentration (min) 5.0
Clear Peak Flow Rate (cfs) 3.0917
Burned Peak Flow Rate (cfs) 3.0917
24-Hr Clear Runoff Volume (ac-ft) 0.2487
24-Hr Clear Runoff Volume (cu-ft) 10834.2431



SCALE :  1"=30'-0"

LID TRIBUTARY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/M

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.94)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.79)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.46)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.11)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.20)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.54)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756.84)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756.53)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757.05)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757.33)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756.78)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757.45)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757.64)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757.78)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(758.05)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(758.54)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(758.65)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.32)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756.35)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.74)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(754.54)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.74)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.51)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.72)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.38)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.01)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.09)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.27)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.94)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.48)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.49)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.38)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.25)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.81)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.56)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.98)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.01)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.63)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755.16)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(754.05)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.49)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.69)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.29)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.22)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.51)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.26)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.84)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.82)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.84)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.85)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.85)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.81)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.78)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.63)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.68)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.71)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.66)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.66)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.68)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.63)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.61)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.15)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.80)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.97)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.98)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.03)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.83)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.60)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.23)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.01)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.74)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.20)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.50)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.60)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.40)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.49)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.56)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.52)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.82)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753.98)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.98)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.20)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750.74)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.52)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.97)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.72)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.44)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.84)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.98)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.46)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(745.32)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(744.68)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(744.61)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(744.27)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(744.79)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(744.17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(744.20)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(743.56)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.06)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.03)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(746.01)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(745.37)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(745.62)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(743.45)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(742.82)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(743.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.04)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.33)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.38)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.81)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.81)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.60)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.17)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.48)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.77)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.65)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.34)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.29)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.35)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.55)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.70)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.43)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.04)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.66)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(743.33)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(743.62)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.80)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.45)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746.56)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(744.67)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.50)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.06)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.66)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747.01)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752.06)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751.52)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.05)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.75)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.11)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.46)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748.74)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749.12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(742.16)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(741.53)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(741.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(742.47)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(742.28)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TC(741.50)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(741.06)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.69)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745.69)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL(740.95)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALKYWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. POOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDCSAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
D/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
BONITA                       AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' H C FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H C FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H W FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H W FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H W FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H W FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' H CBW

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' H RET WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°30'00"E    53.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N86°38'45"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.21'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°59'35"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.88'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
N3°06'13"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.05'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
N20°25'13"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
N3°06'30"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
174.73'               

AutoCAD SHX Text
N3°06'30"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.71'         

AutoCAD SHX Text
N3°21'15"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
228.99'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=47.00'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=16.69'            

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=80.00'             

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=41.87'              

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE OF 6' WIDE SCE EASEMENT               

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(744)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(743)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(754)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(757)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(758)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(754)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(751)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(752)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(753)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(754)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(755)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(756)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(750)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(749)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(748)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(747)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(746)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(745)

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE ADDITION FF 749.65 RAISED FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE ADDITION FF 749.65 RAISED FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
POOL UNDER SEPARATE PERMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
POOL HOUSE FF 749.30 RAISED FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORTION OF EX. HOUSE TO REMAIN (FF 749.65)

AutoCAD SHX Text
756

AutoCAD SHX Text
756

AutoCAD SHX Text
755

AutoCAD SHX Text
754

AutoCAD SHX Text
753

AutoCAD SHX Text
753

AutoCAD SHX Text
754

AutoCAD SHX Text
753

AutoCAD SHX Text
755

AutoCAD SHX Text
756

AutoCAD SHX Text
756

AutoCAD SHX Text
752

AutoCAD SHX Text
752

AutoCAD SHX Text
752

AutoCAD SHX Text
752

AutoCAD SHX Text
753

AutoCAD SHX Text
752

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL AREA = 27,812 SQ. FT. (0.64 AC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST DEVELOPMENT IMPERVIOUS AREA = 12,148 SF (0.08 AC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
INFILTRATION SYSTEM CAPACITY = 1,142.40 CF > 1,133.41 CF	O.K.O.K.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRED RETENTION VOLUME = 0.0933 FT X 12,148 SF = 1133.41 CF



ATTACHEMNT 10: 

3D RENDERING 

  





ATTACHEMNT 11: 

MATERIAL BOARDS  



Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text

Bryson
Typewritten Text









ATTACHEMNT 12: 

ARBORIST LETTER AND PREVAILING FRONT YARD 

SETBACK CALCULATION 

 















clin
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B

















FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA________ AGENDA ITEM #   3 

       
City of Sierra Madre 

Agenda Report 
 
 
 
TO: Honorable Members of the City Council 
 
FROM: Mayor Denise Delmar 
 
DATE: April 9, 2019 
  

SUBJECT: BRIEF UPDATE ON STATE OF CITY 
 

 
 
Mayor Denise Delmar will provide a brief update and summary on the state of the City.  
This report is intended to provide information only.  No action is required. 
 

FINANCIAL REVIEW 
 
There is no financial impact associated with this report.  

 

PUBLIC NOTICE PROCESS 
 
This item has been noticed though the regular agenda notification process.  Copies of 
the report are available via the City’s website at www.cityofsierramadre.com, at the City 
Hall public counter, and the Sierra Madre Public Library. 
 
 

Denise Delmar, Mayor 

John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem 

Rachelle Arizmendi, Council Member 

John Capoccia Council Member 

Gene Goss, Council Member 

 

Sue Spears, City Clerk 

Michael Amerio, City Treasurer 

 

 

http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/





	4-9-2019 City Council agenda
	Council Minutes - 3-26-2019
	1A - A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS
	1B - DECLARATION OF CITY OWNED VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT TO BE SURPLUSED
	1C - SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE 1411 AMENDING TITLE 17 CHAPTER 17.93 OF THE SIERRA MADRE MUNICIPAL CODE
	2 - CALL FOR REVIEW OF DISCRETIONARY DEMOLITION PERMIT TO ALLOW DEMOLITION IN PART OR IN WHOLE OF ROOF STRUCTURE EXTERIOR AND INTERIOR WALLS AND FRAMING
	Exhibit B PC RESO Meeting Minutes March 7 2019
	Exhibit C  91 Bonita
	91 E. Bonita Architectural Drawings 1-29-19.pdf
	Sheets
	A10 - PROPOSED SITE PLAN & AREA PLAN
	A11 - EXISTING FLOOR PLAN AND ROOF PLAN
	A12 - DEMO FLOOR PLAN AND ROOF PLAN
	A13 - PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN
	A14 - POOL HOUSE FLOOR PLAN
	A16 - PROPOSED ROOF PLAN
	A20 - ELEVATIONS
	A21 - POOL HOUSE ELEVATIONS AND SECTIONS
	A30 - SECTIONS
	A80 - SCHEDULES
	C00 - SURVEY
	G00 - COVER SHEET
	G30 - TITLE 24 REPORT - ADDITION
	G31 - TITLE 24 REPORT - ADU
	ZA17 - POWER AND LIGHTING PLAN


	91 E Bonita Ave_Historic Evaluation_111918.pdf
	91 E Bonita Ave - PDF Plans..pdf
	Sheets
	A10 - PROPOSED SITE PLAN
	A11 - EXISTING FLOOR PLAN AND ROOF PLAN
	A12 - DEMO FLOOR PLAN AND ROOF PLAN
	A13 - PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN
	A14 - POOL HOUSE FLOOR PLAN
	A15 - PROPOSED CEILING PLAN
	A16 - PROPOSED ROOF PLAN
	A20 - ELEVATIONS
	A21 - POOL HOUSE ELEVATIONS AND SECTIONS
	A30 - SECTIONS
	A80 - SCHEDULES
	C00 - SURVEY
	G00 - COVER SHEET



	Hydrology-LID 011619.pdf
	Pre.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	H


	Post.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	H


	LID Map.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	H





	3 - BRIEF UPDATE ON STATE OF CITY
	4 - CITY COUNCIL REORGANIZATION MAYOR AND MAYOR PRO TEM TERMS

